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In 2012 Canlhon was awarded a 10 year rontract worth up to £700 milion by Oxfordshire County Council ta prowide
ntegrated property and fachties managerment services for schools offices health facilities fire stations Lbrames ang other
public sector buildings in the County This contract which s already the largest of its kind ta be letin the UX to date can be
extended 10 20 years and to include the properues of other public sector organisations in Cxfordshire

Wherel?

In the UK, Canada
and the Middle
East and

North Africa

Our core capabilities

Support services

Public Private Partnership projects
Caonstruction services

(1) After Joint Ventures net financisl expense of
£16 0 milbon (2011 £18 8 milon} and taxation
charge of £1 7 million (2011 £3 5 mulion) and before
ntangible amartisation non recurnng operating Aams
and non-operating items (see nate 4 on page 77)

(2} Restated folkmnng the change in presentation of
profits from the dispasal of Public Private Partnership
equity investments from non operating tems to
operating items {amounting to £13 2 mdlion in 2012
and £11 5 mitkon 1n 2011)

(3) Bafore loint Ventures net finanaal expense and
taxation ntangible amortisation and non recurning
pperating items (see note 4 on page 77)

{4) After Joint Ventures taxation charge of £1 7 mullion
(2011 £3 5 millkon) and before intangible amorusation
noA recurring operaung Items and non operating Hems
{see note 4 on page 77)

{5) Before intangible amortisation non recurning
operating items and nCN operaung items (see note 4
on page 77)

{6) Based on expected revenue and secure and probable
orders which exclude vanable work and re bids




2012 Results

Revenue

£4.4bn

2011 £5 1bn

Underlying profit from operations™

£232.4m

2011 £227 4m@

Underlying operating margin®

D>.7%

2011 49%%=

Robust financal performance

> Revenue reduced as previously guided,
primarily due to the planned rescaling
of UK construction

> Underlying profit from operations™
ncreased, reflecting an improvement
n total operating margin

> Reported profit before taxation and
basic earnings per share both increased
substantially, due to minimal non-
recurnng and non-operating items

> Underlying profit before taxation® and
underlying earnings per share® reduced
slightly, due to a hugher net financal
expense, Including an increase In the
non-cash interest charge relating
to pensions

Underlying profit before taxation®

£214./m

2011 £223 5m@

Underlying earnings per share'®

43.0p

2011 457p®

Profit before taxation

£179.5m

2011 £142 8m

Strong balance sheet

> Net borrowing of £155 8 milion
{2011 £50 7 million) reflects the
expected outflow of working capital,
primanly due to the rescaling of UK
construction, and the acquisitton of
the Bouchier Group in Canada

> Over £1 bilion of committed borrowng
faclities and private placement funding

Proposed full year dividend increased
by 2% to 17 25p (2011 16 9p)
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Basic earnings per share

37.2p

2011 320p

Proposed full year dvidend per share

17.25p

2011 169p

Net borrowing

£155.8m

2011 £50 7m

Strong order book and record

pipeline of contract opportunities

= £5 2 billion of new and prebable orders
In 2012

= Total order book plus probable orders of
£18 1 bulion (2011 £19 1 bilion), with
the reduction on 2011 due primarly to
the sale of equity investments in Public
Private Partnership (PPP) projects and
the rescaling of UK construction

> 75% revenue visibility® for 2013
(2011 77% for 2012)

> Pipeline of contract opportunities worth
some £35 2 billion (2011 £33 1 billion)

Governance Qur performance About us

Finoncial statements
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How It works

Our capabilities

We provide all the services needed to create
and manage bulldings and infrastructure,
from project iinance through design and
construction to lifetime maintenance,
faciities management and energy efficiency.

We report our results In four business
segments — Support services, Public
Private Partnership projects, Middle East
construction services and Construction
services (excluding the Middle East).

Group
overview
2012 Restated 2011
£m £m
Revenue
— Group 3,666 2 4153 2
— Share of Joint Ventures 736 6 898 0
4,402 8 -13% 50512
Underlying operating profit
— Group 2059 188 2
— Share of Joint Ventures 520 710
2579 259 2
Group ehminations and unallocated items (7 8) 9 5)
Prohit from operations before Jomt Ventures’ net
financial expense and taxation 2501 2437
Share of Joint Ventures' net financial expense {16 0) (18 8)
Share of Joint Ventures® taxation (17) (3 5)
Underlying profit from operations 232 4 +2% 2274
Group interest (17 7) (39
Underlying profit before taxation® 2147 -0% 2235
Intangible amortisation® (31 8) (310)
Non-recurnng operating rtems (26) 42 8)
Mon-gperating items 12) 69)
Reported profit before taxation 1795 +26% 142 8

{1} Restated following the change in presentation of profits from the disposal of Public Private Partnership equity investments
from non-operating Items to operating items (amounting to £13 2 millonin 2012 and £11 5 mithonin 2011}
{2) After Joint Ventures taxaton of £1 7 midhon {2011 £3 5 mithon) and before intangible amortisation non-recurmag

aperatng wtems arkd non-operatng items
{3) Ansing from business combinations

Support
services

In this segment we report the results
of our facihties management, facities
services, energy services, rail services,
utility services, road maintenance and
consultancy businesses

Underlying operating profit
2011 £1208m
Order book plus probable orders

£1.1bn

2011 £129bn

Find out more
Group Chief Executive’s review
Page 14

Operating and financial review
Page 26



Public Private
Partnership projects

In this segment we report the results

of our Investing activities in Public

Private Partnership projects for Government
buildings and infrastructure, mainly in the
defence, health, education, transport and
secure accommaodation sectors

Underlying operating profit

£33.8m

2011 £314m

Order book plus probable orders

£2.2bn

20%1 £2 8bn

Find out more
Group Chief Executive’s review
Page 17

Operating and finanaal review
Page 27

Middle East
construction services
In this segment we report the results of our

building and civil engineering activities in
the Middle East

Underlying cperating profit

£29.0m

2011 £49 1m

Order book plus probable orders

£0.8bn

2011 £10bn

Find cut more
Group Chief Executive's review
Page 18

Operating and financial review
Page 28
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Construction services
{excluding the Middle East)

In this segment we report the resuits of
our UK bullding, avil engineering and
developments businesses and of our
construction actwities in Canada

Underlying operating profit

£72.4m

2011 £57 9m

Crder book plus probable crders

£2.0bn

2011 £2 4bn

Find out more
Group Chief Executive's review
Page 2%

Operating and financal review
Page 29

Governcnce Qur performance About us

Financial stotements



We have aresilient UK and international
business mix, well positioned in markets
offering good prospects for growth

1 Canada

Split of revenue

2 UK

3 Middle
East and
North Africa

1 Canada - 15%
2012 £650 9m

2 UK-74%
2012 £3.264 8m

3 Middle East and North Africa — 11%
2012 £487 1Tm

1 Canada

Operations

> Support services

> Public Private Partnership projects
> Construction services

Market secters

> We have operated in Canada for
around 50 years, delivering a wide
range of construction services for
public and private sector custorners

> An increasing proportion of our
construction work in Canada relates
10 Public Private Partnerskip (PPP)
projects, for which Carlhon has built
a market-leading reputation, especially
In the health sector

> We have also established leading
positions in the road maintenance
markets of Ontano and Alberta, where
we have long-term contracts to manage
and maintain substantial lengths of the
provincial highway network

> We provide faciities management
and maintenande services for our
PPP hospitals

Revenue™

£650.9m

2011 £782 3m

Percentage of revenue

15%
2011 16%

(Hincludes £10 5 mithon
(2011 £7 1 mulhon) of
revenue generated in
the Canbbean




2 UK
|

Operations

> Support services

> Public Private Partnership prajects
> Canstruction services

Market sectors

> We provide all the facilities
management, maintenance and other
services needed to keep bulldings, in
particular large, complex property
estates, fully operational for publc
and private sector customers

> Energy efficency services for
domestic, commercial and publc
sector custormers

> We provide asset management and
maintenance services for road and
railway infrastructure and for utilities,
induding telecommunications
electricity and gas

> We have a strong and selective
construction services capability, which
plays a key role in prowiding integrated
solutions for PPP projects and for our
support services customers

Revenue®

£3.264.8m

2011 £3,707 6m

Percentage of revenue

74%
2011 73%

(2) Includes £36 9 mlhion
{2011 £43 6 milhon) of revenue
generated outside of the
UK Middle East and North
Africaand Canada

3 Middle East
and North Africa

Operations
» Support services
> Construchion services

Market sectors

> We have around 40 years’ expenence
of operating in this region, where we
have well-established loint Venture
businesses in the United Arab Emirates,
Oman, Qatar and Egypt, prowding
construction services for builldings
and infrastructure

> These businesses have market-leading
reputations for delivering hugh-quality
projects for a smalt number of
long-term, financially robust customers

> We also provide faciies management
services for which there are growing
opporturuties across the Gulf region

Revenue

£4871m

2011 £561 3m

Percentage of revenue

1%

2011 1%
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Chairman’s
statement

Carilion has continued to deliver a robust
performance, with underlying earnings
per share slightly ahead of the market
consensus forecast Having rescaled our
UK construction activities, we have also
further improved the risk profile and the
overall quality of our business.

Philip Rogerson
Chairman




Dividend — five-year compound
annual growth rate

9%

|17 25p
16 5p
15 5p
14 6p
130p

{1} The underlying results stated above are based on
the definitions included in the financial bighhights
onpage 1

(2) Restated following the change In presentation of
prefits on the disposal of Public Private Partnership
equity investments from non-operating items to
operating items {amounting 10 £13 2 millien i 2012
and £13 5 milion in 2011)

o7
Canllion plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Total revenue, including joint ventures, reduced to £4 4 bilion (2011 £5 1 bilion), primarily
due to the planned rescaling of our UK construction business, which has been achieved

by tightening the critena we use to select the contracts for which we bid, to ensure that the
size of this business remans aligned with the shnnking UK construction market Furthermore,
rescabing our UK construction activities has supported margins and improved the overall

nsk profile and guality of our business mix Revenue contributions from the Middle East and
Canada were also lower 1n 2012 due to the tming of our opportunities in those markets
However, we continue to believe that we can deliver strong medium-term growth in both
the Middle East and Canada

In our pre-close trading update on 12 December 2012, we announced that from 2012
onwards profits from the sale of equity investments in Public Private Partnership {PPP)
projects would be treated as part of underlying profit, instead of non-operating profit,
as this 1s consistent with the treatment now adopted by most of our industry PPP equity
sales made modest contnbutions to underlying profit from operations of £11 5 million in
2011 and £13 2 millan in 2012 Our 2011 results have been restated to reflect this
change in treatment

In 2012, underlying profit from operations™ increased by two per cent to £232 4 milion
(2011 £227 4 million'?} The tolal operating margin increased 10 5 7 per cent (2011

4 9 per cent'?), as we continued to benefit from rescaling UK construction and our highly
selective approach to the contracts for which we bid, together with an ongoing fecus on
cost management and operational efficency Underlying profit before taxation® reduced
by four per cent to £214 7 million {2011 £223 5 million'?), due to a substantal increase in
the Group's net financial expense to £17 7 million 2011 £3 9 mithon) induding an increase
In the interest charge relating to the Group's pension schemes For the same reason,
underlying earnings per share” reduced six per cent to 43 0 pence (2011 45 7 pence®)

Reported prohit before taxation increased by 26 per cent to £179 5 milhon (2011 £142 8 mullion)
and basic earnings per share increased by 16 per cent to 37 2 pence (2011 32 0 pence)

Canllion continues to have a strong balance sheet Net berrowing at 31 December 2012 was
£155 8 mullion (2014 £50 7 million), which reflected the expected outflow of working capital
attendant on rescaling UK construction and the acquisition of the Bouchier Group in Canada
During 2012, the addition of a further £210 mithon of private placement funding took the
Group’s total bank facdities and private placement funding to over £1 billton

New order intake has remained sirong with £5 2 billion of new and probable orders during
the year At 31 December 2012, the 1otal value of the Group’s order book plus probable
orders, which exclude vanable work and re-bids, was some £18 1 billion 2011 £19 1 billion),
with the reduction due primarily to the sale of equity in Public Private Partnershup projects
and the rescaling of UK construction The Group continues to have good revenue visibility,
which 1s currently around 75 per cent of anticapated revenue in 2013 (2011 77 per cent

for 2012) At 31 December 2012, we had a pipeline of contract opportunities worth

some £35 2 billion (2011 £33 1 bilion), which continues to support our targets for growth

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 11 85 pence per share (2011 11 6 pance),
making the total dividend for 2012 17 25 pence, an increase of two per cent on the
16 9 pence paid in respect of 2011

Looking forward, we expact market conditions to remain challenging in 2013 However,

with a resilient business model, a strong order bock and a substantial pipeline of contract
apportunities, the Group remains well positioned ta achieve its targets of delivering annual
growth in suppart services and of doubling annual revenues in the Middle East and in Canada,
in each case to around £1 billion, in the five-year penod from 2010 to 2015

Mé/o Zﬁwsw

Philip Rogerson
Chairman
27 February 2013

Find out more
Sustainability
Page 36

Governance
Page 40

Governance Our performance About us

Financiol statements
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Group Chief
Executive’s
review

Our vision is to

be the partner of
choice for delivering,
managing and
servicing buildings
and infrastructure.

Richard Howson
Group Chief Executive

Find out more
Our people and values
Page 12

Canllion’s robust performance in challenging market conditions continues to reflect
the success of our strategy in creating a resilient UK and international business mix

As well as enabling 1he|Group 10 perform well in an economic downturn, our strategy
has also positioned the Group to take advantage of opportunittes for growth over the
medium term

Our strategy

> Growing support services, Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects and our
international businesses

> Using our business model to develop and market integrated solutions tallored
to the needs of our custorners, including project finance, design and construction,
maintenance and lifetime support services and asset management

» Maintaining a high-quality and selective construction capability, focused
on tugher added-value contracts for long-term customers, especially the delivery
of integrated solutions for PPP projects and suppaort services customers

Our strategy continues to be supported by our commitments to

> Being a recognised leader in Health & Safety and sustainability
> Qur core values

> Strong nsk management and

> Operational excellence

A strong and resilient business

The consistent implementatian of our strategy has created a leading integrated support
services business with a substantial portfolio of Public Private Partnership projects and
extensive construction capabiliies We use our world-class skills to design unigue integrated
solutions tallored to the specific needs of our customers This, together with operational
excellence and the resources necessary 10 deliver salutions for large, complex contracts,
helps to differentiate us from our competitors

With operations across the UK and in Canada and the Middle East, we continue to have
a well-balanced UK and international business mix, focused on markets offering good
opportunities for growth, especally over the mediuvm and long term As a result of

the prompt action we took in 2010, to begin rescaling our UK construction business

in anticipation of planned Government cuts to mvestment in canstruction, we have
aligned this business to the size of the UK market




Asset creation
and whole-life
management

® 3
Sunagupua <°
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Our business model

Creating sustainable value
for our customers

Generates sustainable returns
for our stakeholders

We use our wide range of skills and resources both within and across our
three core capabilities, to create integrated solutions tallored to meet the
needs of our customers

Support services

> Sector leading facilities
management and energy services

> Long-term contracts and
good visibility

> Resilient revenue platform

> Growth underpinned by public
sector outsourcing

PPP projects

> Specialist skills that prowide
a competitive advantage

> Valuable equity investments,
recycled to generate cash
and profit

> Secures lang-term support
services contracts

> Secures good quakity
construction

Construction
(UK, Middle East and Canada)

> Strong engineering capabilities

> Selectively focused on quality
and delivery

> Rigorous nsk management

> Strang track record of good
quality earnings

> Positive cash flow dynamics

Revenue

£2,359./m

2011 £2,3452m
Underlying operating profit

£1227m

Order book plus probable orders

£131bn

Pipeline

£11 5bn

Revenue

£2877/m

2011 £309 8m
Underlying operating profit

£33.8m

Order book plus probable orders

£2.2bn

Pipeline

£1.6bn

Revenue

£1,755.4m

2011 £2,3962m
Underlying operating profit

£1014m

Order bock plus probable orders

£2.8bn

Pipeline

£22.1bn

Governance Our performonce About us

Financial statements
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Group Chief
Executive’s

review
continued

The rescaling of UK construction has been achieved by being very selective in terms of the
contracts for which we bid, in order to focus on higher added-value contracts for long-term
customers Since 2009 our annual UK construction revenue has reduced by nearly £900 million
to under £1 billion, which has significantly improved the nisk profile and overall quality of our
business mix

In 2012, support services and investments in Public Private Partnership projects contnibuted
60 per cent of revenue {2011 53 per cent) and 61 per cent of underlying operating profit
{2011 59 per cent) with construction contributing 40 per cent of revenue (2011 47 per cent)
and 39 per cent of underlying operating profit (2011 41 per cent)

Acquisition of the Bouchier Group

In December 2012, we acquired a 49 per cent interest in the Bouchter Group for a cash
consideration of £23 8 million, which 1sbeing paid in phased instalments over the penod

to January 2014 The Bouchier Group 1s based in Alberta, Canada and prowides a range of
support services, including road mamtenance, infrastructure services and fachities management,
primarily for customers in the il sectar In the 12 manth pened to 31 March 2012 the
Bouchier Group had revenue of £46 3 million and pre-1ax profit of £7 8 milion The provision
of support services to companies in the power, il and gas sectors across all the geographies
in which we operate, offers significant new opportuntties for growth The acquisition of the
Bouchier Group provides an excellent platform from which to grow our activities in this market
in Canada

Health & Safety and sustainability

Our commitment to being a recognised leader in Health & Safety and sustainability drives
everything we do Providing a safe working environment for all cur people and ensuring the
safety of those who are affected by what we do, 1s our first priority We view this as an integral
part of our wider responsibihity to deliver sustainable sclutions for our customers by using the
opportunities we have to create positive impacts on the environment and on the communities
in which we operate Qur Health & Safety and sustainatbility strategies and programmes,
together with our performance measured against a number of key performance indicators

are pubhshléd in our Annual Sustainability Report, in April However, a summary of our
performance can be found in this report on pages 11 and 36

Our values
How we work together within Canllion and wath external partners suppliers and customers,
15 driven by our six core values of

> Openness

> Collaboratton

> Mutual dependency

> Professtonal delivery

> Sustamnable profitable growth
> Innovation

Behaving in accordance wath our values in everything we do, plays a vital role in building
a sustainable, profitable business, for which our people can be proud to work

Strong risk management

Canllion has ngorous operational and financial nsk management processes to identify mitigate
and manage strategic Group-wide risks and nisks specific to our individual business units and
contracts, including economic, social, environmental and ethical nisks The Group's principal
nsks, their potential impacts on our husiness and the processes and measures we have n

place to manage and mitigate these risks, are explamed in more detail on pages 22 and 23

Operational excellence

Operational excellence 15 also a key strength It begins with strong management teams

and excellent people who bisten to customers to understand therr needs and to work with
customers to help shape the contracts they bring to market We then use our skills and
resources to design value for money solutions to meet the specific needs of each customer
The ability to use our sector leadership in sustainabibity to design sustainable solutions 1s also
an increasingly important capability, which helps to differentiate us from our competitars

These capabilities, together with our annual cost management and effidency programmes,
lead to operational excellence, which enables us 1o win contracts and to win them on profitable
terms With external expenditure of over £3 billion a year, best practice in supply chain
management 15 vital to cost management and efficency An excellent example of innovation

in supply chain management 1s Carillon Direct Souraing, a company we have established in
China to source products directly from manufacturers This cuts out the middle men and,
because Canlhon Direct Sourcing supplies all our businesses warldwide, we buy in greater
vofumes at better prices
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2012 Key Performance Indicators

How we performed in relation to the eight Key Performance Indicators we set for 2012

To attract, develop and retain
excellent people

We have maintained investment in leadership, personal development and employee
engagement programmes, designed to enable all our people to achieve thesr full potential
This 15 underpinned by good communication to create a culture of openness and trust
among all our people to enable them to contribute to the development of our business
We measure our progress through annual employee surveys, notably The Great Debate,
which involved 9,777 of our people in 2012 The results for 2012 showed that the overall
satisfaction of our peopie seduced shghtly with the percentage saying that they are proud
10 work for Canlon reduang from 75 per cent to 71 per cent, which reflected the impact
of rescaling parts of our business to align them with smaller markets

Be a recognised leader i Health
& Safety and sustainability

Our objective of reducing reportable accidents to zero remains our top prionty We
continue to Invest In programmes to engage, educate and train alt our people backed
by strong, wistble leadership, including Directors’ Safety Tours and Safety Action Groups,
together with safety audits Through our hazard reporting programmes ‘Don‘t Walk By,
everyone in Cardlion 1s encouraged to report for immediate action anything they
consider o be unsafe In 2012, our Acadent Frequency Rate (AFR) increased slightly

to 0 076 reportable acaidents per 100,000 employee hours worked (2011 0 074), with
more than four out of five projects achieving zero reportable acodents An AFR of 0 076
continues to be a sector-leading performance Going forward, we will change this Key
Performance Indicator to the Lost Time Incident Frequency Rate (LTIFR), which is the
internationally accepted measure of performance In 2012, our LTIFR per 200,000 hours
worked was 0 52 We deeply regret that one fatal acadent occurred on a Carilion work
site in 2012, when an employee was fatally injured when he was struck by a train This
personal tragedy has been deeply felt by all his colleagues in Carlion and our thoughts
are with his farmily and friends Duning 2012, one prosecution of a Canllion company was
completed by the Health & Safety Executive This concerned an acdident in 2008 that
occurred at Mendian Quay, Swansea, in which a scaffolder, working for a subcontractor,
was fatally imjured when he fell while dismantling scatfolding

Carnlhion continues to be a recognised feader in sustainability in our sector, a key measure
of which 1s our ranking in Business in the Community's Carporate Responsibility Index

In 2011 we maintained our ‘Platinum’ ranking 1n this Index with a score of 97 per cent
and our objective is to at least match our 2011 ranking when the 2012 index 15

puhlished in April 2013 We report in more detaill on our sustainability performance

in the sustainabihity section of this report on page 36 and In our Annual Sustainablity
Report, which will be published in April 2013

Continuously tmprove customer
satisfaction

We measure our performance by using an independent customer perception survey The
results of the 2012 survey showed that Canllion achveved an overall rating that exceeded
a commercially acceptable level, with market-leading ratings for our cwil engineering and
building businesses

Deliver growth in support services

Despite challenging market conditions, revenue and underlying operating profit in support
services both moved ahead slightly in 2012, wath a ane per cent increase in revenue and
a two per centincrease in underlying operating profit, compared with 2011

Grow annual revenues in Canada and
the Middle East by doubling each of
them to around £1 billion by 2015

Annual revenues in Canada and in the Middle East reduced in 2012, the reasons for
which are explained on pages 28 and 29 But we believe the medwm-term outlock 1n
both Canada and the Middle East remams positive and our targets of doubling revenues
fror 2010 1n both cases to around £1 billion by 2015, remams unchanged

Cantinue to rescale our UK
construction capakbility consistent
with our objective of reducing annual
revenue to around £1 2 bilian

The rescaling of our UK construction business to ensure it remamns algned with the size
of the UK market 1s largely complete We have benefited significantly from the prompt
action we took in 2010 to begin rescaling this business, which 15 clearly evident in our
results, on which we commant in more detaill on page 29

Continue reduang costs and
Improving efficiency to support
margins and earnings growth

Driving ngorous annual cost management and efficiency programmes throughout our
business has continued to pravide customers with attractive and competitive offerings,
as evidenced by our success in secuning new and probable orders worth £5 2 bilion in
2012, and by the improvement in our total aperating margin from 4 9 per cantn 2011
to 57 per cent in 2012

Generate cash-backed profit after
adjusting for the strategrc rescaling
of our UK construction activities

After adjusung for the planned working capital outflow due to rescaling our UK
construction activities and some shart-term working capital phasing between 2011

and 2012, underlying cash flow from operations was equal to 38 per cent of underlying
profit from operations

Governance Qur performance About us

Financial statements
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Group Chiet
Fxecutive’s
review

continued

Innovation

Carillion has leading posibions in the Ontano
and Alberta highways maintenance market,
providing year-round services under
long-term contracts

Our people and values

drive the Group’s performance

Collaboration

Openness




Mutual
dependency

Sustainable
profitable growth
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Professional
delivery

Governance Qur performance About us

Financial statements
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Group Chief
Executive’s

review
continued

Find out more
Operating and financial review
Page 26

Right

In 2012 we continued to build on the
leading positions we hold in the highways
maintenance markets in Ontano and Alberta,
Canada, winning new contracts and contract
renewals which together are worth in excess
of £500 million over 12 years

Far nght

Canllon 1s a leading suppher of support
services to the UK Defence Infrastructure
Organisatton, for whom we provide a wide
range of property and facilites management
services, Including building fabric maintenance,
catening, laundry, cleaning and security, for
military establishments and accommodation
across the UK

Support services

We are one of the UK’s argest support services companzes providing all the services needed to
manage maintain and operate buildings and infrastructure, notably for large property estates
and for transport and utility services networks

Having the ahility to combine our extensive suppori services capablities 1o prowde customers
with fully integrated, nationwide solutions 1s a key strength that helps to differentiate Carillion
from our competitars 1t 15 also fundamental to our success in delivering Public Private
Partnership (PPP) projects The long-term suppaort services contracts we have — some of

them for more than 30 years — provide good visibility of future revenues and make a major
contnbution to the resihence of our business mix

Property

We provide an exiensive range of suppert services for property notably integrated facilinies
management solutions for public and private sector customers with large, complex property
estates We have strong positions in anumber of market sectors particularly for customers
in the finanoal services, commercial, utlities, media and telecommunications sectors In the
UK public sector, we are a major supplier of integrated facilities management services to
central and local government, notably in the defence, health, education and general office
accommodation sectors In Canada, we have a growing busmess, driven by our success

in winming PPP projects especially in the health sector, for which we provide faciliiies
management services

Infrastructure

We have long-term asset management and mamtenance contracts for roads, rallways

and pubhc utiity services networks Inthe UK, we provide mntegrated management and
mamntenance services for motorways and trunk roads for the Highways Agency, and also
for local road networks cn behalf of Local Highway Authonties In Canada, we have leading
positions i the Ontario and Alberta road maintenance markets In the rail sector, our

main customers are Network Rall and Transport for London We also provide a wide range
of asset management and maintenance services for uliity networks

We have in-house engineering and architectural design and pro;eci management capabilities,
which play an important role in supporting the delivery of integrated solutions for buildings
and infrastructure, notably for PPP projects

Energy services

The acquisition of Canllion Energy Services (CES) in April 2011, extended our support services
offering 1o include energy efficiency services Rising energy costs and Government legislation
to reduce carbon emissions have made energy services an increasingly important part of the
ntegrated support services solutions we provide The acquisition of CES has also taken the
Group Into new markets for energy services namely for private housing and for Local Authornity
and Social Landlord housing

Power, oil and gas

In 2012, we used our fachiuies and asset management capabilities to take advantage of new
market opportunities, notably in the power, ol and gas sectors in the UK and the Middie East
For example, we were appointed as the preferred bidder for our largest ever support services
contract In the Middle East, a three-year, £75 miliion contract for Petroleum Development
Oman The acquisshion in December 2012 of a 49 per cent interest in the Bouchier Group,
which provides support services to customers in the oil sector in Canada, also provides an
excellent platform to grow our activities in this market
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Left

During 2012, Carillion completed the Roya!
Victona Hospital expansion project in Ontario,
Canada This £160 milhon project included
101 new in-patient beds, two additronal
patient care units with 64 beds, a coronary
care unit operating theatres and expanded
emergency, diagnostic imaging and
laboratory facilities

Right

Carlllion has recently completed the

£157 million, Phase 1B of the redevelopment
of the Centre for Addiction and Mental Health
in Toronto, Canada This project 1s part of

a programme to transform an institutional
campus into an urban village style hospital
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Public Private Partnership projects

We are a leader in Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects, both 1in the UK and in Canada
PPP projects use private sector finance to deliver a wide range of asset-based services for
central and local government

Our sucgess 15 based on our ability to combine our expertise in private finance with our
support services and construction capabilities to win and deliver fully integrated solutions
for PPP projects, in which we invest equity and for which we secure construction contracts
and leng-term support services contracts

Once the construction phase 1s complete and projects have moved successfully into the
operational phase, we have the option of selling our equity investments and reinvesting
the proceeds In new projects

Health

In the UK we are making good progress with our fifteenth PPP healthcare facility, the new
Southmead Hosprtal in Bristol We secured support services contracts for 12 of these faclites,
making Canllion a leading supplier of non-cirical services to the National Health Service

Defence

Canlhon has three major PPP defence projects for the UK Ministry of Defence The largest

of these 15 Allenby Connaught a 35-year concession contract that cornmenced in 2006 to
rebuilld Army accommadation across the South of England and to provide support services
for the estate over the life of the concession

Secure accommodation

In the UK, we have delivered four prisons and secure training centres and sold our
equity investments in all of these projects Carnillion also built the landmark Government
Communications Headquarters at Cheltenham, one of the largest, technically complex
and secure accommodation PPP projects to be delivered in the UK to date

Education |

We have built a strong track record in the education sector, where we have delivered, or
are (n the process of delivering, around 160 new schools and academies Some 50 of these
schools and academies have been funded by private finance and include the provision of
suppert services

Roads
We have delivered a total of six PPP road projects, two of which included long-term
management and maintenance services that remain in our support services portfolio

Canada

Canada also uses private finance to deliver publhc bulldings and |nfrastructulre with a similar
procurement model to that used In the UK Cantion 15 a {eader in this market, especially in
the health sector, having delivered two of the first privatety financed hospitals in Canada -
the Royal Ottawa and the new William Osler Hospital in Brampton, Ontario, for which we
also have long-term facilities management contracts We have since delvered a further four
major prejects In Ontano and have another under construction Going forward we expect to
bid for new projects in both Ontano and British Columbea

Governance Our performance About us
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Right

In 2072, Al Futtaim Carilion completed the
£550 million Al Mungera mixed-use
development in Abu Dhabi for ALDAR
This development included apartment
buildings, town houses, luxury villas and
office accommodation, together with two
road bridges joining the development to
the mainfand and other associated
infrastructure works

Far right

Canlhon Alawt has recently completed

the Majlis, a magnificent new Parliament
bullding in Muscat, Oman The £275 million
contract included the construction of the
new Parliament butding, which houses

the Mayjlis Oman, Majlis A'shura and Malis
A'ddowla, together with VIP areas, an
information centre, library, offices and
cther support facilities

Middle East construction services

We have araund 40 years' experience in the Middle East, whare we have delivered some of
the region’s most prestigious bulldings and infrastruciure projects

In the Middle East, we have built strong relationships with a small number of high-quality,
financially robust customers wath long term investment programmes, for whom quality and
value for money are paramount This strategy has enablad us to deliver a consistently strong
finanaal performance in the region

Abu Dhabn

Since extending the operations of Al Futtaim Carillion to Abu Dhabi in 2008, our business
there has grown substantially and in 2012 1t contnbuted 23 per cent of our total Middle East
construction services revenue Since completing aur first project in Abu Dhabr in 2008, the
prestigious 500-bedroom Yas Hotel that forms the centrepiece of Abu Dhabi’s Formula 1
Grand Prix circuit we have won a series of further major projects These include Stage 3 of
the UAE University Al Muneera, a major mixed use development for ALDAR and Al Bahar
Towers, a new headquarters for the Abu Dhabi Investment Authonty Currently we are
building New York University for Mubadala, on which we continue to make good progress

Oman

Our business in Oman, Carillion Alawi has a long history of delivertng high-profile projects

to exacting standards, including the Guest Palace Qas't Al Alam, the Grand Mosque, the Royal
Opera House and the Majls, a new parlament bullding Current projects include the Natienal
Museum, an extension to Muscat Airport, which involves the construction of a new control
tower and ancillary faclities and a major mixed-use development for the Public Autherity for
Social Insurance In 2012, Canllicn Alaw continued to grow and contnbuted some 37 per cent
of our total construction services revenue in the Middle East

BDubar

In Dubai, Al Futtaim Carillion has an outstanding track record for delivening high-quality
projects, ncluding Dubai Festival City Motor City, infrastructure for the Downtown Duba)
development and infrastructure far Dubal Aluminium Activity levels in Dubai fell significantly
as a result of the global economic downt:urn, but have recently begun to recover slowly,

with Dubal contnibuting some 16 per cent of our Middle East construction revenue in 2012
Al Futtaim Canllion’s largest current project in Dubas 1s the £112 milhion Al Jalila Chitdren’s
Speciahty Hospital

Egypt

Al Futtaim Carilion extended 1ts operations to Egypt in 2008 specifically to build the £2 billion
Cairo Festival City development for our Joint Venture partner, Al Futtaim In 2012, this project
contnbuted 15 per cent of our Middle Fast construction services revenue as work on the Cairo
Festval City developmant increased

Qatar

In 2011, we extended our operations into Qatar with a £395 million contract for the Heart
of Doha Development for Msheireb Properties This contract, which was won in joint venture
with Qatar Buildding Company, will generate some £316 million of revenue for Cardlion

Qatar has major investment programmes in a number of sectors where Carllion has strong
capabilities, including hentage, health, education and infrastructure which offer substantial
prospects for growth

Saudi Arabia
In line with cur strategy of geographical diversification, we have recently agreed a letter of
intent to deliver our first major contract in Saudi Arabia
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Left

A Carlion Joint Venture delivered the

£209 million contract to upgrade the A3
between Dishforth and Leeming n Yorkshire,
from a dual two-lane trunk road to a dual
three-lane motorway The project included
extensive environmental protection measures,
Including low-noise surfacing and naise
barrters, together with protection for the
natural habitats of deer, badgers, great
crested newts, otters and migratory birds

Right

The Nottingham Academy, which was
completed in 2012, 1s one of some 160
schools and academies that have been,
or aren the process of being delvered,
by Canllion 1in England
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Construction services
(excluding the Middle East)

We have a strong and selective construction capability in the UK and in Canada, focused on
large, higher added-value contracts for long-term customers

Having a strong construction capability, together with our capabilities in private finance, design,
support services and sustainabiiity, enables us to offer fully integrated sofutions for buldings
and infrastructure

This gives us a competitive advantage in aptimising the whole-hfe cost of providing, maintaining
and operating assets such as schools, hospitals, military accommedation, prisons roads and
raillways — an essential requrement for Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects

In the UK, we began rescaling our canstruction business in 2010, through being even more
selective in respect of the contracts for which we bid, to ensure this business remains ahgned
1o the size of the UK market, having correctly antricipated that this market would shrink
significantly Our strategy i1s to base our capabiliies around delivenng integrated solutions
for PPP projects and support services customers and high-quality added-value contracts

for long-term customers to support margmns and create a best--class business Qur UK
construction revenue has reduced from £1 8 bilhion in 2009 to around £0 9 bilhon in 2012,
but with strong margins and improved profitability

In Canada, our ability to deliver integrated sclutions has helped us to establish a leading
position in delivering public sector builldings and infrastructure using a private finance model
(AFP}, which 1s simitar to the UK's PPP procurement model We expect the new 10-year AFP
Investment programme to be a key drniver of growth over the medium term, supporting

our objective of doubling our revenue in Canada to around £1 bilhon per annum

UK

A significant proportion of our UK construction revenue already comes from PPP projects

For example, we have two major PPP prajects for the Ministry of Defence - Allenby Connaught,
which involves bullding and refurbishing Army accommodation across the South of England,
and the Royal School of Military Engineering We also continue to be a leading supplier to

the schools bullding programme, which includes some PPP projects, bnd 1o the health sector,
inwhich our largest project 1s the new Southmead Hospital in Bristol We also prowide
construction services for other long-term customers where quality, delivery and our
sector-leading sustanability credentials differentiate our offening

Our largest sectors of the UK infrastructure market are roads and railways, in which we had
significant success during 2012 Qur construction capabilities In these sectors are also key to
our success m winning and delivering PPP projects, long-term maintenance contracts for roads
and railways and contracts for the Highways Agency’s ‘managed motorways' programme

Canada

In Canada, where our business was established some 50 years ago, we have strong construction
capabilities, both for buldings and infrastructure We delivered two of the first privately
frnanced hospitals to be built i1 Canada, both of which are fully operational, and for which
Carilhon has long-term support services contracts We have since delivered four more hospital
projects and early in 2013 we completed a new Forensic Services and Coroners’ Camplex in
Toronto Carnllion is also delivering other high-profile construction projects, including the
refurbishment and extension of Toronto’s Union Station

Governance Our performance About us
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Order book plus probable orders

£18.1bn

2011 £19 1bn

1 Construction services
(excluding the Middle East)
2012 £2 0bn/2011 £2 4bn

2 Middle East construction services
2012 £08bn /2011 £10bn

3 Support services
2012 £131bn/2011 £12 9bn

4 Public Private Partnership projects
2012 £2 2bn /2011 £2 8bn

Pipeline of contract opportunities

£35.2bn

2011 £33 1bn

1 Construction services
(excluding the Middle East}
2012 £107bn /2011 £8 4bn

2 Middle East construction services
2012 £114bn/2011 £114bn

3 Support serices
2012 £115bn /2011 £12 3bn

4 Public Private Partnership projects
2012 £16bn/20%1 £10bn

{1) Based on expected revenue and secure and probable

arders which exclude vanable work and re bids

Well positioned for the future

New order intake remained strong In 2012, despite difficult market conditions, with £5 2 billion
of new and probable orders secured dunng the year At 31 December 2012, the Group had
orders and probable orders worth £181 bifhion (31 December 2011 £19 1 bilkon) Of this

total, orders which are defined as signed contracts, amounted to £16 6 billon Probable
orders, which are contracts for which we have been selected as the preferred bidder and have
a greater than 90 per cent probability of being signed, amounted to £1 5 bilion The reduction
i the value of orders and probable orders compared with December 2011, was due to the

sale of equity investments in Public Private Partnership projects and the rescaling of our UK
construction business The Group hasrevenue wisibiity™ for 2013 of 75 per cent, based on
expected revenue in 2013 and secure and probable orders

The value of our pipeline of contract opportunities at the year end remained very strong at
£35 2 billion (2011 £33 1 billion} This pipehine includes specific contracts that have passed our
initial selectwity cnteria and have either come to market, or are expected to come to market

Although we expect our markets to remain challenging n 2013, given the strength of our
order book and the size of our pipeline of contract opportumties, our targets for growth
remain unchanged, namely

» To deliver annual revenue growth in support services, with solid single digit growth in 2013

> Towin an average of one in three of the Public Private Partnership projects for which we
bid, in which we can invest equity that generates valuable returns and for which we can
secure long-term support services contracts and good quality construction contracts

> To double our revenue in the Middle East to around £1 billien in the five-year period to
2015, with double digit growth in 2013

> To grow revenue In construction services (excluding the Middle East), with single dignt
growth in 2013

> To double cur revenue in Canada to around £1 billion in the five-year pened to 2015 to
support our targets for growth in both our support services and construction services
{excluding the Middle East) segments

Importantly, we continue to have a strong balance sheet to support the delivery of our
strategy and targets for growth At 31 December 2012, the Group had net borrowing of
£155 8 mulhion and committed bank fachties and peivate placement funding of over £1 billen

Key Performance Indicators for 2013

To support our strategy and the delivery of our targets for growth, we have set Key
Performance Indicators for 2013 n respect of the foliowing cbjectives

> To be an employer of chaice that attracts develops and retains excellent people

> To be a recogrised leader in Health & Safety and Sustainability

» To improve customer satisfaction

> To reduce costs and improve efficiency to support marging

> To deliver cash-backed profit after adusting for the effect on working capital of
having largely completed the planned rescaling our UK construction activities in 2012

Operational nsk management

Canllion has ngorous operational nisk management policies and processes to identily, mitigate
and manage strategic Group-wide nsks and nisks specific to our individual business units and
contracts, Including econemic, social, environmental and ethical risks

Canlhon has a Group Head of Risk who s responsible for

» Adwvising on strategic nsks affecting the Group

> Conducting independent nsk appraisals of all projects prior to them being submitted
to the Major Projects Committee, which 1s 2 Committee of the Board with delegated
authonity to sanction major commitments and transactions, including capital expenditure,
major contracts and business acquisiions and disposals, up to speafied levels of rsk,
beyond which they are referred to the Board

» Qverseeing nsk training across the Group

Our nsk management processes are applied to every aspect of our operations, from choosing
the geagraphies in which we operate, our market sectors and the contracts for which we bid,
to the selection of our customers, partners and suppliers We also apply them to every stage
of a contract, from ats inception to completion, in order to deliver value-for-money services for
our customers and the cash-backed profit we expect

S

Richard Howson
Group Chief Executive
27 February 2013
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I
Strategic Group-Wide Risks
L

The Group’s
principal risks

Group R||sk Forum

Business Unit Iliusk Managers
Cantract RISlk Managers

Tenders for New Contracts

Potential impact

[
Major Projec%s Committee

1
Performance Review Meetings

Contract Performarce Monitonng

Mitigation

Continuing to win contracts
inour existing and new target
markets and gecgraphies,
cansistent with our strategy
for growth and on satisfactory
terms and conditions

Failure to achieve targets for revenue
growth, cash-backed profits and
earnings

>

>

Continually analysing our markets to ensure
we understand the opportunities they offer
Listening to our customers to ensure we
understand their needs

Continually seeking to differentiate

our offenng to ensure i meets customers’ needs
Implementing annual efficiency and cost
reduction programmes to remamn competitive
Behaving in accordance with our values to
support our objective of being the partner

of choice for our customers

Managing our pen};lon schemes
to ensure that scheme labifities
are within a range appropnate
to our capital base

An increase in habiities would reduce
Canlhion’s net assets and adversely
affect the market’s valuation of
Canlhon and its share price

v

The Group's maip defined benefit pension
schemes have been dosed to future accrual
Regularly reviewang our mvesiment policies
to ensure that employee and company
contributions, together with scheme benefits,
remain appropriate

Managing major contracts to
ensure that they are delivered
on time, to budget and to the
reguired standards

Failure to achueve the margins, profits
and the cash flows we expect from
contracts, with consequent damage
to our brand reputation

v

Applying well-defined selectivity criteria to
ensure we take on contracts only where we
understand and can manage the risks involved
Applying our nigorous policies and processes
to morutor and manage contract perfaormance
Ensuring we have high-quality people
delivering projects

Selecung high-quality joint
venture and supply chain
partners

Fallure toc deliver contracts on time and
to budget, with consequent damage to
our brand reputation

Applying selectivity cnieria to ensure we choose
partners and supphers that satisfy our standards
for quality, reliability and financial stability

Attracting, developing and
retaining excellent people by
being an employer of choice

Failure to deliver high-quality services
to our customers, with consequent
effects on profits, brand reputation
and our ability to win new contracts
and achieve our targets for growth

Developing and implementing leadership,
personal development and employee
engagement programmes that encourage
and support all our people to achieve therr
full potenual

Maintaining high standards

of performance in respect of
security, Health & Safety and
other statutory requiremnents

Adverse effects on employee morale
leading 10 Increases In employee
dissatisfaction and employee
turnover rates, together with the
toss of customer, suppher and
partner confidence and consequent
damage to our brand reputation

v

Applying nigorous risk management processes
supported by robust business continuity plans
An ongoing commitment to ‘Target Zero', our
programme to eliminate reportable acadents,
including implementing management systems
that conferm to Occupational Health & Safety
Assessment System 18001

Implementing thorough, mandatory staff
trainuing programmes to support the delivery
of our objectives and to ensure compliance
with our statutory obligations and policies in
respect of ethics and values

Governance Our performance Aboutus
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Underlying profit from operations®
Increased by two per cent to £232.4 mithon,
with the total underlying operating margin
Increasing to 5.7 per cent. Reported profit
from operations increased by 29 per cent
to £198.4 million.

Richard Adam
Group Finance Direclor
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Finanaial reporting segments and analysis

Operating profit by financial 2012 2011@ 5“3"992'3,“.‘
reporting segment fm £m %
Support services 1227 1208 +2
Pubhc Private Partnership projects 338 314 +8
Middle East construction services 290 491 -41
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 724 579 +25
257 8 255 2 -1
Group ehminations and unallocated items (7 8) (95) +18
Profit from operations before Joint Ventures
net financial expense and taxation 2501 2497 -
Share of Jaint Ventures’ net financial expense {16 0) (18 8) +15
Share of Joint Ventures’ taxation “an (35 +51
Underlying profit from operationst? 2324 2274 +2
Intangible amortisation (314) 310) -1
Nan-recurring operating ttems (2 6) 42 8) +94
Reported profit from operations 198 4 1536 +29

Group overview

Cartllion 1s an mtegrated support services company with a substantial portfolio of Public
Private Partnershup projects and extensive construction capabilities Having this wide range
of skills and resources enables the Group o deliver fully integrated solutions for buildings
and infrastructure, from project finance through design and construction to hfetime asset
management The Group has operations in the UK, Canada and the Middle East and North
Africa, as described on pages 4 and 5

Total revenue reduced in 2012 to £4 4 billien (2011 £5 1 bilion), mcluding revenue from
Joint Ventures of £736 6 milhon (2011 £898 0 mullion), primanly because of the rescaling
of UK construction which began in 2010 and was largely complete by the end of 2012

Following the change in treatment of profit from the sale of equity investments in

Public Private Partnership projects, which contributed £13 2 million of profit in 2012

(2011 £11 5 muillion), total underiying proflL from operations™ increased by two per cent to
£232 4 milion (2011 £227 4 mullion®) This included profit from Jamnt Ventures of £34 3 milicn
(2011 £48 7 million), wath the total underlying operating margin increasing to 5 7 per cent
(2011 4 9per cent?)

After a substantial increase in the net financial expense to £17 7 milhon {2011 £3 9 milkon),
which included a significant increase in the interest charge relating to pensions, underlying
profit before taxation'® was four per cent lower at £214 7 million (2011 £223 5 milion®)

Intangible amortisation was £31 4 milhon (2011 £31 0 millon) and non-recurring
operating items and non-operating items together amounted to a charge of £3 8 million
(2011 £49 7 million'®), leaving profit before taxation 26 per cent higher at £179 5 mithon
(2011 £142 8 million}

The underlytng Group taxation charge®™ of £23 5 milion (2011 £27 8 million), when combined
with a taxation charge on Joint Ventures of £1 7 millicn {2011 £3 5 million), represented an
underlying effective tax rate of 12 per cent (2011 14 per cent®) Profit after taxincreased

by 20 per cent to £166 2 mifion (2011 £138 0 milhon) After non-controlling interests

of £6 1 million (2011 £3 4 milion), profit attnbutable to Canllion shareholders was

£160 1 milion (2011 £134 6 million) and basic earnings per share creased by 16 per cent

to 37 2 pence (2011 32 0 pence)

Underlying cash flow from operations® was £97 9 millionand represented 42 per cent of
underlying profit from operations™ (2011 112 per cent®} wath the reduction due primarnily

to the expected working capital outflow attendant on the rescaling of UK construction

In addition, as previously indicated, we received substantial, unexpected payments close to
the 2011 year end, which caused a temporary reduction in net borrowing of some £50 million
at 31 December 2011, which reversed early in 2012, adding some £50 milkon to the outflow
of working capital in 2012 At 31 December 2012, net borrowing was £155 8 milian

(2011 £50 7 mullon}

(1} After Joint Ventures net financial expense of £16 0 milhen (2011 £18 8 milion) and taxation charge of £1 7 million
(2011 £3 5 million) and before intangible amortisabon and non recurring operating items (see note 4 on page 77}

(2) Restated following the change in prasentation of profits on the disposal of Public Pavate Partnership equity investments
from non-operating tems to operating items {amounting o £13 2 milionin 2012 and £11 5 million in 2011)

(3} Befare Joint Ventures net financial expense and taxation wtangible amorisatson and non recuinng operating items
{see note 4 on page 77}

(4) After Joint Ventures taxaton charge of £1 7 million (2011 £3 5 milion) and before intangible amortsaticn non recurring
Qperating items and non operating items (see note 4 on page 77)

{5 Before intangible amertisation nen recurning operating items and non operating stams {see note 4 on page 17)

(6} Before deficit recovery payments and non recurnng operating items and after dmdends receved from loint Ventures

Governance Our performance Abaut us
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In June 2012, the Ministry of Detence awarded
Canlhon a five-year contract worth some

£45 million to provide faclities management
services for the bases used by the United
States Visiting Forces in the UK

(1) Before intangible amortisation and non recurnng
operating 1tems.

(2) Based on expected revenue and secure and probable
orders which exclude vanable work and re brds

Support services

Change from
2012 201 20m
im fm %
Revenue
— Group 214314 2,188
- Share of Jount Ventures 228 3 2254
2,3597 23452 +1
Underlying operating profit®
- Group 1018 1057
- Share of Joint Ventures 209 151
1227 120 8 +2

In this segment we report the results of our facilities management, faciliies services, energy
services, ralf services, road maintenance, utility services and consultancy businesses in the UK,
Canada and the Middle East

Revenue In support services showed a marginal improvement with the expected reduction

In revenue from Carithon Energy Services due to contracts coming to an end, offset by organic
growth in both the UK and Canada Despite a tugh level of bidding activity and the associated
costs and ongoing competitive market pressures, operating performance in this segment
remained strong, with underlying operating profit also marginally ahead as we maintained our
operating margin at 5 2 per cent

New order intake in 2012 remained very healthy, with a substantial number of new contracts and
contract extensions across all the sectors and geographies in which we operate, including several
natable successes In the UK, pressure on Local Authonties to reduce spending continues to create

a substantial pipehne of opportunities as more Authonties look to outsource services to reduce

costs and (ncrease efficiency In Apnil 2012, Carillion was awarded a 10-year contract by Oxfordshire
County Councal to provide integrated property and facilibies management services This contract,
which was the first of 1ts kind to be let inthe UK 15 initially expected to be worth up to £700 million,
but this could potentially increase significantly as the contract 1s extendable to 20 years We also
secured a 10-year strategic partnership with Lancashire County Council to deliver property services,
initially worth up to £150 million, but again with the patential for this 1o increase substantially, as the
contract provides for the scope of services to be expanded considerably I} November 2012, Canillion
achieved financial close on the first major energy services contract that implements the provisions of
the UK Government's ‘Green Deal’ legislation, namely an eight-year contract for Birmingham City
Counal potentially worth up to some £15 billion

In Canada, we won new contracts and successfully re-tud contracts for highways maintenance
worth £525 million In the Middle East, where we are seeing an encreasing number of support
sarvices opporturitres, we had two particularly notable successes, which together will nearly
treble our support services revenue In the region -~ a highways maintenance contract in Qatar
worth £36 million over three years, our first contract of this kind in the region, and our
appointment as the preferred bidder for a facihities management contract for Petroleum
Development Oman worth some £75 milllon over the initial contract period of three years,
which 15 extendable to eight years

Consequently, notwithstanding the in-sourcing of two cantracts by customers, the value
of our support services order book and probable orders was £13 1 billion at the year end
(2011 £12 9 billon) This continues to provide good revenue visibility, which currently
stands at 71 per cent®® of expected revenue for 2013 (2011 79 per cent for 2012)

We have also matntained a strong pipeline of contract opporturities worth some

£11 5 bilion (2011 £12 3 hillian), which supports our overall objective of delivering
annual revenue growth in support services and our target of single digit growth in 2013




Canllion 1s an equity partner in the Special
Purpose Company delivenng the £3 bilion
Royal School of Military Engineenng Public
Private Partnership project Carllion 15 also
delivering the construction of enhanced
traiming facihties and accammaodation for
military personnel, together with new retall,
catering and leisure faciities

1) Restated following the change in presentation of profits
on the disposat of Public Prvate Partnership equity
investmants from non operating items 1o operatny items
(amounting 10 £13 2 millon 1 2012 and £§1 5 milion
n 2011

(2) Before intangible amorusation and non-recurnng
operating iterns

27
Canlion ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Public Private Partnership projects

Change from
2012 201® 201
£m £m %
Revenue
- Group 13 12
- Share of Joint Ventures 286 4 3086
2877 3098 -7
Underlying operating profit®
- Group 173 142
— Share of Joint Ventures 165 172
338 314 +8

In this segment we report equity returns on investrments in Public Private Partnershup (PPP}
projects in the UK and Canada, including those from the sale of equity investments

Qur integrated business model enables us to combine our capabilities in project finance, design,
construction and life-time asset management, to win and deliver PPP projects in which we
make equity investments and for which we also secure long-term support services contracts
and good quality construction contracts These support services and construction services
contracts are reported in our support services and construction services (excluding the Middle
East) segments, respectively

Carnillion has led the market in recycling equity investments, namely selling investments after projects
have passed from construction into the operational phase and reinvesting the proceeds in new
projects Given the strength of our portfolio of financially closed projects and of our pipeling of
project opportunities, we expect to continue recycling equity investments for the foreseeable

future Accordingly, and consistent with the treatment adopted by most of our indusiry, from 2012
onwards profit from selling PPP equity investments 15 betng treated as part of underlying operating
profit, rather than as non-operating profit

Qur portfolio of investments continued to performwell tin 2012, in line with our target internal rate
of return of 15 per cent Durnng the year we sold our equity investments in seven projects - the
Cleadon Park Health Centre and the University of Hertfordshire, together with 90 per cent of our
equity in the Durham, Nottingham, South Tyneside & Gateshead, Tameside and Walverhampton
Building Schoals for the Future'projects These sales generated total gross praceeds of £34 8 million,
which reflected an average discount rate of seven per cent, and an operaung profit of £13 2 million

Revenue reduced tn 2012 as a result of selling equity investments in 2011 and 2012 Operating profit
increased by eight per cent, because the £13 2 millon of profit generated from equity sales in 2012
more than offset the equity returns no longer receved from the investments sold In 2011, equity
sales generated £11 5 milion of operating profit and the previously reported operating profit for
2011 of £19 9 millon has been restated as £31 4 milion to reflect thes change m treatment

At 31 December 2012, we had a portfolio of 23 financially closed projects in which we had invested
£101 3 miflron (2011 £96 © million) of equity and in which we have commitments to invest a further
£85 6 million The Directors’ valuation of existing investments in this portfolio at 31 December
2012, using a nune per cent discount rate, mcreased to £173 million (2011 £164 million) The value
of our arder bock plus prabable orders was approximately £2 2 billion at 31 December 2012

{2011 £2 8 hillion), with the reduction on 2011 due to selling seven equity investments in 2012

The outlogk In this segment 1s posttive, as our pipeline of contract opportunities has increased
substantially to £1 6 bilien (2011 £1 0 bilion) In the UK, we are shorthsted for iwo projects —
the Roya! Liverpool Hospital project, in which we could invest up to £25 milion of equity, and

on which a preferred idder decision 1s expected in the first half of 2013, and the M8 motorway
improverments project, in which we could also invest up to £20 million In Canada, which has a
PPP programme with an estmated value of approximately C$60 billion, we are shortlisted for
three projects — the Kingston Prowident Care Centre and Hamiton Health Saences, in Ontario,
and North island Hospital i Vancouver, Britsh Columbia —in which we could invest up to

£20 milion Furthermore, we aim to increase the number of projects for which we are shortlisted
in Canada to up to seven during 2013, which will be the largest number of PPP projects that we
have ever bid concurrenily In the UK, we expect the recent positive outcome of the Government's
review of prvate finance to lead to a new pipetine of opporiunities, notably in the education and
defence sectors where Carillion has strong track records

Governance Qur performance Aboutus

Financial statements
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Al Futtaim Canllion bult the infrastructure for
the Downtown Dubai development for Emaar
Properties, including roads, utihty works and
underground car parking, together with
1,800 apartments in seven blocks around the
perimeter of this development, in the centre
of which 1s the Bur) Khalifa Tower The total
value of these projects was some £400 mithon

(1} Before ntangible amortisation and non-recurnng
operating items

(2) Based on expected revenue and secure and probable
orders which exclude vanable work and re bids

Middle East construction services

Change from
2012 2011 201
im £m %
Revenue
- Group 2614 2189
—Share of Joint Ventures 212 2 3300
4736 548 9 -14
Underlying operating profit™"
- Group 138 139
— Share of laint Ventures 15 2 352
290 491 -41

In this segment we report the results of our building and ciwil engineering activities in the
Middle East and North Africa

As expected, full-year revenue reduced despite a strong performance tn the secand-half of
2012 to deliver revenue of £272 0 million, which was sigrmificantly higher than first-half revenue
of £201 6 millon Substantal fluctuatons in revenue between accounting periods are not
unusual in the Middte East, because the iming of praject awards can have a sigruficant effect
on revenue, given our strategy 15 to focus on large projects for a semall number of financially
robust customers, for whom quahty and reliability are paramount Operating profit reduced,
reflecting both lower revenue and a lower operating margin of 6 1 per cent (2011 8 9 per cent),
which 15 1n line wath the guidance we have been giving since 2010 that margins i this segment
would reduce to around six per cent as negotiated contracts are replaced by contracts won
through competitive tendering The aperating margin in 2011 also benefited from favourable
outturns on certain projects that reached completion in 2071 and this has not been repeated
In 2012

Although customer decisions on conwract awards have been slower during 2012, we won a
number of significant new contracts during the year Notable successes in 2012 included a
£113 mulhon contract to build a mixed use development for the Oman Public Authority for
Soaab Infrastructure, a £45 million infrastructure contract for EMAL (Emirates Alumintum)
in Abu Dhabi, a £42 million contract 1o buld the Sultan Qaboos Mosque at Nizwa for the
Oman Royal Court Affairs, a £40 mullion contract to const}uct Sidab Harbour for the Royal
Oman Police and a £35 million contract for the Al Baleed Resort Company i Oman

The value of Carillion’s share of the Middle Fast order book and probable orders was

£0 8 biliion at the year end {2011 £1 0 bilhon), which reflects the effect of the slow down in
contract awards Our pipeline of new contract opporturuties of £11 4 bilhon (2011 £11 4 bilhon)
includes opportunities n all the countries In which we currently operate, namely the UAE
(Abu Dhabt and Dubai), Oman, Qatar and Egypt, and also in Saudi Aratia In line with our
strategy of geographical diversification, we have recently agreed a letter of intent to delver
our first major contract in Saudi Arabia With revenue visibility for 2013 of 94 per cent®

(2011 70 per cent for 2042} and a strong pipeline of contract oppertunities, we are confident
of delivering double digit revenue growth in 2013 and of making progress towards our target
of doubling our share of revenue in the Middle £ast 1o around £1 billion over the five year
period from 2010 to 2015 at a margin of around six per cent




in 2012, Canlhon was selected to deliver
further construction wark worth some

£120 million for the Thameshnk Programme,
under Network Rail’s Multi Asset Framework
Agreement As a Delivery Partner to Network
Rail’s Thameshnk Team, Carillion 1s building
improvemeants to support the provision of

a reliable service throughout the

Thameslink route

(1) Before intangible amortsation and non recurring
aperating items

{2) Based on expected revenue and secure and probable
orders which exclude vanable work and re bids
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Construction services
(excluding the Middle East)

Change fram

2012 201 2011
£m £m %
Revenue
—Group 1,272 1 1,813 3
—Share of Jaint Ventures 97 340
1,2818 1,847 3 -31
Underlying operating profit™
- Group 730 54 4
— Share of Joint Ventures (0 6) 35
724 579 +25

In this segment we report the results of our UK building cvl engineering and developments
businesses, together with those of our construction activities in Canada

Qur performance in this segment has continued ta benefit frem the swift action we took

1IN 2010 to begin rescaling our UK business to ensure 1t remained aligned in stze to the
shrinking UK construction market Revenue reduced, largely due to the effect of rescaling

UK construction, but with operating profit :ncreasing as a result of the margin improving to

5 6 percent (2011 31 per cent) The rescaling of our UK business has been achieved through
tightening the critena we use to select the contracts for which we bid in order to avoid low
margin work and to focus increasingly on the delivery of integrated solutions for PPP projects
and support services customers, and projects for other customers with whom we have
long-term relationships

In 2012, UK construction revenue was approximately £0 9 bilion and we believe the process
of rescaling 1s now largely complete Our performance has continued to benefit from taking a
highly selactive approach to the contracts for which we bid, lower bid costs, a ngorous focus
on cost management and posttive settlements on contracts reaching completion Clearly, some
of these benefits arise only because we have been rescaling our UK business But we believe
our strategy has not anly increased profitability during the period of rescaling, but created a
stronger busingss, capable of delvening higher margins than the industry average, as we begin
to target revenue growth going forward

We won a number of significant new contracts in 2012, consistent with our selective approach
In the UK, these included contracts for the Highways Agency worth around £250 milion to
Canlhon, including two major projects that were allocated funding in the Government’s
pre-budget statement, namely the A1(M) upgrade between Leeming and Barton and the
AS-M1 Iink road scheme, which we are delivering with Joint Venture partners In addition we
secured a £45 milhon contract to reconfigure Pier 5 at Gatwick Airport, a £42 millon contract
far Argent In Manchester and Academy Schools contracts worth over £40 million Since the
year end, Canllicn has also been awarded a £115 million contract to upgrade the A465 in Wales

As previously announced, we expected canstruction revenue in Canada to reduce and in 2012
1t contributed some £0 4 billion of revenue to this segment 2011 £0 5 bilion} In Canada,
where we also apply strict contract selectivity critena, a key element of our strategy for
achieving strong medium-term growth 1s to win PPP projects New PPP programmes, worth in
total some C$60 billion, were launched in Canada towards the end of 2011 and bidding on FPP
projects that form part of these programmes is now well underway and we have already been
shortlisted for three projects, with a constructson value to Carillion of some £0 5 billion During
2013, we aim to increase the number of projects for which we are shorthsted to up to seven,
as we continue to beheve the strength of our PPP offering will piay a key part in enabling us to
achieve our objective of doubling total revenue tn Canada to around £1 billion, in the five year
period from 2010 to 2015

At the year end, we had orders and probable orders in this segment worth some £2 0 billion
(2011 £2 4 bilhon}, with the reduction on 2011 primarily due to the rescaling of our UK
business Revenue visibility for 2013 1s currently 72 per cent® (2011 72 per cent for 2012)
Encouragmgly our pipeline of contract opportunities at 31 December 2012 increased to

£10 7 billion (2011 £8 4 billion), which not only mcludes significant opportunittes in Canada,
but also opportunities in the UK, especially aver the medium term In 2013 our target s to
delwver single digit revenue growth in this segment, with our operating margin remaining
above the industry average

Governonce Our performance About us
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In the Middle East, we have an increasing
number of opportunities to grow our support
services activities In 2012 Canlflion was
appointed as the preferred bidder for a
facilities management contract for Petroleumn
Development Oman This will be our largest
ever support services contract in the region,
weorth some £75 million over three years

and extendable to eight years

(1} Restated following the change in presentation of
profits from the disposal of Public Private Partnership
equity iInvestments from non-operating items to
operabing items {amounting to £13 2 millicn in 2012
and £11 5 million in 2011)

(2) Before intang/ble amortisabon non recurnng
operating tems and non-operating tems

Group Income statement

Intangible amortisation

Intangible amorusation of £31 4 millen (2017 £31 0 million) related to the amortisation of
intangible assets pnmarily ansing from the acquisitions of Eaga (since re-branded as Canllion
Energy Services) in 2011, Alfred McAlpine in 2008 and Mowlem 1n 2006

Non-recurring operating items

The non-recurning operating charge of £2 € milhon 2011 £42 8 million) related to a payment
made to the Canllion Energy Services Employee Share Scheme in heu of Canlion dividends
walved by the Eaga Partnership Trusts of £2 6 millon The Eaga Partnership Trusts hold 3 9 per
cent of Canllion’s 1ssued share capital, which they acquired as a result of Canllion’s acquisition
of Canlhon Energy Services in 2011

Non-operating items

The non-operating charge of £1 2 milion (2011 £6 9 million®) comprised £0 9 million of costs
relating to the acquisition of the Bouchier Group and £0 3 million of costs assocated with the
closure and disposal of small non-core businesses

Net financial expense

The Group’s net financia! expense of £17 7 rmullion (2011 £3 9 million) compnsed the following
items a net expense of £21 5 mlion 2011 £14 0 milhon) in respect of borrowings and other
lhabiities, with the increase compared to 2011 largely due to higher barrowings, a net interest
charge in respect of defined benefit pension schemes of £3 6 milhion (2011 £3 2 milhon credit),
with the movement due primarnily to a reduction in the AA bond yield and interest received in
respect of loans to PPP loint Venture projects of £7 4 million 2011 £6 3 milhon)

Taxation

The underlying Group taxation charge? of £23 5 milion {2011 £27 8 million) when combined
with a taxation charge on Joint Ventures of £1 7 millien (2011 £3 5 mullion), represented an
underlying effective 1ax rate®® of 12 per cent (2011 14 per cent) This is significantly below
the UK standard rate of corparation tax of 24 5 per cent for 2012, because our profits in the
Middle East are subject to zero or low rates gf tax, agreement of certain histonic tax 1ssues
with HM Revenue and Customs and because we utilise carried forward tax losses in the UK
that were largely inhented with the acquisitions of Mowlem, Alfred McAlpine and Cartllion
Enargy Services At 31 December 2012, the Group had £250 million of corporate tax losses
(2011 £348 millicn} that are available to reduce future tax payments

Earnings per share

Underlying earnings per sharet® reduced by six per cent to 43 0 pence, compared with the
restated figure for 2011 of 45 7 pence™ The weighted average number of shares in 1ssue in 2012
was 430 1 million (2011 420 9 mulhon), with the increase due to the full-year effect of I1ssuing

30 & million of shares in respect of the acquisition of Canllion Energy Services in Aprit 2011

Dividend

Carilion has a progressive dividend policy that ams to increase the dividend per share broadly
in ine with growth in underlying earnings per share'?, subject tc the investment needs of the
business The Board has recommended a final dwvidend of 11 85 pence per share for 2012,
making the proposed full-year dividend 17 25 pence per share {2011 16 9 pence per share),
an ncrease of two per cent on the total paid in respect of 2011 The Board's decision to
recommend an increase In the dividend, despite underlying earmings per share®in 2012
remaining unchanged on 2011 before restatement and some six per cent lower than
underlying earnings per share in 2011 after restatement, reflects the Board’s confidence in
the Group’s resiience and ability to achieve 1ts medium-term growth targets Dividend cover
based on the proposed full-year dividend of 17 25 pence per share and underlying earnings
per share@ 15 2 5 times (2011 2 7 times™)




Canrlien 15 one of four contractors appointed
by the UK Highways Agency to deliver
Managed Motorway schemes in England
These schemes involve the nstallation of
variable speed fimits and hard shoulder
runnng to reduce congestion and improve
safety during peak perods

n
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Cash flow
Summary of the Group's cash flow

2012 201

£fm £m

Underlying Group operating profit 198 1 1787
Depreoation and other non-cash items 224 321
Working capnal (136 2) 51
Dvidends receved from Joint Ventures 136 396
Underlying cash inflow from operations 979 2555
Deficit pension contributions (30 2) (362)
Rationalisauon costs (28 6) (34 4)
Interest, tax and dwidends (872) 771
Net capital (expenditure)/income (15 6) 46
Acquisitions and disposals (32 6) (276 6)
Other 8 8) &7
Change in net borrowing (105 1) {1709)
Net (borrowing)/cash at 1 January (50 7) 1202
Net borrowing at 31 December (155 8) {(507)

(1) Restated following the change in presentation of profits from the disposal of Public Private Partnership equity investments

from non operating items to operating items (amounting to £13 2 millign in 2012 and £11 5 rillion 1n 2011}

Strong cash management remains a prionty and this has been reflected in the Group’s track
record of consistently delivening cash-backed profit However, as expected, this was not the
case in 2012, when cash flow from operations represented 42 per cent of underlying profit
from operations This was primarily due to two previously announced reasons First, when
we announced our decision In 2010 1o rescale our UK construction activities, we indicated
that, while this would have significant overall benefits for the Group, 1t would also result in

a substantial outflow of working capital, some £80 mullion of which occurred in 2012

Second, as we indicated when presenting our 2011 results, net borrowing at 31 December

201|‘I was some £50 milhen lower than we expected, because we received substantia

payments from customers close to the year end This resulted in 3 tempaorary reduction in
net borrowing at 31 December 2011 that reversed early in 2012, adding some £50 mullian
to the outflow of working capital in 2012 Adjusting for these two factors, underlying cash
flow from oaperations was 98 per cent of underlying profit from operations

Deficit recovery payments to the Group's pension funds of £30 2 million remain in line wath
the agreement reached in 2010 with the Trustees of the Group’s main defined benefit schemes
The £28 6 miflion of rationalisation costs primarily relate to the integration of Canllion Energy
Services Interest, tax and dividend payments of £87 2 milion inctuded higher interest and
dividends payable due to the acquisition of Canllion Energy Services Net capital expenditure
of £15 6 milion included £18 3 mullion of capital investment, net of proceeds received from
disposals of £2 7 million Net payments of £32 6 million in respect of acquisitions and disposals
primarily comprised net eguity Investments in Joint Ventures of £20 1 million and Bouchier

acquisition related payments of £10 1 million

The above items, together with other payments of £8 8 million, resulted 1n a change in

net borrowing of £105 1 million, leaving the Group with net borrowing of £155 8 million

at 31 December 2012 (2011 £50 7 milhon)

Balance sheet
Summary of the Group's balance sheet

2012 20m

£m fm
Property, plant and equipment 1271 1342
Intangible assets 1.5401 15476
Investments 2379 2109

1,9051 1,8927

Inventories, receivables and payables (460 6) (607 4)
Net retirement benefit lability (net of tax) (269 9) (2293)
Other (9 3) (22 8)
Net operating assets 1,165 3 1,0332
Net borrowing {155 8) (507)
Net assets 1,0095 9825
Average net borrowing (344 1) (218 9y

(2} Post acquisition of Canillion Energy Services
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Canllion Energy Services (s fitting an
increasing number of EcoPod heating
systems, a revelutionary energy efficiency
solution EcoPod combines a wide range

of technologies, including highly efficient
cascade bailers with biomass, ground source
and gas absorption heat pumps and thermal
solar panels, to deliver savings on annual
heating bills of up to 43 per cent EcoPod 15
fully commussioned and working prior to
delivery and can be fitted, or retrofitted,
externally or internally, to apartment blocks
offices, hotels, schools and hospitals

There are three notable movernents in the table on page 31 First, the movement in inventories,
receivables and payables, which reflected the movement in working capital described in the
commentary on the summary cash flow statement on page 31 Second, the increase in the
Group's net retirement benefit iabiity, which was pnmanly dee to a reduction in the AA bond
yield, which 1s used as the discount rate in calculating retirement scheme obligations Third, the
increase In average net borrowing, which 1s largely due to the working capital movement
descnbed in the commentary on the summary cash flow statement on page 31

Retirement benefits

Detailed information on the Group's pension arrangements can be found in note 31 on pages
100 to 105 of the consolidated financial statements The Group operates pension arrangements
for the benefit of eligible employees The Group has 15 defined benefit schemes, which have

a total pension obligation amounting to £2,363 3 million (the ‘labilities’) Total pension assets
relating to these liabilities are £2,012 3 million, giving a deficit of £351 0 million before deferred
tax and £269 9 million after deferred tax

The Board devotes signtficant time and resources to managing the Group's pension schemes
and therr inherent risks, through the following committees

> ABoard sub-committee, which 1s specifically tasked with monitoring and managing
defined benefit pension arrangements

> An executive committee, which reperts to the Board Committee, and comprises the Group
Finance Director, Group Financial Controller and Group Head of Reward The executive
committee meets monthly to consider pension 1ssues and to oversee the implementation
of the following pohcies in respect of defined benefit pensicn arrangements

The Group operates the following polices in respect of defined benefit pension arrangements

> Defined benefit pensions should not be offered to employees except where required under
legislation or to meet the requirements of work-winning

> Where defined benefits need to be offered to meet legislative ar work-winning
requirements, business protogols are in place to manage the nisk involved and tc ensure
that the nisk and costs are fully factored into priang

> Investment risks should be monitored and gradually reduced commensurate with a
balanced approach to nsk and cost

In line with these policies, three of the Group’s principal schemes, the Canllion Staff, Mowlem
Staff and Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan, are closed to new entrants and members na longer
accrue benefits for future service

As noted above the tota! defiat included in the Group's balance sheet at 31 December 2012
in relation to defined benefit schemes amounted to £357 0 mihon (2011 £305 8 millicn)
The increase in the net deficit since the end af 2011 1s pnmanly due to a reductien in the
AA Bond rate which 1s used as the discount rate 1o calculate scheme habihities

Dunng 2012 discussians with the Trustees commenced n respect of valuations and revised
funding arrangements for the Group's prnincipal defined benefit schemes It 1s antiapated that
the valuations and revised funding arrangements will be concluded during the course of 2013
The Groug has committed funding arrangements across all its defined benefit schemes which
amount to around £34 million per annum, 1n the short term Each scheme has its own specific
funding arrangement and these funding arrangements will be reviewed following subsequent
valuations

The key assumptions used in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 'Employee benefits’
defict position are summarnised below

2012 2011
% %
Discount rate 455 48
Inflaticn
RPI 29 30
CPl 205 19
Salary mcrease 34 35
Expected return on assets
Equities/Property 705 695
Gilts 305 295
Corporate Bonds 415 455
Cash 05 05
Average allocation of assets
Equities/Preperty 48 48
Gilts 18 20
Corporate Bonds 32 3N
Cash 2 1




Carilhion provides 2 total faclities
management service, Including energy
efficiency services, for the Nationwide
Buillding Society’s administration estate and
1its 800 high-street branches throughout
the UK
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The discount rate of 4 55 per cent 1s based on AA bond yields appropnate to the liabihty duration
The RPIinflation rate of 2 9 per cent 1s based on the duration denved market implied RPI

The pension habilities of the Group are subject to fluctuations ansing from changes in the key
assumplions above that are deterrmined by general market conditions, which are outside the
control of the Group In particular, a 0 1 per cent reduction in the discount rate would increase
the overall deficit by around £42 million, whilst a 0 1 per cent increase in the inflation rate
would mcrease the overall dehat by around £38 million

The Group's ongoing total pensions charge against profit n 2012 amounted to £25 9 million
(2011 £29 3 million)

Acguisition of the Bouchtrer Group

The Group acguired a 49 per cent interest in the Bouchier Group, a support services company
in Canada, on 11 December 2012 for a cash consideration of £23 8 million The consideration
will be paid in instalments over the period 10 January 2014, with instalments adjusted to
ensure that the acquisitien s completed on a debt free, cash free basis Following a provisional
assessment of the fair value of assets and habilities at the acquisition date, goodwill arising on
this acquisittcn amounted to £20 8 million

The Group has options to acquire the remaining 51 per cent of the Bouchier Group over the
next 10 years The Bouchier Group 15 being consolidated as a subsichary on the basis of the
terms of these options and the powers granted as a shareholder which enable Canllion
management to exert control

Share price

Canllion's share price was 317 0 pence at the close of business on 31 December 2012, an
increase of 5 4 per cent on the dosing price on 31 December 2011 of 300 8 pence Canllion’s
total shareholder return increased 1in 2012 by 121 per cent, compared with an increase In the
return for the FTSE 350 of 12 O per cent

Commutted bank facilities and private placements ’J

The Group has committed bank facfities and private placement funds of £1,062 5 milhon

This compnises a £737 5 mullion syndicated five-year faclity matuning in March 2016 and a
£15 0 million 364-day facility together with borrowing of £310 million under three private
placements a £100 million placement that commenced i August 2011, compnsing a £49
millien seven-year facility at 4 38 per ¢ent per annum and a £51 million 10-year facility at 5 1
per cent per annum, a £35 million placement in August 2012 split equally between seven year
and 10-year notes at 3 6 per cent and 4 2 per cent respectively, and a £175 million US dollar
denominated placement that commenced 1n November 2032, comprnising a £15 million five-year
facility at 3 5 per cent per annum, a £50 million seven-year facility at 4 3 per cent per annum,
a £88 million 10-year facility at 4 9 per cent per annum and a £22 rillion 12-year facility at

5 0 per cent per annum

Funding and hquidity

In addition to Canlhon plc's principal borrowing faciities described above, meney market and
short-term overdraft faciities are available to Canthon plc and certain subsidianes Operating
and finance leases are also employed to fund longer-term assets The gquantum of committed
borrowing facilities available to the Group s regularly reviewed by the Carllion Board and is
designed to satisfy the requirements of the Group’s business ptan At 31 December 2012, the
Group had undrawn committed fachities amounting to £288 6 million (2011 £356 1 millan)
This exciudes the Group’s share of cash balances amounting to £49 4 million (2011 £94 2
million} within jointly controlled operations, which are outside of the Group's faclities

Operational and financial nsk management

The application of rigorous nisk management policies and processes plays an essential role
in Carilhion's success These policies and processes are firmly embedded in our culture and
designed to identify, mitigate and manage strategic risks and those specific to individual
bustnesses and contracts, including econornic, social, environmental and ethical nsks Our
operational nsk management pohaes and processes are described in more detatl on pages
22 and 23 of the Group Chief Executive’s review, together with a summary of the Group’s
principal nsks and the measures we have taken to mitigate them

Treasury policy and finanaal risk management

The Group has a centralised Treasury function whose primary role 1s to manage funding,
hquidity and finanaial nisks In addition, Treasury sources and adrministers contract bond

and guarantee facilities for the Group Treasury is not a profit centre and does not enter

Into speculative transactions The Board sets pelicies within which Treasury operates that
ensure the most effective finanang of the Group’s operations and imit exposure to financial
nsk The areas of sgnificant financial risk facing the Group relate to funding and liquidity,
counterparty risk, foreign exchange and Interest rates

Governance Our performance About us
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Carilhon is a delivery partner of Argent
forits £2 billion redevelopment project

at Kings Cross in London This mixed-use
development, which is transforming the area
involves the construction of some 50 new
bulldings and associated frastructure,
including commercial and retall premises,
schools, community faciliies and apartments

Counterparty risk

The Group undertakes significant finanoal transactions only with counterparties that have
strong credit ratings  Credit exposures to counterparties are monitored regularly so that
exposure to any one counterparty is either within Board approved limits or approved by
the Board

Country risk

The Group has overseas activities in Canada, the Middle East, where our operaticns are
based in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Oman and Qatar, and in Egypt, in which we have one project
that accounted for less than two per cent of the Group's total revenue in 2012

Through our strategy of creating a wel-balanced and geographically diversified business,

we seek to minimise the political and socio-economic risks to our business We also seek to
mitigate the risks attendant on our overseas activities by ensuring that we operate only where
we can apply high standards of corporate governance and corporate social responstbility and
by regularly repatriating profits and cash to the UK We currently have no operations in
mainland Europe and therefore no diract exposure to the risks attendant on cperating in
eurozone countrnies The overseas countries (n which we operate were largely unaffected by
the global banking cnisis, with the exception of Dubal, which has been supported by Abu Dhabi
and s now showing signs of recovery, with increased levels of investment in infrastructure
projects Our strategy in the Middle East and North Africa of focusing on a small number of
finanaially robust customers has enabled our businesses in the region te maintain healthy
operating cash flows and remain finanaally independent

The nsk of pohtical instability in Canada 1s yjudged to be minimal, as Canada has a stable
parhiamentary democracy In the Middle East, we have deliberately based our activities in
countries with a hustory of socal stability and we have been unaffected by the unrest seen
elsewhere in the Middle East Soaal unrest in Egypt affected the one project we have there,
causing us to suspend construction work for a few weeks early 1n 2011, but since then work
an this project has continued normally While the potential for political unrest and conflict

in the Middle East and North Afnica to escalate or to spread to countnes so far unaffected
remains a possibility, we believe our policy of focusing on countries with a histary of stability,
together with our ngorous corporate governance and finanaial management policies and
processes provides adequate mitigation against these risks

Foreign exchange

The Group hedges all sgrificant currency transaction exposures using foreign exchange risk
management techniques In order to protect the Group’s halance sheet from the impact of
exchange rate volatility, foreign currency net assets are hedged using matching currency
loans equivalent to at least 60 per cent of the net asset value, where these assets exceed the
equivalent of £10 million Profits ansing within overseas subsidiaries are not hedged unless it
15 planned to make a distribution Such distributions are then treated as currency transactions
and hedged accordingly The Group's US dollar denominated private placernent finanaing is
hedged using cross-currency denvatives

The average and year-end exchange rates used to translate the Group’s overseas operations
were as follows

Average Year End
£sterlng 2012 201 2012 201
Middle East (US Dollar) 159 161 163 155
Qman (Rial} 061 062 063 060
UAE (Dirham) 584 5490 597 571
Canada {Dcllar) 159 158 162 158

Interest rates

The Group's £737 5 millien five-year syndicated borrowing facility and £15 0 rmullion 364-day
borrowing faclity are at floating rates of interest finked to the London InterBank Offered Rate
The Group’s £31¢ 0 million of private placement funding 1s at various fixed interess rates

Other than in respect of Public Private Partnership projects noted on page 35, the Group

has not entered into interest rate dervatives to fix or hedge interest rate nsk and currently none
ara outstanding [n addition to the Group’s private placerment funding, certain longer-term
assets have been financed at fixed interest rates
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Canllion has invested equity in @ number of Joint Venture Special Purpose Companies (SPC) to
deher Public Private Partnership projects $PCs abtain funding for these projects in the form of
long-term bank loans or corporate bonds without recourse to the Joint Venture pariners and
secured on the assets of the SPC A number of SPCs have entered into interest rate derivatives
as a means of hedging interest rate sk These dervatives are interest rate swaps that effectively
fix the rate of interest payable

Credit nisk
An analysis of the Group’s credit risk 1s provided in note 27 on pages 94 and 35

Going concern

The Group's business activiiies, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position, the financial position of the Group, its cash flows, lquidity position
and borrowing facilities are descnibed on pages 6 to 35, entidled 'Our Performance” In addition,
note 27 on pages 32 to 96 of the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk management objectives, details of its
financizl instruments and hedging actwities and 1ts exposures to credit and liquidity nsk

The Group has consrderable financial resources together with long-term contracts vath a
number of customers and suppliers across different geographic areas and industries As a
consequence, the Directors believe that the Group 1s well-placed to manage 1ts business nisks
successfully despite the current uncertain economc outlook

The Directors confirm that after making enguines, they have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adept the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements

Richard Adam FCA
Group Finance Director
27 February 2013

Governance Our performance About us
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Sustamability review

Sector leading
performance

In this sectton of our
Annual Report we
provide a summary
of what we are doing
to make our business
more sustainable

For a more detailed
account, please

see our 2012
Sustainability
Report, which will

be published on our
website in Apnl 2013.

Enabling low-carbon economies

Obyectives

Our services will help Canllion s customers
work towards carbon neutrality se
together we become the lowest carbon
producers in our respective sectors

<

Protecting the environment

Objectives
We will work with our customers and
suppliers to be best-in-class in reducing

waste managing use of waler and raw
matenals and protecting brodiversity
wherever we operate

Supporting sustainable communities

= - Objectives
Our leadership In creating employment
kg and skils opportunuties coupled with
our understanding of the needs of our
communities will ensure we havea
significant and positive contribution
everywhere we work

Providing better prospects for our people

Objectives
We will maximise the prospects of our
people by offering opportunities for

learring and development and create
safe healthy places to work

Leading the way 1n our sector

Cbjectives

We will be recognised as the benchmark
in sustainability and innovation in tun
driving demand as the service pravder of
choice for custorners

4

Qur sustainability strategy

Building a successful business

Objectives
Through ¢ur sector leadership and role
In creating a mare sustainable economy

we will Increase shareholder vatue

Our sustainabihity vision s to be recognised as a leading sustainable business and the leading
sustainable support services company Our 2020 strategy supports our business strategy and
growth plans for the remainder of this decade, by effectively managing the sustainability risks

and opportunities for Canllion

Our strategy focuses on sharing knowledge and working ctosely with customers and suppliers
to deliver sustainable solutions that reach beyond our immediate operations We are consciously
driving this strategy externally helping our customers 10 meet therr sustainability objectives,
while contributing to the creation of a low-carbon economy and supporting vibrant, healthy
communities We understand that to be recogrused as a leader, we have to manage the impacts
and opportunities of our contracts, sernces and supply chains




Simon Webb {nght), Managing Director of
Al Futtaimn Cardhion collecting the award for
Sustainability Init:ative of the Year on behalf
of Al Futtam Carithon in the Construction
Week Awards 2012
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Our sustainabilty efforts contnbute directly to our corporate sirategy to deliver sustainable,
profitable growth by, for example

> Enabling us to win and retain more contracts

> Attracting and retaining the best people

> Enhanang our reputation in the marketplace and among our stakeholders
> Reducing operating costs and risk

> Maintaining our hicence to operate

We believe that championing sustainability 15 critical to the long-term success of our business
and this strategy will help us to maintain our position as sector leader

Building a successful business
Our 2020 sustanability strategy is driven directly by the Carllion plc Board and 1s i/mplemented
and monitored within robust governance frameworks

Qur Board 15 supported by a Sustainability Advisory Commutitee chaired by our Chief Executive,
Richard Howson, and includes our Group Finance Director and a number of senior managers
The Commuttee also benefits from expert advice from two independent adwisors, Dame Julia
Cleverden, Vice President of Business in the Community (BITC) and Special Advisor to the
Prince’s Chanties and Jonathon Porniit Founder Director of Forum for the Future

Supporting the Sustainabihty Advisory Committee, we bave a Group Sustainabibty Forum of
our senjor business leaders which 1s chaired by our Chief Sustainability Officer, Tom Robinson
The Forum informs the development of our sustainability strategy, shares best practice and
ensures the effective disserminatton of our sustanability strategy and policies to each business
unit All our businesses have a sustainability plan and objectives, which form an integral part
of therr annual business plans

The Group’s sustainability targets are bhased on 43 specific and measurable targets to
be achieved by 2020 To drive continual improvement, we set ambitious targets and our
performance against them 1s independently vepfied A detaled account of our progress
against these targets will be included in our 2012 Sustamability Report which will be

published in April 2013

In 2011, we achieved a ‘Plaunum’ ranking in Business in the Commumity’s Corporate
Responsibility Index for the third year running with a score of 97 per cent The index involves

a detalled, independent assessment of Carilhon’s sustainabiity strategy, management processes
and performance Such assessments enable us to benchmark our performance against other
companies, including those in different market sectors Our objective 1s to at least match our
2011 ranking when the 2012 index 1s published in April 2013

Carillion continues to be a membar of the FTSE4Good Index and in 2012 we submutted a full
respanse to the Carbon Disclosure Project In 2012, we also maintained our Certified Emissions
Measurement and Reduction Scheme (CEMARS) accreditation

There were a number of notable highlights in 2012

> In the Middle East and North Africa, we won the Arabia CSR Award and the
Construction Week Sustainabiily Award for the second year, in addition to being
highly commended in the CSR Award category

> We became key partners in the UK Government’s Green Deal and a Gold Leaf
Member of the UK Green Bullding Council

> We celebrated our 500th work placement and 200th job outcome through the
Business Action on Homelessness partnership, becoming the largest-scale corporate
delivery pariner

In 2012, we continued to deliver specific sustainability targets for each of our businesses
and for the Group as a whole, focusing on a number of objectives, induding the following

> Reducing waste sent to landfilt to zero by 2015 - in 2012 86 per cent of our waste
was diverted from landfill, compared with 82 per centn 2011

> Contrnibuting at least 1 per cent of our prohits, in cash and kind, to good causes —
in 2012, we contnbuted over £2 million

> Customer perception - in our 2012 market perception survey, Canliion's overall rating
was commeraially acceptable, with market-leading ratings for some of our businesses

Enabling low carbon economies

By partnenng with others we are well placed to tackle the globa! challenge of climate
change, and to harness the opportunities presented by low-carbon markets We are
helping our customers work towards carbon neutrality, so that together we become the
Jowest carbon producers i our respective sectors

Governance Qur performance About us

Financial statements
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Sustainability review

continued

Merseyside MPs, Joe Benton and Steve
Rotheram, visited the Carillion Training
Centre in Liverpool, where they met

Alison Valentine, Canlhon Traimng Centre
manager and Canllion trainees Carilion

15 one of the largest private sector providers
of training services in the UK, with up to
2,000 apprentices in training each year

We calculate and pubhish details of our carbon footprint annually In 2010, Carillion registered
with the UK Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme, which applies
mandatory emissian cuts to large commercial and public sector orgarusations We instalied
smarl meters across our work sites to provide instant, accurate measurements of the electnoiy
gas and o1l used to power our offices, site accommodation and construction projects

We also submit data to the Carbon Disclosure Project {CDP) - an independent, not-for-profit
organisation that aims to increase transparency and promote climate change data as a factor
in business, policy and investment decisions

Canliion Energy Services (CES) 1s the UK's leading independent provider of energy efficiency
services, capable of creating major new opportunities in the energy services market With
sector-leading expertise in energy effioency solutions, we are in a position to transform the
sustainable energy market in the UK In 2012 we delivered energy efficiency savings for our
customers reducing carben by 3 7 million tonnes

In 2012, CES became a key delivery partner of the Green Deal, a UK Government initiative to
help householders and businesses save money through energy efficency In 2012, Canllion was
awarded the Birmingham Energy Savers (BES) contract worth up to £1 5 hillion over eight years
This 1s a jomt initiative wath Birmingham Crty Counail, initsally ta refurbish around 60,000 homes
and non-domestic buldings with energy-saving measures, such as insulation and new hoilers
This contract also enables other Local Authorities in the West Midlands to take advantage of
the energy-saving measures that CES 15 providing to Birringham City Counail

Protecting the environment

Across all our operations, protecting the environment Is fundamental to the way we work

We seek to manage our environmental mpacts by using natural resources efficiently, sourcing
responsibly, protecting biodsversity and reducing waste — and by helping our customers do
the same

We are proud 1o report that all of our UK and Middle East and North Africa (MENA)
operations are certified to the 1SO 14001 international standard Canltion’s Canadian Joint
Venture, TWD Roads Management, 1s also certified Our standards are subject to audits by
an external verification company

In 2011, we set a target for all permanent UK contracts and projects to capture water
consumption data and keep momtaring this every year in order to reduce our water
consumption by 25 per cent by 2015

Our strateqgic target 1s to send zero non hazardous waste to landfill by 2015 For us, this is not
Just an emvironmental imperative, but a valuable efficiency driver in a competitive market The
absolute volume of waste we produce declined in 2012 as a result of determined efforts across
our gperations to cut costs and protect the environment

We work not only to pratect the biodiversity of sites and neighbouring land across the projects
in which we are involved, but to enhance it We assess our impact on biodiversity through our
Biodiversity Risk Assessment Process, a requirement on all contracts In 2012, we updated the
assessments and action plans to cover restoration activities and better reflect the current
brodiversity 1ssues across our regions We have also conunued the Carillion Natural Habitats
Fund, which we set up 1n 2001, to support The Wildlife Trusts Our donations and employee
volunteering help The Wildlife Trusts' essential habitat and conservation work, and to date

the fund has supported 60 projects with grants totalling over £370 000

Supporting sustainable communities

Doing business within thrving communities 1s vital for aur future growth Strong commuruties
provide a loyal customer base, a pipelne of skilled people, a balanced awvil society, resiient
supply chains and long-term investors

In 2012, we increased our focus on getting people into employment through the Business
Action on Homelessness Ready for Wark Programme We offered 188 placements in 2012
(against a target of 145 and our highest number to date), which resulted in 77 people gainmng
employment, 25 with Carillign, eight with our supply chain partners and the remaining 44 with
other employers By working in collaboration wath our partners and our people, Carillion 1s now
offering more work placements under the Ready for Work Pregramme than any of the other
140 corporate supporters in the UK

We are proud to have been a partner of the UK Government agency, Jobcentre Plus, since
2007 This agency 1s now our largest provider of employees, helping us to recruit 432 people
In 2012

Since 2001, we have given at least one per cent of our annual pre-tax profits to chantable and
communuty causes through a combination of cash and in-kind denations including ume spent
by Canllion employees working on community and chanty projects




Find ocut more
www canlhonplc com/fsustainability
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We beleve that by engaging with community and charity groups, we increase the morale and
motvation of our people while delivering tangible benefits 1o the communities in which we
work We are delighted to support the diverse and enterprising volunteering efforts of our
people across many different sectors, which also add value to our business through the
development of skills and community engagement In line with this, we have processes in place
to allow employees the opportunity to use their warking time to support external iInitiatives

Providing better prospects for our people

Carilhion's success reltes on our ability to attract and retan a diverse range of talented
employees from thriving communities The health, safety, wellbeing, and development of
our people are of utmost importance We have provided more detatls on our performance
against Key Parfoermance Indicators on page 11

Carlhon recognises that one of its greatest sustainability impacts 1s the proviston of
employment both within our business directly and also through our sub-contractors and
suppliers Where feasible, we are committed to sourcing our employees locally in the areas
where we work, helping to improve economic prospects reduce the carbon footprint of our
activines provide skils traiming for the local population and support sustainable communities

Our annual S Factor competition celebrates inspiring examples of individuals across the business
who have gone the extra mile in the name of sustainabiity 2012 saw over 200 applications
submitted from across the Group The overall winner was Piccadilly Estate Management Team
where the team has reduced CO, emissions by 250 tonnes and water consumption by 200,000
htres annually This equates to approximately £30,000 saved, which 15 passed straight back to
the tenants in the bullding The competitson was a great success and demonstrated the high
level of engagement in sustainability across the Group

Leading the way in our sector

Sustainable leadership 1s about bringing others along the journey By involving customers
and suppliers, we can fulfil our vision to be the provider of choice for delivering, managing,
and servicing assets

As well as our ongoing interactian and relationship-building with customers, there are formal
feedback points built into the cantract Iifecycle at whichwe ask our customers to share therr
perspectives Our annual customer satisfaction survey 1s carned out by an independent
company to encourage honest feedback Al feedback 15 communicated to the business

and action plans are developed to address improvements The survey also includes a number
of questions relating to sustainability, which help us to track our performance against our
strategy In the 2012 survey, Canllion achieved an overall rating that exceeded a commercially
acceptabie tevel, with market-leading ratings for our civil engineenng and buillding actrnties

Globally, Canlhon buys a wide variety of products and services and has an annual procurement
spend of more than £3 billion We therefore have a significant opporturuty to extend our
influence and values beyond our immediate business Our ‘Leading the Way” strategy focuses
on the following objectives

> Purchasing responsibly and ethically sourced products and matenals

> Ensuring all timber sourced meets Forest Stewardship Council or equivalent standards

> Targeting our top suppliers to collaborate on developing enhanced sustainable products
and services

> Benchmarking supplers through Carillion's accreditation process and providing guidance
to help those who meet only our basic requirements to improve

> Maximising local spend and employment, including spend with small and medium-size
enterprises

As a major consumer of timber, we are committed to the respensible procurement of these
products We aim to source all forest products (including those sourced by subcontraciors on
our behalf) from weli-managed forests, which have been certified 1o Forestry Stewardship
Counct! (FSC) or equivatent standards Canllion’s joinery workshop in Oman part of our Middle
East and North Africa (MENA) business 1s the only operator in the country to have FSC chain of
custody certification, providing assurance on the responsible sourcing of our timber products
In 2012, this initiative won the Construction Week Sustainabiity Oman Award

Governance QOur performance About us

Financiol statements
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Board of Directors

01 02

01 Philip Rogerson 3,4

Chairman

Philtp was appointed to the Beard in October
2004, becoming Chairman i May 2005

He 1s Chairman of both the Nominations
Committee and the Business Integrity
Commuittee Philip 1s alse Chairman of Bunzl
plc and De La Rue plc He was an Executive
Director of BG plc from 1992 to 1998, latterly
as Deputy Chairman He 1s a Fellow of both
the Institute of Chartered Accountants and
the Institute of Corporate Treasurers Age 68

02 Richard Howson 3

Group Chief Executive

Richard has been Group Chief Executive since
1 January 2012 He served as the Chief
Operating Officer from September 2010 to
31 December 2011 having been appo:nted
te the Board 1n December 2009 as Executive
Director with responsibility for the Middle
East, North Africa and UK Construction
businesses and for the Group's Health &
Safety and Sustainabiity programmes Prior
to appointment to the Board, Richard was
Managing Director of Canlion’s Middle East
and North Africa businesses before which
he held senicr positions in the Group’s
Infrastructure and Bullding businesses
Richard has worked for the Company for

17 years He 15 a Fellow of the Institution

of Civil Engineers Age 44

03

03 Richard Adam

Group Finance Director

Richard was appointed Group Frnance Director
in April 2007 He qualified as a chartered
accountant with KPMG Audit Plcin 1982

and gained broad expenence in a number of
public and private company finance director
roles from the age of 30 Immediately prior

to jointng Cariliion, Richard was Group Finance
Director of Associated British Ports Holdings
plc He is also a Non-Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee

of Zattikka plc having previously been a
Non-Executive Director and Chairman of

the Audit Committee of SSL International plc
until its takeover in 2010 Age 55

04

04 Philip Green 1,2,3,4

Semor Independent Non-Executive
Director

Appointed to the Board 1n June 2011,

Philip 15 @ member of the Audit, Nominations,
Remuneration and Business Integrity
Commuttees Phihp was Chief Executive

of United Utilities Group PLC from 2006 to
2011 His earler business experience includes
serving as Chief Executive of Royal P&O
Nedloyd, as a Director and Chief Operating
Officer at Reuters Group PLC and as a Chief
Operating Officer at DHL for Europe and
Africa He s Non-Executive Chairman of

US industrial services company, BakerCorp
Age 59




05 06

05 Andrew Dougal 1,2,3,4
Non-Executive Director

Andrew was appointed to the Board in
October 201t and 15 Charrman of the

Audit Commitiee and a member of the
Nominations, Remuneration and Business
Integrity Committees Andrew was Chief
Executive of Hanson plc, the international
bulding materials company after 1ts demerger
from Hanson, the Anglo-Amencan diversified
industnal group, where he was Finance
Director Since his retirernent from Hanson ple
in 2002, Andrew has been a Non-Executive
Director of Prermer Farnell plc and Creston plc
currently, and formerly Taylor Wimpey plc,
Taylor Woodrow pic and BPB plc He has
served as a member of the Audit Committee
at all these companies and Audit Committee
Charrman at Taylor Wimpey, Taylor Woodrow
and Creston Mr Dougal s a member of

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland and 15 a member of 1ts Council and
Chair of its Technical Policy Board Age 61

07

06 Steven Mogford 1,2,3,4
Non-Executive Director

Steve was appointed to the Board In
September 2006 and 1s a member of the
Audit, Nominations, [Remuneration and
Business Integrity Committees Steve 1s

Chief Executive of Uruted Utibties Group PLC
which he joined in March 2011 Before joimng
United Utilities, Steve was appomnted in May
2007 to Finmeccanica, Haly's prinapal defence
and security company, as Chief Executive of
Selex Gallleo From Ap#l 2000 to May 2007,
he was a Chief Operating Officer and a
Director of BAE Systems plc Age 56
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07 Vanda Murray OBE 1,2,3,4
Non-Executive Director

Vanda was appointed to the Board i June
2005 and s Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Aud:t,
Nominations and Business Integrity
Commmuttees Vanda 1s Chairman of Vphase
plc, Senicr Non-Executive Dhirector of
Fenner plc, and a Non-Executive Director

of Chemnng Group PLC, Microgen plc and
The Manchester Asrport Group plc Vanda
was Chief Executive Officer of Bhick plc from
2001 10 2004, a Director of Ultraframe plc
from 2002 to 2006, Non-Executive Chatrman
of Eazyfone Limited from 2006 to 2009 and
has also served as a Trustee and Non-
Executive Director of The Manufactunng
Institute She was appointed OBE in 2002
for Services to Industry and to Export and

15 a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing Age 52

Key

1 Audit Commutiee

2 Remuneration Commitiee

3 Nominatgns Commuttee

4 Business Integnty Committee
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Report of the Directors

The Directors’ report should be read in conjunction with the
Chairman’s statement, the Group Chief Executive’s review, the
Operating and financial review, the Corporate Governance report
and the Remuneration report, which are incorporated by reference
in (and sha!l be deemed to form part of} this report

Principal activities and busmess review

Carilhon 1s one of the UK's leading integrated support services
companies with a substantial portfolio of Public Private Partnership
projects, extensive construction capabilities and a sector leading
capabihity in delivering sustainable solutions The Group has operations
in the UK, Canada and in the Middle East and North Africa

A review of the Group’s businesses, financial performance and future
developments i1s contained 1n the Chairman's statement, Group Chief
Executive’s review and the Operating and financial review

The following specific 1ssues are discussed in the sections shown
in brackets

> Achievements in respect of the Group's Key Performance
Indicators (KPis} in 2012 and the KPlIs set for 2013 (Group Chief
Executive’s review — see pages 8 10 23)

> Finanaal performance in 2012 (Operating and financial review —
see pages 24 to 35)

> Principal operational nisks and nsk management (Group Chief
Executive's review — see pages 22 to 23)

> Treasury palicy and financial sk management (Cperating and
financial review - see page 33)

> Socaal, community and enviranmental 1ssues (Sustainability review
—see pages 36 to 39)

> Rescurces andlemployees (Group Chief Executive’s review —
see page 11 and Report of the Directors — see pages 42 to 43)

Analysis of revenue and net assets by operating segment and
geographical location are given in note 2 on pages 7310 76

Profits and dividends
The consolidated income staterment 15 shown on page 64 Profit
before tax was £179 5 million (2011 £142 8 million)

A 2012 internm dividend of § 4 pence per ordinary share (2011

S 3 pence) was paid in November 2012 It 1s proposed to pay a
final dividend of 11 85 pence per ordinary share (2611 11 6 pence)
on 14 June 2013 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 17 May 2013 The payment of these 2012 interim

and final dmidends amounts to £72 9 million (2011 £71 5 milion)

A dividend reinvestment plan (ORIP} will also be offered allowing
shareholders a converient means of reinvesting their dwidends in

the Company by buying further shares If required, a DRIP apphication
form 1 available from the share registrar, Equiniti (see page 114 for
contact details}

Directors

The Directors of the Company wha served during 2012 are shown

on page 60 of the Remuneration report Biographical detarls for

each Director at 31 December 2012 are given en pages 40 and 41 |

In accardance with the reguirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting on 1 May 2013 Richard Adam and Richard Howson
have contracts of service which are subject to one year's notice of
termination by the Company ,

The interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of I
the Company are shown n the Report of the Directors on page 44

Indemmty

To the extent permitted by the Companies Acts the Company may !
indemnify any Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company

against any isbility and may purchase and maintain insurance against

any liability The Company purchased and maintained throughout 2012

Directors’ and Officers’ hability insurance

Conflicts of interest

The Company's Articles of Association permit the Board to consider
and, if 1t sees fit, to authorise situations where a Director has an
interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests

of the Company The Board considers that the procedures 1t has in
place for reporiing and considenng conflicts of interest are effective

Key contractual arrangements

There are no persons with whom the Group or Company has

contractual or other arrangements, whom are deemed to be essential !
to the business of the Glroup or Company

Employees
Information relating to employee numbers and remuneration 1s given
In note 6 on page 78

Canlfion's core values of openness, collaboration, mutual dependency,

sustainable profitable growth, professional delivery and innovation

help to differentiate Canillion from its competitors Dy creating a culture

in which everyone 1n Carillion 1s encouraged to understand the needs .
of therr customers and to work in partnership with customers and !
supplers to daliver high-quality, value for money services

Employees are key to achieving Carillon’s business strategy and the
Group 15 committed to improving therr skills through training and
development and through nurturing a culture in which employees feel
valued for the contributions they make to the Company and motivated
to achieve ther full potential

It s Canllion s aim to foster a working envirenment in which all
employees are treated with courtesy dignity and respect Canllion
continually strves to elimunate all bias and untawful discimination In
relation to job apphcants, employees, business partners and members
of the public Employees who become disabled are, wherever possible,
retrained or provided with equipment that enables them to continue
therr employment




The objectives of Canllion’s Equal Opportunities and Dversity Policy
are to

> Have a workiorce that represents and responds to the diversity
of customers and society in general

> Improve safety and quality provided by a balanced and
productive warkforce

> Reduce staff turnover, absenteeism and sickness levels

> Provide a far working environment in which discrimination
will nct be tolerated

> Create a working environment free from discnimination,
harassment victimisation and bullying

> Work towards finding ways for under-represented groups to fully
realise their potential within Canilion and take reasonable steps to
help such groups

> Ensure that all employees are aware of the Equal Opportunities
and Diversity Policy and to provide any necessary ongoing training
to enable them to meet their responsiilities under it

> Recognise the merits of developing a workforce that incorporates
the many diverse skills and backgrounds available from withun the
total population and, accordingly, strive to be an organisation that
will recogrise, value and understand diversity and prowide
all employees with opportunities to develop and reach their
full potential

> Ensure that all applicants are treated farrly during recrurtment
processes and In accordance with relevant legislation and Codes
of Practice

» Regularly review procedures and selection criteria for promotion
ta ensure that mdividuals are selected and treated according to
their ndvidual abilities and mernits

Canlhon places great importance on open and regular coﬂ'nmumcatlon
with employees through both formal and informal processes As part
of this commutment, a Group newspaper, 'Spectrum’, 1s produced on
a regular basis for all employees

The views of employees on matters affecting their interests and the
success of Canllion are also sought through ‘The Great Debate’,
‘People Forums’, ‘Team Talks’, and one-to-one meetings between
employees and their line managers

‘The Great Debate’ 1s a major exerase, which has been undertaken

by the Group in each of the last nine years, involving a wide range of
employees The results of each ‘Great Debate’ are used to inform and
guide the development of work related imitiatives as part of Carillion's
strategy 1o be an employer of choke ‘The Great Debate’ forms part of
the Group’s ongcing programme to

> Engage with employees to improve motivation and morale

> Empower employees to contnibute to the Group's development
both as an employer and as a business

> Demonstrate Canllion’s commitment to listening to, and
responding to, the views of its employees
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Carlion also involves, engages and cansults with employees through
‘Peaple Forums', which give employees an opportunity to express therr
vIews on business Issues The mam objectives of the ‘People Forums’
areto

> Improve employee information and censultation

> Help employees feel more involved and valued

> Support the continued education and development of employees

> Improve business performance by improving the awareness of
employees to the busmness cimate in which they operate

> Help employees to be responsive and better prepared for change

"Team Talks’, which are held monthly, provide Canllion employees with
a face-to-face communication with their line managers and faciitate
discussion and feedback They focus on local 1ssues and key corporate
messages One-to-one meetings between individual employees and
therr ine managers are also held to discuss performance and progress
in order to help all employees to develop and reach their full potential

Employees can also exchange best practice information wia
BusinessXchange on the Group intranet

Carilhon seeks to involve all employees in its cutting edge programmes
to Integrate safety into every aspect of the Group's operations and to
improve Its environmental performance, including the understanding
and application of the prninciples of sustainability Further information
on Health & Safety 1s given in the Group Chief Executive’s review on
page 10 and on Sustamability in the Sustainability review on pages
361039

Share capital
Carillion has only one dass of share, with one vote far every share

As at 31 December 2012, the 1ssued share capital of the Company
comprised a single class of ordinary shares of 50 pence each Detalls
of shares issued during the year and outstanding options are given in
notes 23 and 25 on pages 89, 90 and 91 to the consolidated finanaal
statements which form part of this report Details of the share
schemes In place are also provided on pages 59 to 61 of the
Remuneration Repart

On a show of hands at a general meeting of the Company, every
holder of ordinary shares present in person or by proxy and entitled
to vote shall have one vote and, on a poll, every holder of ordinary
shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, shall have
one vote for every ordinary share held

The Notice of Annual General Meeting specifies deadlines for
exergising voting rights and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote

in relation to resolutions to be put to the Annual General Meeting
All proxy votes are counted and the numbers for, against or withheld
in relation to each resoiution are announced and published on the
Company's website after the meeting

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the
Company other than in relation to certain restrictions that are imposed
from time to time by laws and regulations (for example insider trading
laws) In addition, pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Finanaial Services
Authonity, Directors and certain officers and employees of the Group
require the approval of the Company to deal in ordinary shares of

the Company

The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders
that restnct the transfer of shares or voting rights attached to the shares

Governance Qur performance Ahoutus
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continued

Substantial share interests

As at 27 February 2013, the Company had recewved under the
Financial Services Authornity’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules,
formal notification of the following holdings of voting nghts in its
share capital exceeding the 3% notification threshold

% of 1ssued
Nature of interest  share capnral held

Schroders plc Indirect 926
Contracts for

Difference 001

Standard Life Investments Ltd Direct 393

Indirect 2 332

Total 6 263

Templeton Global Advisers Ltd Indirect 522

BlackRock, Inc Inglrect 429
Contracis for

Difference o7

Ameripnse Financial Inc_and its group Direct 0063

Indirect 4 822

Total 4 885

F&C Asset Mangement plc Indirect 4 47

Eaga Partnership Trust Direct 196

Indirect 196

Total 392

HBOS plc Direct 125

Indirect 2013

Total 3263

UBS Investment Bank Direct 312

Policy for payment of suppliers

The Group's policy 1s that its tndividual businesses should agree terms
and cenditions for transactions with its suppliers and that payment

be made on these terms, providing suppliers meet ther obhigations

1o the businesses’ satisfaction The Group as a whole does not apply a
general payment policy as this would not be practicable or approprate,
given the diverse nature of the transactions undertaken by its business
units The Company does not have any trade creditors

The number of days credit cutstanding for the Group averaged 69
days at 31 December 2012 (67 days at 31 December 2011)

Change of control

A number of agreements take effect alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company following a takeover bid, such as lean
agreements and share incentive plans

Carilhon's main credit facilities, including the £737 5 mitlion Syndicated
Multicurrency Revolving Credit Facility dated 4 February 2011, contamn
a prowvision such that in the event of a change of control any lender
may, within a 30-day consultation pencd and «f 1t so requires, notrfy
the Company that it wishes to cancel its commitment Any such
cancellation of comrmitment and the repayment of any outstanding
borrowings will occur on the date falling three days after the expiry

of the consultation penod

Chanitable and political contributions

Payments for charitable purposes made by the Group dunng the year
ended 31 December 2012 amounted to £200,000 {2011 £200,000)
The primary beneficianes of these chantable donations were Employee
nominated chanties, The Wildhfe Trust Business in the Community,
CRASH, RedR, Walking with Wounded and The Royal 8nitish Legion

The Canllion Group also contnibutes maore than one per cent of
profits per annum in ¢ash or in-kind (staff tme on commurity
projects) to community activities and 1s a corporate member of
Business in the Community

The Company and its subsidiaries made no palitical donations during
the period under review

Property

There are differences between market and book values of interest in
land held as fied assets, however, the differences are not matenal in
relation to the affairs of the Group

Finanaal instruments

Information on the Carilion Group's use of financial instruments
financial risk management objectives and policies and exposure
15 given in note 27 on pages 92 to 86 of the conschidated
financial statements

Directors’ share interests

Ordinary shares

The beneficial Interests of the Directors, their immediate families and
connected persons in the ordinary share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2012 are shown below

Ag at As at
1 January 31 December
2012 2012
Fully paid 50p ardinary shares owned Number Number
Executive Directors
Richard Adam 232,203 157,004
Richard Howson 41,845 67,572
Non-Executive Directors
Philip Green 10,000 10 000
Andrew Dougal 5,000 5,600
Steven Mogford Nil Nil
Vanda Murray 12,300 12,300
Philip Rogerson 39,630 39630

There has bean no change in Directors’ interests in the period
1January 2013 10 27 February 2013

Additional information for shareholders

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the
Company 15 governed by its Articles of Assocation the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation
The Articles of Association may be amended by special resclution

of the shareholders The powers of the Board are described in the
Corporate Governance report on pages 45 1o 52

Annual General Meeting

The Arnual General Meeting (AGM) will be held at 12 ncon on
1 May 2013 at Austin Court, 80 Cambnidge Street, Birmingham
B1 2NP The Notice of the Annual General Meeting accompanies
this Annual Report and Accounts

Included in the AGM business 1s the proposal to renew the authonty
far the Company to purchase its own shares As at 31 December 2012,
the Company had authenty from shareholders for the purchase of
43,025,462 of its own shares

Auditor

Resolutions to reappoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor and to authorise
the Directors to determine 1ts remuneration will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting

Approved by order of the Board

21-\0\..‘0’ P T-‘-CF‘O

Richard Tapp
Secretary
27 February 2013

AR Teq,




Corporate Governance report

Governance

The Board Is firmly committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance and considers that good governance comemences with
an effective Board providing strong and respected leadership

The Non-Executive Directors bring therr wide expenence to the
boardroem to both support and develop business strateqy and
operations and to constructively challenge the Executive Directors
In addrtion, the Board evaluation process which we introduced in
2002 supports the cutture of constructive challenge and confirms
that Non-Executive Directors are independent In ther judgement

During the year to 31 December 2012 as detalled below and in the
Remuneration report on page 53, the Company complied fully with
the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code (June 2010)
Carillion 1s now addressing the UK Corporate Governance Code
published by the Financial Reporting Council in September 2012 The
UK Corporate Governance Code 15 publicly available at www frc org uk

Ethics and Business Integnity Policy

The Board remains commusted to maintaining high standards of
ethics and business integrity throughout the organisation recognising
this to be essential to both Group performance and reputation

Carilhon 1s committed to the preservation of its reputation and
integrity through compliance with applicable laws, regulations
and ethical standards across all territenes in which it operates

Canllion’s clear and unequivocal approach to business integrity and
ethics underlies the Group's core values of openness, collaboration,
mutual dependency, sustamable profitable growsih, professional
debvery and innovation The Ethics and Integnity Policy 1s designed
to ensure that Canflion conducts its business to the highest

ethical standards

The Ethics and Business Integrity Policy sets out the standards and
behaviours that all Carilion employees are expected to meet wherever
in the world we operate The way Canllion delivers this policy s
reflected in ihe way the Group competes for business and delivers

115 services, focused on quality, value fer money and the rehability
and reputation of its employees

The palicy 1s

Protubition of fraud, bribery and corruption Canllion takes
extremely seriously the prevention and detection of fraud, bribery
and corruption and any other fraudulent or corrupt actmaty 1t will
not tolerate them in any form The Board s fully committed to
promoting a zero tolerance approach across the Canllion Group
There is a Fraud Policy

Gifts and hospitality ttis prohibited for a Carillion employee to offer
or receive gifts or hospitalty that could influence or be perceved to
be capable of influencing the outcome of transactions ar decisions
relating to Canllion's business There 1s 8 Gifts and Hospitality Policy

Insider trading Thase who have access to instde information are
adwsed of their responsibilities under the insider dealing rules There
15 a Canlion Insider Dealing Code

Conflicts of interest All Candion employees must disclose or
seek direction on any issues that could potentiaily conflict with ther
responsibilities io the Company There 1s a Conflicts of Interest Policy

Ethical procurement Carillion seeks to ensure that it maintains its
ethical standards and behaves respectfully when working with others
The relationships with Canillion’s suppliers and business partners are
based on the pninciple of fair and honest dealings at all umes and in all
ways Carillion expects its suppliers and business associates and joint
venture partners to extend the same high standards to all others with
whom they do business, including employees, sub-contractors and
other third parties There 1s a Purchasing and Supply Chain Code of
Ethics and a Sustainable Supplier Charter
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Competition Carillion plc, its subsidianies and associated companies
under Carillion control have a policy that all business activities are
carried out In full comphance with competition laws — the faws
which prevent anti-competitive behaviour Competition law prevents
companies from carrying out any activities that restnict competiion
and makes lllegal activities such as price fixing unfair priang, market
sharing and refusal to supply customers There 1s a Competition
Comphance Guide

Money laundering Canllion aims to maintain high standards of
conduct by preventing cnminal activity through money laundering
There 1s a Money Laundening Policy

Respect for Human Rights Carillon supports the belief that human
rights are universal and adheres to the prnciples of human rights in
its operations Cartllion supports the United Nations Declaration on
Human Rights and works hard to ensure that in all areas of interaction
with its employees, chents, supplieis, third parties, interviewees and
joint venture parties that everyone 1s protected and treated absolutely
farly Canllion has a Health & Safety Policy and an Equal Opportunities
and Diversity Policy

Law and regulation Canllion respects the rule of law in all our
dealings and has minimum standard compliance with all law and
regulation to which its businesses are subject Carllion has legat
compliance programmes for

> European Union and United Kingdom Competitton Laws
> Bnbery Act 2010

> Canadian Creminal Code C46

> Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act (Canada)

Ethics and Comphance Office As a response to the introduction
of the Bribery Act 2010, the Ethics and Comphance Oifice was
established in 2010 This Office reviews and monitors compliance
and ensures that Canlbon maintains high ethical standards It reports
to the Business Integnty Committee on key global compliance risks
and functional actvity

Reporting, disclosure and whistleblowing All of Carllion’s
employees have a responsibility to protect Carillion’s assets, including
information and goodwill as well as property Carillion encourages
Its people to raise genuine concerns about malpractice at the earhest
possible stage and in the right way There 1s a Whistleblowing Policy
and an £thics and Business Integrity Incident Response Plan

This Ethics and Business Integrity Policy 1s applied by all Canllion’s
businesses through a series of detaled procedures They allow Carnillon
to carry into practice its reputation for conducting business to the
highest ethcal standards, which are essental to its relationships

with customers, businesses partners, employees, shareholders and

the public The detalled pracedures reflect the way Carllion competes
for business, through the quality and value of 1ts work and through
the reliability and reputation of tts people

The Ethics and Business Integnity Policy 1s overseen by the Business
Integnty Commuttee, and its implementation I1s reviewed annually
by the Board

Governance Our performance Aboutus

Financial statements
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Directors
The Board

Main principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the head of
the Company between the running of the Board and the executive
responsibility for the running of the Company’s business No one
indwvidual should have unfettered powers of decision

As part of their rote as members of a unitary Board, Nan-Executive
Directors should constructively challenge and help develop proposals
on strategy

In 2012, the Company was led by a Board compnsing twe Executive
and five Non-Executive Directers The Chairman and each of

the Non-Executive Directors are considered to be independent of
management They each have substantial relevant experience and
have no business or other relationship that could matenally interfere
with their independent judgement Philip Green is the Senior
independent Non-Executive Director

Chief Executive’s Leadership Team

In discharging his responsibilities, Richard Howson, the Group Chief
Executive, 1s assisted by the Chief Executive’s Leadership Team (CELT}
which meets every month The CELT 15 a management and strategy
forum which 1s chaired by Mr Howson Its pnmary responsibilities
include strategy development, operational and financial management
and the executive management of the Group's businesses In addition
to Mr Howson the CELT comprises the Group Finance Director, the
Managing Directors of the Business Units, the Group Development
and Strategy Director, the Group HR Director and the Company
Secretary and Director of Legal Services

Main principle
All Directors should be submitted for re-election at regular intervals,
subject to continued satisfactory performance

All Directors are subject to annual re-election

Main principle

The Board and its committees sheuld have the appropnate
balance of skills, expenence, independence and knowledge of
the Company to enable them to discharge thair respective duties
and responsibilities effectively

The Board should undertake a formal and rigorous annual
evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees
and indwidual Directors

Board and committee performance evaluation

In 2012, a detalled performance evaluation of the Board, the
committees and each Director was conducted as it has been in each
of the last 11 years

The 2012 Board performance evaluation involved an external faclitator,
Lintstock Limited ('Lintstock”), a London based corporate adwvisory

firm Lintstock has, for a number of years, supplied software to the
Company Secretanat for the provision of online questionnaires used
for Board performance evaluation Other than this, Lintstock does not
provide any services to Carllion and acted as an independent facilitator
for the Board evaluation

Lintstock initially engaged with the Chairman and the Company
Secretary to set the context for the 2012 evaluation and subsequently
reviewed and reported on the performance of the Carllion Board and
Commuttees during 2012

Directors completed online gquestionnaires addressing

> Board campositton

> The role of Directors and the Board

> Effectiveness of Board meetings

> The Committee structure and Committee performance
Succession planning and human resource management
Monitoring performance

Leadershipand culture

Directors’ remuneration

Management of subsidiary companies

Relations with sharehalders

Board accountability and audit

> Prionties for change

VVVVVVY

Separate questionnalres covered the operation and effectiveness of
the Board's Committees The performance of the Chairman and each
Director was reviewed as part of the Board evaluation process

The online process ensures the anonymity of respendents and thus
openness and a frank exchange of views

At the November 2012 Board meeting, the Directors reviewed the
results of the evaluation The findings confirmed that amongst a
number of things Board composition and dynamics were highly rated
as were the roles and terms of reference of the Board Committees,
succession planning for top management and the understanding of
the risks and opportunities inherent in the Group structure in addrtion,
infermation provided to the Board was rated highly as was testing and
developing the Group's strategy It was also confirmed that each
Director continues to perform effectively and to demonstrate
commitment to the role

The key pnonties for the Board n 2013 were 1dentified as overseeing
strategic decsions and direction setting, risk management and Board
compositicn

The Board intends to continue to comply with the UK Corporate
Governance Code guidance that the evaluation should be externally
facilitated at least every three years

Main principle
The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board and ensuring
its effectiveness on all aspects of its role

The divisian of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group
Chief Executie are as follows

> The primary job of the Chairman of a public company 1s to provide
continuity experience and governance white the Group Chief
Executive provides leadership, energy, tmagination and the
drniving force
> The Chairman 1s viewed by investors as the ultimate steward of the
business and the guardian of the interests of all the shareholders
Nonetheless, it 1s essential that the cutline of their respective roles
encourages the Chairman and Group Chief Executive to work well
together to provide effective and complementary stewardship
> The Charman must
- take overzll responsibility for the composition and capability of
the Board
~ consult regularly with the Group Chief Executive and be available
on a flexble basis for providing advice, counsel and support to the
Group Chief Executive
> The Group Chief Executive must
— manage the Executive Directors and the Group s day-to-day activities
— prepare and present to the Board strategic opticns for growth in
shareholder value
- set the operating plans and budgets required to deliver the agreed
strategy
— ensure that the Group has in place approprate risk management
and control mechanisms




Main princple
All Directors should be able to allocate sufficent time to the
Company to discharge their responsibilities effectively

The Board had a programime of 10 meetings in 2012 In addition,
the Charrman holds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors

without the Executive Directors present and, at least once a year,
the Non-Executive Directors meet without the Chairman present

The Board generally meets in Central London, but at least one Board
meeting each year 15 held at one of the Group’s overseas locations
(erither in the Middle East or Canada), which gives the Directors the
opportunity to review the operations and to meet local management

Matn activities of the Board in the year to 31 December 2012
In 2012, the Board dealt with the following matters

Health & Safety

Sustanabibty palicy and practice
Presentations on the business units’ performance and strategy
Group strategy

Risk management

Financiat and intenim management statements
Quarterly farecasts

Regulatory anncuncements

Dividends

Monthly management results

Work winning

Three year business plan

Board committee reports

Review of policies such as ethics and business integnty
Annual Board evaluation review

Delegation of authortties

Insurance matters

AGM business

Major projects

Acquisitions and disposals

Regulatory 1ssues and briefings

Succession planning

Directors' share dealings

Appeals committee funding

Review of conflicts of interest

Review of third party benefits

Site wisits to operations

Meeting local management and employees

VVVVVFVVYYYVVVVVVVVYVVVVVVYVVYVVYVYYVY

A formal schedule of matiers reserved to the Board for consideration
and decision s maintained These matters include

> Statutory issues such as the approval of final and interm financial
statements and the recommendation of dwidends

> Appointments to, and removals from, the Board

The terms of reference and membership of Board committees

Approval of Group strategy and annual budgets

Approval of authonty levels, financial and treasury policies

Authorisation for any acquisiion or disposal

Review of the internal control arrangements and risk

management strategies

Review of corporate governance arrangements

VVVvYyYy

v

The Executive Directors and the Canllion subsidiary companies
operate within clearly defined limats of authority delegated by the
Board and any matters outside of these limits must be referred to
the Board for consideration
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All Directors have access o the Company Secretary, who is responstble
to the Board for ensunng that agreed procedures and applicable rules
and regulations are observed The Board approves the appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary

Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice when necessary, at the expense of the Company

The Board 1s provided with regular and timely information on

the financial performance of businesses within the Group, and

of the Group as a whole, together with reports on trading matters,
markets, Health & Safetly, sustainability and other relevant 1ssues

Documents are made available to all Directors five working days

In advance of the Board meeting Stnce late 2010, the Board has used
a secure electronic portal to recerve Board papers The portal provides
information in a timely and secure manner, enabling the Directors to
receive Board papers quickly and te access them via tablet computers
wherever they may be

In pursuit of best practice, the Canlhon plc Board regularly receives
presentations on governance and regulatory matiers In January
2012, Richard Alderman, Director of the Senous Fraud Office unul
his retirement in Apnl 2012, attended the Board meeting to discuss
the Bribery Act 2010 and retated anti-corruption issues and the
Group's response to this legislation through nisk assessment,
training and compliance progesses

Attendance at meetings in 2012
The number of scheduled Board and Committee meetings attended
by each Director during 2012 was as follows

Business

Audit Remuneration Nomunations  Integnty

Board Commdtee  Commuttes Commitiee Committee

Number of meetingsheld 10 4 3 2 2
Richard Adam 10 - - - -
Andrew Dougal 9- 4 3 2 1
Philip Green 10 4 3 2 1
Richard Howson 10 - - 2 -
Steven Mogford 10 4 3 2 2
Vanda Murray 10 4 3 2 2
Phihp Rogerson 10 - - 2 2

* Andrew Dougal was unable to attend the June Board meeting as a result of a conflicting
hoard meeting which had been agreed prior to his appaintment

*+* andrew Dougal and Philip Green were appointed to the Business Integrity Commuttee
August 2012

Board Committees

The principal Board Committees are the Remuneration Committee
the Audit Committee, the Nominations Committee and the Business
Integrity Committee The Company Secretary acts as secretary

to each of these committees The terms of reference of each of

the Board Committees are avaiiable on the Carillion website at
www canllionp!c com or on request from the Company Secretary

Governance Qur performance About us

Financial statements
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continued

Remuneration Committee
Vanda Murray, Chairman
Andrew Dougal

Philip Green

Steven Mogford

The Committee consists entirely of independent Non-Executive
Directors and determines and makes recommendations on the
Group's remuneration policy and framework 10 recruit, retain
and reward Executive Directors and senior executives

Main principle

There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages of indwidual Directors No Director should be invalved in
deciding his or her own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee is assisted in 1ts work by Susannah
Clements, Group HR Director, by Philip Rogerson, the Chairman

and by Richard Howson, the Group Chief Executive The Group
Chief Executive 15 consulted on the remuneration of those who
report directly to hum and also of other senior executives No
Executive Director or employee 1s present or takes part in discussions
in respect of matters relating directly to their own remuneration

Further detalls on remuneration 1ssues are given on pages 53 to 61

Main principle
The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company's position and prospects

Audit Committee
Andrew Dougal, Chairman
Philip Green

Steven Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Audit Commuttee consists entirely of independent Non-Executive
Directars All members of the Audit Committee have recent and
relevant finangat expenence Appointments to the Commmttee are
made by the Board

Andrew Dougal 1s a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Scotland and 1s a member of its Counall and Charr of 1ts Technical
Policy Board He was appomted to the Audit Committee in October
2011 Andrew was Chief Executive of Hanson plc, the international
bulding matenals company, after its demerger from Hanson, the
Anglo-Amernican diversified industnal group, where he was Finance
Director Andrew is Chasrman of the Audit Committee of Creston plc
and a member of the Premer Farnell plc Audit Commiitee He has
previously been Audit Committee Chairman at Taylor Wimpey plc

and Taylor Woodrow plc

Philip Green was appainted to the Audit Committee in June 2011
Philip was Chief Executive of United Utiiiies Group PLC from 2006
10 2011 His earlier business expenence includes serving as Chief
Executive of Royal P&O Nedloyd and Chief Operating Officer at
Reuters Group PLC

Steven Mogford was appointed to the Audit Committee in September
2006 Steven s Chief Executive Officer of United Utilittes Group PLC
Prior to this appointmeant, Steven was Chief Executive of Selex Gallleo

Vanda Murray was appointed to the Audit Commuttee in July 2005
Vanda 1s Charman of Vphase plc and a Non-Executve Director of
Fenner plc, Chemring Group PLC, Microgen plc and The Manchester
Asrport Group plc

Further biographical details can be found on pages 40 and 41

Main principle
There should be a formal, ngerous and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors to the Board

Nominations Committee
Philip Rogerson, Chairman
Andrew Dougal

Philip Green

Richard Howson

Steven Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Commuttee reviews the structure size, composition, balance

of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes that are
deemed desrrable The Committee also reviews succession planning
to ensure that processes and plans are in place with regard to both
Board and senior appointments

The appointment of a Director I1s a maiter for resofution by the Board
as a whole, taking advice from the Nominations Commutiee

For Board appointments, the Nominations Committee has used the
services of the executive recruitment consultants Odgers Berndtson
Detanls of potential candidates are provided by the consultants and
initially reviewed by a sub-committee of the Nominations Committee
Meetings with selected candidates are then held with the Directors
Subsequently, the Norminatiens Committee meets to recommend an
appointment, which 1s then proposed to the Board for approval

The fees of Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board as a
whole, taking inte account the commitment required and participation
in the work of commuttees and other advisory services in relation 1o
the business of the Group In advising the Board on such fees, it is the
policy of the Executive Directors to seek independant external advice
concerning the appropriateness of the amounts by companson with
general practice The level of fees currently payable to the Non-
Executive Directors 1s based on independent external advice

The remuneration of the Directors 1s dealt with in the Remuneration
report on pages 53 to 61

Board Diversity

Carillion recogrises the importance of gender diversity throughout
the Group Currently, one of Carillion’s seven Board members 1s
fermale The Board aims to have a broad range of skills, backgrounds
and expertence While Canllion will continue to follow a policy of
ensuring that the best people are appointed ior the relevant roles,
the benefits of greater diversity are recognised and will continue to
be taken account of when considenng any particular appointment




Business Integrnity Committee
Philip Rogerson, Chairman
Andrew Dougal

Phitip Green

Steven Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Commuittee reviews and oversees the implementation of the
Group’s Ethics and Business Integnty Palicy, momitors the Group's
comphance with relevant legislation such as the Bribery Act 2010 and
the Competition Act 2006 ensures that the Group's communication
and traiming programmes on ethics and business integnty are effective
in reinforang ethical values and good practice, and reviews the policies
and practice in respect of business ethics and integrity in relation to
the commencement of operations in any new country or termtory in
which the Company has not previously operated

The terms of reference of the Remuneration, Audit, Nominations
and Business integnity Committees ¢an be found on the Company's
website www carillionplc com

Other Board matters

Policy on external appointments

Recognising that external appointments can broaden experence and
knowledge and so be of benefit to the Company, Executve Directors
are permitted, at the discretion of the Board, to accept a imited
number of such appointments and retain the fees receved for

such appointments

Richard Adam is a Non-Executive Director of Zattikka plc

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors will subnut themnselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 1 May 2013 All have been subject
to farmal performance evaluation and are effective members of the
Board who are committed to the role and to the ume required for
Board and, where applicable, Committee meetings and any other
duties required of them

The service contracts of the Executive Directors and the letters
of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal
business hours on any weekday (bank holidays excepted) and at
the Annual General Meeting

Induction and development of Directors

Main principle

All Directors should receive induction en jaining the Board and
should regularly update and refresh their skills and knowledge

The Board should be supphed in a timely manner with information in
a form and of a quality appropnate to enable 1t to discharge its duties
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Directors are provided with a comprehensive information pack on
Joining the Company and are advised of their legal and other duties
and abligations as a director of a listed company In addition, all new
Directors recewve induction on ther appaintment covenng such matiers
as the operation and activities of the Group, the role of the Board and
the Company's corporate governance procedures Directors are also
briefed by the Company's external advisers, where appropriate, on
changes to legislation or regulation or markei practice as well as
receving briefings from business units throughout the year

The regutar updating of Directors’ skills and knowledge 15 encouraged,
including n relation to environmental, sustainability and governance
matters, and a procedure has been established whereby the Company
Secretary 1s notified by Directors of their requirements 1n this respect
Traning for Directors 15 kept under review dunng the year

Relations with shareholders

Main prinaple

There should be a dialogue with shareholders based on the mutual
understanding of objectives The Board as a whale has responsibility
for ensuring that a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders takes place

The Board should use the AGM 1o cornmunicate with investors and to
encourage their participation

In addition to communicating with shareholders generally from tume
to time, the Executive Directors and the Chrector of Group Corporate
Affairs meet regularly with representatives of major shareholders in
order to foster the mutual understanding of objectives Meetings are
also held with other shareholders and prospective shareholders The
details of these meetings (are reported to the Board The Chairman and
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director are available for meetings
with representatives of major shareholiders as required

The Chairman and Company Secretary have also met with major
shareholders and fund managers to discuss governance matters

Private and institutional shareholders are encouraged to attend the
Company's Annual General Meeting

The Company complies fully with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 1n respect of the notice, content of agenda and
conduct of 1ts Annual General Meetings The Charmen of all the
Board Commuttees will be present at the Annual General Meeting
on t May 2013 to respond to shareholders’ questions

Governance Qur performance About us
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Report of the Audit Committee
Dear Shareholder,

The role of the Audit Commuttee 1s to review and repoert to the
Board on the Group’s finanaal reporung nternal control and risk
management processes and the independence and effectiveness of
the auditor, KPMG Audit Plc

The Committee’s terms of reference are reviewed annually and in
2012, they were reviewed and updated in the hght of the publication
by the Financial Reperting Councll of the revised UK Corporate
Governance Code (September 2012) As a consequence, the terms
of reference were updated to address the following key areas

» Annual report and financial staternents taken as a whole to be
fair, balanced and understandable

> Greater disclosure around aucht committee actvities

» External audit tenders and

> Boardroom diversity

The terms of reference of the Audit Commitiee are avallable at
www carillionplc com or from the Company Secretary

The following report details the Committee’s responsibilities and key
tasks in 2012 which [ trust shareholders and athers will find useful

4\»@« /»—Ao«(sJ

Andrew Dougal
Charrman of the Audit Committee
27 February 2013

The Audit Committee has in attendance at meetings, by invitation of
the Committee, the Chairman, Executive Directors, representatives of
the external auditors (KPMG Audit Pic), the Group Head of Risk and
the Head of Internal Audit It 1s also able to invite others as it requires
from time to time The Commitiee also meets privately with both the
external and internal auditors

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include

> The review of the integnty of the Company’s finanaal statements,
including its annual and half-yearly reports intenim management
statements and any other formal announcement relating to is
financial performance, together with significant financial
reporting 1ssues and any Judgements which they contain

> Consideration of the impact of changes to accounting regulations
and the financial and accounting polcies of the Carlhan Group

> Compliance with statutory and other external requirements

> Reviewing the role and effectiveness of the internal audit function
and the results of its audit work and the response of management

> Rewviewing the scope and results of the external audit and its
cost effectiveness

> Ensurning that the internal and external audit funcuons are
complementary

> Monitoring the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors and ensuning that the services provided (including
non-audit services) provide a proper balance between objectivity
and value for money

> Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor

The Commuttee ts authonsed by the Board 1o (1) seek any information
necessary to fulfil its duties, () ¢all any member of staff to be
questioned ata meeting of the Committee as and when requwed and
(i) obtain independent legal, accounting or other professional adwice,
at the Company's expense, which might be necessary for the fulfilment
of its duties

The internal audit function 15 undertaken by Deloitte LLP

Main activities of the Audit Committee in the year to

31 December 2012

The Audit Committee met on four occasions in 2012 and pnimanly
dealt with the following matiers

> Review of the full year and interim results and interim
management statements nctuding consideration of key
accounting judgements and the Canllion plc nen-consolidated
profit and loss account

» Review and consideration of the reports from the external auditor
KPMG Audit Plc, including reports on the 201t full year and 2012
intenm results and making recommendations to the Board on an
appropriale management representation letter to KPMG Audit Plc

> The basis for prepanng the financial statements on a going |
concern basis iIncluding consideration of concarns faced as part
of the Sharman Inquiry

> Review and consideration of reports from the internal auditor

> Review and agreement of both external and internat audit plans
and peer review plans

> Evaluation of the external audit function

> Reappointment of the external auditor and agreement of KPMG
Audit Plc’s fees for statutory and non-statutory audit activities

> Evaluation of the internal audit function

> Review of comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the Finanaial Services Authonty’s Listing Rules and Disclosure
and Transparency Rules

> Selectivity and nsk management

> Annual evaluation of the performance of the Audit Committee i
and the annual review of its terms of reference {

|

In addition, the Audit Committee met with the Head of Internal
Audit and separately, KPMG Audit Plc without others present

With regard to the evaluation of the external audit function, the
Committee recommended to the Board the reappomtment of KPMG
Audit Plc as audritor and for 1t to be put to shareholders at the 2012
Annual General Meetsng KPMG Audit Plc were appomnted the
Company's auditor in 1999

The members of the Committee receive fees as Non-Executive
Directors which also reflect their membership of the Audit Committee
and other Board commuttees The Chairman of the Audit Committee
receives an additional fee for this role Details of remuneration are
given on page 60

Internal controls

Main princple

The Board 15 responsible for determining the nature and extent of the

significant risks 1115 willing to take i achieving its strategic objectves

The Board should maintan sound nsk management and internal ‘
control systems

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements for
considenng how they should apply the corperate reporting and risk
management and Internal control principles and for maintaining an
appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors




The Board 15 ulumately responsible for the Group’s system of internal
control This responsibility includes clearly determuning the control
environment and reviewing annually the effectivenass of the internal
control system However, such a system can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenat misstaterment or loss

In accordance with the Turnbull Guidance for Directors “Internal
Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Cede’, the Board
confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for iIdentifying, evaluating
and managing the significant asks (beth financial and non-financial
and including Corporate Social Responsibility nsks) faced by the
Group (iIncluding joint ventures and overseas businesses) The process
has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts and 1s regularly
reviewed by the Board

Assurance over the design and operation of internal controls across
the Group is provtded through a combination of techniques

> Internal Audit carres out audits to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls over the key rnisks faced by the
business and reports its findings to management, the Executive
Directors and the Audit Commiitee The Audit Plan 1s presented
to and approved by the Audit Committee annually

> Recommendations to improve the system of control are made by
Internal Audit The implementation of these recommendations 15
followed up and reported on quarterly

> Internal Audit independently reviews the risk identfication
procedures and control processes implemented by management

> A process of Control Risk Self-Assessmant is used in the Group
where Directors and senigr managers are required to detall and
certlfy contrals 1n operation t¢ ensure the control environment in
their business areas 15 appropriate They also confirm annually in
writing, that nsk management processes and appropriate controls
are in place and are operating effectively

> Internal Audit advises on aspects of the design and application
of internal conirols In key business projects and on policy and
procedure changes

tnternal Audit reports to the Audit Committee on a regular basis
The Audit Committee reviews the assurance procedures and ensures
that the level of confidence required by the Board is obtained It
also ensures the financial reporting process 1s credibte and reliable
The Audit Commuttee presents its findings to the Board regularly
and the Head of internal Audnt has direct access to the Audit
Comrmittee members

Any significant internal control 1ssues would be disclosed in thss report
On the basis of the assurances given in 2012, no disclosures in this
respect are reqguired
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Risk management

The Board 1s ulimately responsible for ensuring that the Group’s
systems for nsk management are appropnate and eperating effectively
However such a system can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material messtatement or loss

The Group Head of Risk 1s responsible for adwising on strategic nsk
1ssues across the Group, and for oversight of nisk traiming The Group
Head of Risk Is also respansible for carrying out an independent
appraisal of all projects before submission to the Major Projects
Committee (see below) This apprasal ensures that the differentiating
factors of the Group’s offer have been properly tdentified, thus
maximising the opporturities available, 1t also (nvolves ensuring

that all inherent and residual nisks associated with the project

have been praperly identified and constdered

Management 1s responstble for the identrfication and evaluation of
significant risks applicable 10 1ts areas of business together with the
design, cperation and monitoring of suitable internal controls These
risks are assessed on a continual basis and may be associated with a
variety of internal or external sources, including control breakdowns,
disruption in information systems, competition corporate social
responsiility natural catastrophes and regulatory requirements
Management is supported in this process by a system of ‘peer reviews’,
under which the performance of individual contracts 1s reviewed by
expertenced teams Management is also responsible for timely and
accurate reporting of business performance and for ensunng
compliance with the policies set by the Board in its areas of business
Regular performance review meetings are held where management
reports to the Executive Directors on business performance, nsk and
internal control matters The results of these meetings are presented
to the Bc:arc[l

The Major Projects Commuttee, a committee of the Board, acts as the
sanctioning body for major commitments and transactions including
capital expenchture, major contracts and company and business
acquisitions and disposals This Commuttee has delegated authority
up to specfied levels of nsk as determined by a nisk assessment matrix,
beyond which Board approval is required

In addition, practical guidance for all staff 1s maintatned in Group
policy and procedure documents regarding the authorisation levels
for commitments, contract selectivity and bidding, the provision of
guarantees and management accounting as well as reporting and
resolutron of suspected fraudulent actiaities

The Board has a palicy to prosecute indiwduals found to have
defrauded the Comgpany or 1ts subsidianes To minimise the occurrence
of fraud, learning points for management are dentified and action
plans implemented

Governance Qur performance About us
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Employees are encouraged to raise genuine concerns about
malpractice at the earliest possible stage and a confidential
Whistleblowing hotline provided by an independent third
party 1s avallable

A monthly report on 1ssues raised on the Whistleblowing hothne
and subsequent investigations is compiled by the Whistleblowing
and Fraud Commuttee and forwarded to the Board

The Executive Directors report to the Board on material changes in
the business and the external environment that affect significant
risks The Group Finance Director provides the Board with regular
financial information, which includes key performance indicators
and a summary of sk These key performance indicators and risks
are listed 1n the Group Chief Executive’s review on pages 8 10 23
Where areas for improvement are identified, the Board considers
the recommendations made by both the Executive Directors and
the Audit Committee

Audit independence

The Audit Committee and Board place great emphasis on the
cbjectivity of the Group's auditor, KPMG Audit Plc, in therr
reporting to shareholders

The KPMG Audit Plc Director 1s present at Audit Committee meetings
to ensure full communication of matters relating to the audit

The overall performance of the auditor 1s reviewed annually by the
Audit Camrmuttee, who take into account the views of management
Feedback 1s then prowvided to senior members of KPMG Audit Plc
unrelated to the audit This activity also forms part of KPMG Audit
Plc's own system of quality contral The Audit Committee also has
discussions with the auditor, without management being present,
on the adequacy of controls and on any judgemental areas These
discussions have proved satisfactory to date

The scope of the forthcoming year’s audit 1s discussed (n advance by
the Audit Committee Audit fees are reviewed by the Audit Committee
after discussions between the businesses and the local KPMG Audit Plc
offices and are then referred to the Board for approval Rotation of
Audit Directors’ responsibilities wathin KPMG Audit Plc s required

by therr professton’s ethical standards The current Audit Director
responsible for the Canllion engagement is in his fourth year of signing
the report There is also rotation of key members within the audit team

Assignments awarded to KPMG Audit Pic and 1its associates have been
and are subject to controls by management that have been agreed by
the Audit Committee so that audit independence 1s not compramised
In summary, the procedures are

> Audit related services as auditor this is the main area of work of
KPMG Audit Plc and 1ts associates If any additional accounting
suppaort s required then this 15 considered competitively

> Tax consultng 1n cases where they are best suited, Canthion
uses KPMG Audit Plc and 1ts associates but the Group also uses
other tax consultancies

> General and systems consulting all sigrificant consulting projects
are subject to competitive tender

Other than audit, the Group Finance Director 1s required to give
prior approval of work carned out by KPMG Audit Plc and its
associates In excess of a predetermined threshold, part of this
review IS to determune that other potential providers of the services
have been adeguately considered

These cantrols provide the Audit Committee with adequate
confidence in the independence of KPMG Audit Plc in their
reporting an the audit of the Group

Health & safety and sustainability

A review of the Group's progress on Health & Safety i1s provided

in the Group Chief Executive’s review on page 11 and the Group’s
Sustainability performance 15 contained in the Sustainability review
on pages 36 10 39

z«L\C\.ard TQP'O |
LoTe,,

Richard Tapp
Secretary

27 February 2013




Remuneration report

Remuneration Committee Chairman’s Letter
Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present our Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2012, which sets out the remuneration
policy for the Directors of Canllion and the amounts earned In respect
of the year ended 31 December 2012 The report 1s subject to an
adwisory sharehaolder vote and a resolution to apprave the Directors’
Remuneration Report will be propased at the Annual General Meeting
on 1 May 2013

Recent changes in executive remuneration

The Remuneration Committee has continued to monitor our executive
remuneration policy to take account of evolving market practice whilst
also seeking to ensure that a stable framework 1s mantained and
avoiding making unnecessary and frequent changes to the structure
of pay Accordingly, the existing remuneration policy and fundamental
structure of the package remains largely unchanged and the overall
quantum of the package has not changed However, after extensive
consultation with, and goed support from our major shareholders,
the Remuneration Committee has implemented the following
changes for the financial year beginning 1 January 2012

> The annual bonus deferral period has been extended from two to
three years to place a further emphasis on shareholder alignment

> A claw back provision has been introduced to deferred bonus
awards in order to protect the Company and sharehalders in
exceptional ¢ircumstances of matertal misstatement ar
material losses

> New performance targets for the Carllion plc Leadership Equity
Award Plan have been intreduced for 2012 to ensure that they
remain appropriately stretching in the current environment and
continue to be aligned with the business strategy and creation
of shareholder value Growth in earnings per share remains as
the pnmary performance condition and an average annual cash
flow conversion target has alsa been included to take account of
the importance of the sustained delivery of cash-backed profits
Stretching targets will continue to be set to act as an appropnate
incentive for executives and to deliver sustained business
performance without encouraging excessive risk

We are mindful of wider economic conditions inciuding the interface
between the performance of the economy and the Company, as well
as the remuneration arrangements throughout the Group for all
employees Following the base salary increases for Richard Howson on
his appointment as Group Chief Executive on 1 January 2012 and for
Richard Adam on 1 July 2012 ta reflect his increased responsibifities,
there will be no salary increases for Executive Directors in 2013

The Remuneration Committee feel very strongly that rewards should
be linked to both Group and personal performance Due to the
economic conditions in Canllion’s industry sectors and the Group's
financial performance requirements for the 2012 bonus were not met
and therefore no bonus has been awarded to the Executive Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Further details regarding base salary increases and bonus payments
made to employees below the Board are set out on page 56
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We remain committed to a responsible approach in respect of executive
pay The Remuneration Commuittee will continue to actively engage with
and seek to ncorporate the views of its shareholders in any major
changes to the Executive Directors’ remuneration policy

We are mindful of tha need for transparency in relation to remuneration
reporting and therefore we have, as far as practicable, incorporated a
number of the key principles set out In the proposed regulations put
forward by the Department of Business, Innovation and Skilis regarding
new disclosure requirements for the Directors’ Remuneration Report

N, bousioe,

Vanda Murray OBE
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
27 February 2013

Policy report Summary of 2013 remuneration palicy

Remuneration philosophy

Carillion’s remuneration policy 1s 1o provide the Executive Directors with
appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced performance in a manner
consistent with the Group’s objectives and to reward them in a fair and
responsible manner for their Individual contributions to the success of
the Group

Carliton’s remuneration philosophy is that reward should be used to
Incentivise Executive Directors In a manner that I1s consistent with the
Group's objectives The package has been designed based on the
fellowing key pnnciples

Key focus Remunetration policy

To attract, develop  To reward all employees fairly according to

and retain excellent therr role, experience and performance and

people with due regard to actual and expected
market conditions and the financial
performance of the Group

Ahgnment with
interests of
shareholders

A substantal proportion of the package for
the Executive Directors 1s delivered in the
Company's shares to ensure that the interests
of executives are aligned with sharehalders
This 1s further supported by shareholding
guidelines ensuring that a meaningful portion
of each Executive Directors’ personal wealth
15 inked to the share price performance

Pay for performance A substantial proportion of Executive Director
remuneration s vanable, inked to the Group’s
performance, in particular, to the delivery of
sustained profitable growth and to the
performance of the indrmdual

Be a recognised
leader in Health
& Safety and
sustainability

To ensure that remuneration arrangements
support our sustainability agenda, the quality
of performance in terms of business results
and leadership 15 considered, including
achieving high standards in respect of
Carilllhion's Health & Safety, environmental
and social performance targets

Governance Our performance About us
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Key elements of pay

The table below summarises how the Remuneration Commttee sets remuneration for the Executive Directors, the key elements of their
remuneration and principal pension arrangements

Element

Purpose and hink to strategy

Operation

Base salary

Core element of fixed remuneration that provides
the basis for a market competitive package to recrunt
and retan talent

Reflects indiidual skills experience and responsibility

Reward indrvidual performance

Reviewed annually and usually fixed for 12 months commencing
1 January The deasion 1s influenced by

» role expenence and performance,

> average change in broader workforce salary

> total organisational salary budgets and

» group profitability and prevaihng market conditions

External benchmark data aganst companies of a simifar size and
complexity 15 also considered

Policy 15 to set basic salary within the market range of salaries for
equivalent roles and expect to pay around the median when the
indwidual has been performing in the role for a reasonable period
of ime

Benefits

Help recruit and retan employees

Base salary 1s supplemented with normal benefits, avarlable to
senior managers within the Group including car or car allowance
and healthcara arrangements

Annual perfermance bonus
and deferred bonus plan

Drive and reward the achievermnent of annual
financial and strategic business targets and delivery
of personal objectives relevant to Canllion’s long-
term strategic objectives

Provide alignment with shareholders interests

Deferred proportion of award, delivered in shares,
supports retention and promotes share ownership

Awards based on annual performance against key financial
and strategic targets and the delvery of personal chectives

Payments are determined by the Remuneration Committee after
year end, based on performance against targets

50% of any bonus earned s paid in cash and 50% 15 deferred and
paid in shares which must be held for a minimum three year penod

A daw back provision gives the Remuneration Committee the
nght to reduce any deferred bonus awards which have not yet
vested In relaton to orcumstances of corparate failure which may
have occurred at any tme before claw back 1s operated

Structure of the plan is reviewed annually

Long Term Incentive —
Carilhion plc Leadership Equity
Award Plan (LEAFP)

Dnve and reward the achievement of longer-term
objectives ahgned dosely to shareholders interests

Retain key executives over a longer-term
measurement period

Provide ahignment with shareholders’ interests

Support retention and promotes share ownership

Canllion plc has one long-term incentive plan which was agreed by
shareholders on 10 May 2006

Annual awards of condiional shares or nil cost options under the
LEAP are made with vesting dependent on the achievement
of performance conditions over the three subsequent years

Targets whilst stretching do not encourage inappropriate business
risks to be taken

Pension and other benefits

Help recruit and retain employees

Ensure adequate income In retirement

The Company offers competitive defined contribution pensions
16 all Executive Directors

Where contributions exceed the £50 000 Annual Allowance or the
Life Time Altowance for a tax free pension accrual, Executives have
the choice of receving excess contributions as a salary supplement
{subject to tax and national insurance contnbutions)

Inarcumstances where there are hustoncal contractual commitments
benefits 0 part are provided through membership of the Staff
Pension Scheme In Aprii 2009 the Company closed this scheme to
{uture accrual and the Executive Diractors who were members of this
scheme became deferred pensicners Therr deferred benefits are
based on pensionable salary and service at the date of closure

Death in service benefits are prowded as part of membership of
these plans

Bonus and other benefits receved by Executive Directors do not
count towards pensionable pay

Share ownership guideline

Provide alignment with shareholders interasts

Promotes share ownership

Each Executive Director 1s required to hold shares acquired through
the LEAP until the value of tharr total sharehotding 1s equal to therr
annual salary
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Opportunity Performance metrics Changes in year
Salary mncreases will normally not exceed the average N/A Richard Howson - £560 000 with effact from
increase awarded to other employees in the 1 January 2012 on his appointment as Group
Group However, larger increases may be awarded Cheet Executive
where the Committee considers that there 15 a
cornpelling reason to do so for example Richard Adam - £450 000 wath effect from
1 July 2012 to reflect his increased responsibilitias
> there 15 anincrease in scope and responsibility (specific increase in responsitilities for supply chain
or a5 well as general increase in contribution reflecting
> anew Executive Director 1s being moved to the reduction in the number of Executive Directors
market pesitioning over time or from three to two on John McDonough s retirement)
> where the Executive Director has fallen
significantly below the markat positioning, or There will be no salary increases for Executive
> In other exceptional circumstances Directors in 2013
Set at a level which the Remuneration Committee NA N/A

considers to be appropnately positioned against
peers and to provide a sufficeent level of benefit
based on therr grade and crcurnstances

Maximum award 100% of base salary

Stretching targets are set each year reflecting bustness
prionties which underpin Group strategy and align
with financial key performance indicators

Targets whilst stretching do not encourage
nappropriate business rnsks to be taken

For 2012

75% of the bonus was based on achieving target
underlying earnings per share {EPS) and the personal
objectives proportion accounted for up to 25% of
the bonus

Annual benus deferral penod was extended from
two to three years to place a further emphasis on
shareholder algnment

A claw back provision was introduced in 2012

Normal maximum award 150% of base salary

Current scheme rules permit grants up to 200%
of base salary in exceptional arcumstances

Far the 2012 and 2013 LEAP awards for the Executive
Directors, 100% of salary wll be based on annual
average growth in EPS, and 50% of salary on

an average annual cash flow conversion target

These measures provide a robust and transparent basis
on which to measure Canllion’s performance and are
ahigned with Carillion’s business strategy

The Remuneration Commiitee will regularly review the
perfermance conditions and targets for future awards
to ensure they are aligned with Carillion's business
strategy and remain challenging

From 2012, new performance targets were introduced
for the 2012 awards which take account of the
changed profile of the Group and market condittons
since 2006 {when the targets were last changed)

The proportion of the award vesting for threshold
performance was reduced from 30% of salary to
25% of salary

Pensionable salary 1s imited by an intarnal cap The
Carillion cap commenced at the level of £110 000
for the tax year 2006-07 and rose in ine with the
published increases in HMRC's Life Time Allowance
to the current level of £332,700 which has apphed
since 2010-11 Future increases are at the discretion
of the Remuneration Committee

Executives receve a contribution of 40% of capped
salary Executives are required to pay 10% of the
earnings cap

Salary supplements are paid on earnings over the cap

at the rate of up to 33 6% of excess earnings

Richarg Howson is also a deferred member of the
Canlhon Staff Penston Scheme

N/A

N7A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Governance Ourperformance Aboutus
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Remuneration policy for new appointments

In the cases of hinng or appointing a new Executive Director, the
Remuneration Commuttee will typically ahgn the remuneration
package with the Remuneration Policy detalled on pages 54 and 55,
however, the Remuneration Committee retains the discretion to make
remuneration decisions which are outside the policy to faciitate the
hiring of candidates of the appropnate calibre required to implement
the Group's strategy

In determining appropnate remuneration, the Remuneration Committee
will take into consideration all relevant factors {including quantum, the
nature of remuneration and the junsdiction the candidate was recruited

Non-Executive Directors

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation

from) to ensure that arrangements are in the best interests of both
Canlhon and #ts shareholders

The Remuneration Committee may make an award in respect of
hinng to *buy-out’ incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a
previous employer In doing so the Remuneration Commuttee will
take account of relevant factors including any performance conditions
attached to these awards and the time over which they would

have vested

Canllion may make use of the Listing Rute 9 4 2.1 appropriate

Opportunity Changesin year

Non-Executive Core element of remuneration, The remuneration of the
Charman of the Board 1s set by paid to Non-Executive
the Remuneration Committee

Dwector fees  paid for fulfilling the role in

question

The Board as a whole 15
responsible for deciding
Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Company does not
contnbute to any pension
arrangements for Non-

Executive Directors

Executive Director Pay Mix - 2013

50% of each Executive Director s total target remuneration is varable
and 15 linked to corporate performance At maximum performance
around two thirds (as a proportion of the maximum reward potential)
of each Executive Director’s total remuneration is vanable and 1s inked
to corporate performance

The charts below illustrate the proportions of the Executive Directors
remuneration packages comprising fixed (1 e salary and pension) and
vaniable elements of pay, assuming 1) a target performance scenano
and v} maximum performance Is achieved

Target Maxaimum

1 Salary and benefits
{including pension) 50%

2 Annual bonus (cash) 10%
3 Annual bonus (deferred shares) 10%
4 Long-Term Incentve 30%

1 Salary and benefits
(including pension} 35%

2 Annual bonus {cash) 12 5%

4 Long-Term Incentve 40%

3 Annual bonws {deferred shares) 12 5%

Following a review of fees

paid to Non-Executive Directors
in similarly-s1ized UK-tsted
compantes the following fee
levels were set with effect

from Apnl 2012

Based on the level of fees

Directors serving on Boards
of simlarly-sized UK-listed
companies and the time
commitment and contribution
expected for the role
Basic fees
Non-Executive Chairman
- £192,000
Non-Executive Director
- £50,000

Additional fees
Senior Independent Director
-£10,200

Audit Committee Chairman
- £10,200

Remuneration Committee
Chairman — £10,200

The Commuttee believes that the level of remuneration that can
be delivered in the vanous scenanos is appropriate for the level
of performance delivered and the value that would be delivered
to shareholders

Pay policy for other employees

The remuneration policy applied to the Chief Executive’s Leadership
Team and the most senior executives In the Group 1s similar to the policy
for the Executive Directors in that a sigmificant element of remuneration
1s dependent on company and indwvidual performance The key pnnaiples
of the remuneration philosophy are applied consistently across the
Group below this level, taking account of senionty and local

market practice

Performance conditions for the LEAP

Following extensive consultation with our major shareholders new
performance targets were introduced for the 2012 awards which take
account of the changed prafile of the Group and market conditions
since 2006 (when the targets were last changed) The structure of
the LEAP awards granted to Executive Directors in 2012 15 as follows

2/3 of maximum {100% of salary) based on

annual EPS growth aver the three year P;""f"’"":,al““'
performance period are Plan
’ award
LEAP award 1/3 of maximum {50% of salary) based on patd in shares
average annyal cash flow conversion rate over {amaunt
tha three year perfermance penod dependent on
performance
achieved)

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3




Annual compound growth in EPS element

(100% of salary for the Executive Directors)

Growth i EPS will be measured based on the underlying basic
earnings per share as disclosed in the relevant annual report and
accounts This is calculated before intangible amortisation, non-
recurring operating tems and non-operating rtems and post any
impairment of goodwill or intangibles) The following EPS targets
apply to awards made from 2012 onwards

Vesting
{% of salary  100% of salary
for Executive based on
Directors) EPS growth
Threshold 16 7% 6% pa
Target 50% 9% pa
Maximum 100% 12% pa

Average annual cash flow conversion rate element

(50% of salary for the Executive Directors)

Calculated as the underlying cash flow from operations dvided by

the underlying profit from operatons as reported in the annual report
and accounts The annual cash flow conversion rate over the three
year performance perniod will be averaged to provide a focus on the
continued sustained delivery of cash-backed profits The following
cash conversion rate targets apply to awards made from 2012 anwards

50% of salary

based on

Vesting  annual average

{% of satary cash flow

for Executive conversion

Directors) rate

Threshold 8 3% 55%
Target 25% 100%
Maximum 50% 110%

Wider workforce remuneration

When deterrmining the remuneration arrangements for Executive
Directors the Remuneraticn Commitiee takes into consideration, as
a matter of course the pay and conditions of employees throughout
the Group In particular, the Remuneration Committee 1s kept
informed on

> Salary increase for the general employee population
> Overall spend on annual bonus
> Participation levels in the annual bonus and share plans

There will be no salary increases for Executive Directors in 2013 The
general salary increase for employeas other than Executive Directars
will be approximately 1 75% The Chief Executive's Leadership Team
has wawved this general increase However, awards will be made

to employees below the main Board to take account of changes

In scope and responsibilty tn July 2012, a one-off payment of
£600 per employee was paid 1o a targeted employee population

The thresheld earnings target for the 2012 bonus was not met and
therefore no bonus has been awarded to the Executive Directors for
the year endad 31 December 2012

The Group has various ways of engaging our employees collectively,
as teams and one t¢ one A number of methods are comman across
all the Group (Team Talk, Performance Development Review, Jab Chat,
Great Debate and Chief Executive s Leadership Team Lunches) and a
number are business or area speafic {newsletters, dial in, consultation
groups and socials) The Board does receve updates and feedback on
employee engagement
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Service contracts and termination payments
The policy set out below provides the framework for contracts for
Executive Directors

Policy

Notice period on 12 calendar months
termination by

employing company

Termination payment Severance payments in relation to the service
contract are Imited to no more than one
year’s salary plus benefits in kind and
pension entitlements

Vesting of incentives The Committee has the discretion to

for leavers determine appropriate bonus amounts
taking into consideration the circumstances
in which an Executive Director leaves
Typically for 'good leavers’, bonus amounts
{as estimated by the Committee) will be
pro-rated for time (n service to termination
and will be, subject to performance paid at
the usual tme

The vesting of share based awards i1s governad
by the rules of the relevant incentive plan, as
approved by shareholders

» Under the LEAP, the provisions for
‘good leavers' and on a change of
control provide that awardg will
vest at the date of cessation of
employment/on a change of centrol
(and, unless the Remuneration
Committee determines otherwise,
subject to pro-rating for time and
performance}

> Under the deferred bonus plan, the
prowvisions for ‘good leavers’ and on a
change of control provide that deferred
share awards will be released in full at
the date of cessation of employment/
on a change of control

The following table sets out the detalls of the Executive Directors’
service contracts

Name Commencement Notice Period Term
Richard Adam 2 Aprl 2007 12 months roling
Richard Howson 10 December 2009 12 months rolling

Non-Executive Directors are not employed under contracts of service,
but are generally appointed for fixed terms of three years renewable
for further terms of ane to three years, If both parties agree

Shareholder engagement

The Remuneration Commuttee engages in regular dialogue with
shareholders to discuss and take feedback on its remuneration policy
and governance matters (n particular, the Remuneration Committee
discusses any significant changes to the policy or the measures used
to assess performance

The Remuneratton Commttee undertook an extensive consultation
with major shareholders and investor bodies in respect of the proposed
changes to the LEAP for the financa! year beginning 1 January 2012

No significant amendments were made to the remuneration policy
for 2013 and the Remuneration Committee did not therefore feel 1t
necessary 1o undertake a further consultation exercase

The Remuneration Committee wiil continue to actively engage with
and seek to incorporate the views of its shareholders 1n any major
changes to the Executive Director remuneration policy

Governance Qur performance About us

Financiat statements
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Remuneration report

continued

Implementation Report summary of 2012 remuneration outcomes

Single figure of remuneration for each Director

Etement and methodology

Richard Howson
£000

Richard Adam
£000

Base salary
Full base salary paid during the year

560

429

Benefits
The value of any taxabie benefits for 2012 This includes a car/car allowance fuet benefit and private medical care

21

21

Pension and cash supplement in heu of pension

The pension figure represents the cash value of pension contribution receved by the Executive Directors This includes
the Caompany’s contributions, additional amounts paid over the internal earnings cap and any salary supplement in
excess of the annual allowance

210

153

Annual bonus
The annual bonus is the cash value of the bonus earned in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012
(including the deferred shares which must be held for a mimimum three year penod)

Nil

Nil

LEAP

The value of the long term incentive award earned In respect of the performance penod commencing 1 January 2010
and ending 31 December 2012

The value of the vested shares s the face value of shares at the vesting date or estimate of total market value if
not yet vested

Nl

Nil

2012 Total

791

603

Pay for performance for 2012
2012 Annual Bonus
For 2012, the annual bonus was based on the following performance targets

Executive Directar Financial performance Personal performance

Richard Howson 75% of salary based on growth in
Richard Adam earnings per share |

25% of salary based on individual objectives

Performance against targets

Due to the economic conditions in Carllion’s industry sectors and the Group's performance, the finanaat performance requirements for the 2012
bonus were not met and therefore no bonus has been awarded to the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2012

Financial performance Target underlying EPS of 45p not achieved No bonus awarded for financal performance element

Personal performance The personal objectives of the Executive Directors, as noted below, were agreed by the Remuneration
Committee at therr December 2011 meeting, and assessed at February 2013 to establish the extent to

which they had been met

However, the threshold earnings target of 45p was not met and therefore no bonus has been awarded for

the personal performance element

Richard Howson

Lead the Group’s Health & Safety strategy and make pragress towards achieving the objective of zero

reportable accdents

Progress the Group's strategy in line with the Group’s published objectives

Faciitate the delivery of 2012 targeted net debt, average net debt and underlying profit before tax consistent

with the Group’s prudent appreach to managing profit and cash

Lead the ongoing succession plan for the Group and encourage cross business unit engagement to ensure the

Group has a strong and effective management team

Richard Adam

Support and facilitate the delivery of 2012 targeted net debt, average net debt and underlying profit before

tax consistent with the Group's prudent approach to managing prefit and cash

Continue to implement the Group’s profit improvement and cost management targets through engagement
with the business and the delivery of the Group’s supply chain management programme

Continue to review the financing structure of the Group and by securing further US private placement facilities,

reprafile the maturty dates of the Group’s borrowing facilities
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Value earned from long-term incentive awards

The Leadership Equity Award Plan ('LEAP’)

LEAP awards granted to Executive Directors prior to 2012 were based on growth in earrings per share against the Retaif Price Index (RPI} as
shown below

Growth in earnings per share % of base salary
Level 1 RPI+ 3% pa 30% vests
Level 2 RPI+ 7% pa 50% vests
Level 3 RPl + 12% pa 100% vests
Level 4 RPl + 25% pa Extra 50% vests

Levels 1 to 3 apply to all participants, level 4 applies to the Executive Directors

Performance against targets

EPS performance achieved in three year performance penod to 31 December 2012 RPI +1 8%

% of 2010 award due to vest in Apnit 2013 NIl

Long term incentives awarded during the financial year
The table below outlines awards made under the LEAP to Executive Directors in 2012

Award basss Face value of the award Vesting at threshold Performance peniod
5 April 2012 Richard Howson 150% of base salary £840,000 1/6th of the maximum 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014
5 April 2012 Richard Adam 150% of base salary £675 000 1/6th of the maximum 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014

The performance conditions attaching to these awards are detailed in the table on page 55

Total shareholdings of directors
Number of shares

subject to deferral Number of shares
Current shareholdings without performance subject to performance
Shareholder requirement {per cent of salary) Owned outnght condions conditions
Richard Adam 100 per cent of salary 157,004 (110 6%) 157,004 74,318 586,163
Richard Howson 100 per jent of salary 67,572 (38 3%) 67,572 TOJBD 581,398
Remuneration Committee members and advisers Addittonal infarmation
The Remuneration Committee consists exclusively of independent
Non-Executive Directors, Vanda Murray, Steven Mogford, Philip Total Shareholder Return (TSR} performance graphs
Green and Andrew Dougal Its terms of reference can be found The following graphs show the T5R of Canllion plc compared
an the Company's website www canlhonplc com The Remuneration with the TSR of tha FTSE 350 Index The FTSE 350 was chosen
Committee determines policy for remuneration of the Executive as the comparator group 1n order to illustrate the Company’s TSR
Directors of Canllion plc and key members of the senior performance against a broad equity market index of the UK's
management team leading companies TSR 15 not used as a perfermance measure

for any benefits provided to Executive Directors
The Remuneration Commuttee s assisted in 1ts work by Susannah
Clements, Group HR Director and previously by her predecessor Carilllion TSR vs FTSE 350 1 January 2008 - 31 December 2012
Susan Mcrton Philip Rogersan, Chairman and Richard Howsen, Rebased to 100
Group Chief Executive also assisted the Remuneration Committee
during the year The Group Chief Executive 1s consulted an the
remuneration of those who report directly to him and also of other
senior executives No Executive Director or employee 1s present or
takes part in discusstons in respect of matters relating directly to
their own remuneration

Addiionally the Remuneration Committee uses Deloitte LLP to

provide salary survey and benchmarking information and external

and internal contextual Information and analysis as required The

Remuneration Committee tock nto account the Remuneration

Consultants Group’s Code of Conduct when appointing Deloitte LLP

as adviser to the Remuneration Commitiee Deloitie LLP’s fees for

providing such advice amounted to approximately £20,163 (2011

£40,600) {or the year ended 31 Decernber 2012 The Remuneration Canllion TSR vs FTSE 350 1 January 2012 - 31 December 2012
Committee assesses from time to tirme whether this appointment Rebased to 100
remains appropriate or should be put out to tender The Remuneration

Committee undertook such an assessment during the year and

remains sausfied with Defoitte LLP's appomntment as adwvisers to the

Remuneration Committee Deloitie LLP, which was appointed in 2005,

also provides certain specialist consultancy services including internal

audit services but otherwise has no other connections with the Group

The Remuneration Comanittee adopts the princeples of goed
governance as set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code and
complies with the Listing Rules of the Finanaal Services Authornity
and the Directors’” Remunerat:on Report Regulations 2002 1t met
three times dunng the year and all members attended all meetings

About us

Our performaonce
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Remuneration report

continued

Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the Directors of Canllion ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 15 set cut in the table below This is audited information

Annual performance banus

Basic desf:frr:; Other Toral Total

salaryffees Cash three years berefits® 02 201

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Richard Adam 429 - - 174 603 951
Richard Howson 560 - - 231 791 902
Total for Executive Directors 989 - - 405 1,394 1,853
Steven Mogford 50 - - - 50 48
Vanda Murray 60 - - - 60 55
Philip Rogerson 192 - - - 192 189
Phillp Green 60 - - - 60 34
Andrew Dougal 60 - - - 60 15
Total for Non-Executive Directors 422 - - - 422 341
Total for all Directors 1,411 - - 405 1,816 2,194

() Included In Cther benefits Is a salary supplement for Richard Adam of £39 557 {2011 £92 500) and for Richard Howson of £143 568 (2011 £84 773) in respect of salary over the internal
pensions earmings cap Also included in Other benefits 15 an allewance for Richard Adam in place of contributions to the Carifien Pension Plan on earnings up to the internal earnings cap
of £53 080 {2011 £39 8§10 - for mine months}

Payments to Former Directors

John McDonough

Bonus of £632,400 n respect of 2011 performance and disclosed in the 2011 Remuneration Report was paid 1o John McDonough in April 2012
The LEAP 2009 award vested with an award of 21% of the total avalable 77,062 shares were awarded on 10 April 2012

Directors’ pensions
Defined benefit pensions accruing during 2012 to Executive Directors in ther capacity as Directors of Canllion plc are set out below Thisis
audited information

Accrued

pension at Incraasen Value of

31 December accrued penson
2012 pensian accrued Increase in
Accruec less accrued over year during Transfer Transter transfer value
pension at pension at including 2012 value at value at over year
31 Decernber 31 Decernber inflation less member start of end of after member

201204 201 allowance contributions year year®  contributions®

£ per annum £ per annum £ per annum £ £ £ £
Richard Howson 26,870 710 - - 295,640 303,129 7,489

(1) The pension figures assume that CP| (rather than RPI) apphes to revalue deferred benefits from 1 January 2011

(2) The accrued pension amount at 31 Dacember 2011 has been updated to reflect changes in the pension provided by the scheme adminstrator following an update of pension at the date of
leaving on the member s record The figure disclosed last year was £23 909

(3} Figures based on market conditions at 31 December 2012

{4) The transfar valye for the previous period has been recalculated using the updated accrued pension figures prowided by the administrater and the assumptions appropniate for the Canllion
staff Pension Scheme and assume that the transferred-in element does not contain any Guaranteed Mimmum Pansion from the previous arrangement

(5) The accrued pension allows for inflation from the member s date of leaving to the current date The benefit the member may receve on retirement s based on statutory revatuations which
may differ

The total number of Directors to whom retirement benefits accrued during the year was 1 (2011 2)

The contnbutions made to defined contribution pension plans on behalf of the Directors are set cut In the table below This 1s audited information

Plan Amount £

Richard Howsaon Canlhan 2009 Pension Plan 50,707

Death 1n service benefits are provided as part of membership of these plans Where applicable, the value of these benefits 15 also disclosed in the
table above

Directors’ share awards
The awards held by Executive Directors of the Company under LEAP as at 31 December 2012 are shown below This 1s audited information

Wid market
Asat Awards Awards Awards As at share price
1January  granted dunng  vesting during lapsing during 31 Decemnber an date
2012 the year the year the year 2012 Date of award
Number Number Number Number Number of award Pence
Richard Adam

LEAP 2009 (maximum) 236,750 - 49,717 187,033 Ni 0704 09 25225
LEAP 2010 (maximum) 192,090 - - - 192,090 170310 3186
LEAP 2011 (maximurry) 159,209 - - - 159,209 080411 384 4
LEAP 2012 (maximum) - 234,864 - - 234,864 050412 2874

Richard Howson
LEAP 2009 (maximumm) 68,544 - 21,934 46,610 Nil 070408 252 25
LEAP 2010 {maximum) 138,888 - - - 138,888 170310 3186
LEAP 2011 (maximum) 150,234 - - 150 234 0804 1 384 4

LEAP 2012 (maximum) - 292,276 - - 292,276 050412 2874




On 10 Apnl 2012, 49,717 shares vested to Richard Adam and 21,934 to
Richard Howson Tha market price of Carllion shares on 10 Aprl 2012
was 282 8 pence

Executive Share Option Schemes

Options under the Canlhion plc Executive Share Option Schemes
are exeraisable normally between three and 10 years after the date
of grant

Following shareholder approval of the Canllion plc Long Term Incentive
Plan (the ‘LEAP'} at the 2006 AGM, no further options were granted
under the Carillion plc Executive Share Option Schemes

At 31 December 2012, 56,401 Executive Share Options were
outstanding (2011 56,401 shares under option)

The Executive Directors do not hold any Executive Share Options

There have been no changes to the interests of Executive Directors
In share incentives In the peried 1 January 2013 to 27 February 2013

Carillion Energy Services’ Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Canlhon Energy Services (CES - previously Eaga plc) operates a HM
Revenue and Customs' approved SIP for the benefit of employees of
the former Eaga companigs The SIP prowvtdes for the award of free
shares or share options in Canliton plc to all qualifying CES employees
Those qualifying employees resident in the UK receive free shares
under the HM Revenue and Customs approved SIP while those resident
outside the UK are granted share options under the International SIP
arrangement The vesting period for awards 1s three years for non-UK
based employees while the free share awards to UK resident
employees vest on the|date of grant Whilst they rematn in
employment with Carillion qualifying employees must hold therr
shares or options for at least three years before they can be accessed

The SIP 1s well received by employees with over 97 per cent
participation

The cost of implementing and administerng the $IP 1s borne by the
two Eaga Partnership Trusts (the EPT)

All qualifying CES’ employees are beneficianes of the EPT The EPT 15
the vehicle in which shares in Canllion plc and other assets are held
in trust for the benefit of qualifying employees The EPT 15 subject to
a constututton and trust deed and 15 independent of all companies
now within the Carnllion Group The EPT's affairs are managed by
two corparate trustees, each governed by a board of Directors
including independent trustees

As at the date of this report, Canllion had been formally not:fied under
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules that the EPT held a combined
total of 16,879,323 Canllion plc shares representing 3 92 per cent of
the issued share capital

The EPT waved 1n part the 2011 final dvidend paid by Canllion plc
in lune 2012 and in full the 2012 interim dividend paid in November
2012 These funds have been used by CES to fund the share award
under the S!#
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Employee Benefit Trusts

An employee benefit trust was established to acquire shares in
Carlon plc and hold them for the benefit of participants (including
Executive Directors) In the share incentive and share option schemes
At 31 December 2012, the Trust held 250 Canlhon plc shares

(2011 74,290 shares) representing 0 000058 per cent of the issued
share capital (2011 O 017 per cent) acquired over a pertod in the open
market and which have a carrying value of £250 (2011 £0 2 milhon)
The market value of the shares held at 31 December 2012 was £793
(2011 £0 2 mifhon)

Addtionally, a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (QUEST)
operated in conjunction with Carflion in provicding shares to employees
under its Sharesave Scheme At 31 December 2012, the QUEST

held 129,979 Canllion shares {2011 129,979 shares) representing

003 per cent of the issued share capital (2011 0 03 per cent) at
subscription prices ranging from 115 5 pence to 296 25 pence per
share, to enable it to satisfy options under the Sharesave Scheme The
market value of the shares held by the QUEST at 31 December 2012
was £0 4 million (2011 £0 4 mithon)

For details of dividends paid to the above trusts see note 24 to the
consohdated financial statements on page 90

The closing mid-market price of Canllion shares at 31 December 2012
and the highest and lowest rid-market prices during the year were
as follows

Share price

Pence

31 December 2012 3170
High 23 February 2012 3440
Low 24 July 2012 | 2355

Approved by order of the Board

N\ oo,

Vanda Murray OBE
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
27 February 2013

Governance Qur performance Aboutus
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applcable law and
have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their
profit or loss for that peniod In preparing each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to

> Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

> Make judgements and estimates that are seasonable and prudent,

> For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

> For the Parent Company financial statements state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Parent
Company financal staternents, and

> Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
Parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and explain the|Parent Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure
that tts financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregulanties

Linder applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible
for preparing a Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Staterment that complies with that law and
those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and finanaial information included on the Company's
website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation

in other jurisdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement

Each of the Directors of Canllian plc, whase names and functions
are set out on pages 40 and 41, confirms that to the best of hus or
her knowledge

> The financil statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards and contained in this
2012 Annval Report and Accounts, give a true and fair view of
the assets, labilities, financial pesition and profit of Carllion plc
and the Carllion Group taken as a whole, and

> The business review, contained in the Directors’ Report and
the Operating and Financial Review secuon In this 2012 Annual
Report and Accounts, Includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of Carllion plc
and the Canllion Group, taken as a whole, together with principal
nsks and uncertainties they face

Disclosure of Information to auditors

The Directors of Canllion ple confirm that at the date of this
statement and as far as they are indwidually aware, there 1s no
relevant audit nformation of which the auditors are unaware
and each Director has taken all reasonable steps to ascertain any
relevant audit nformation and to establish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information

Approved by order of the Boar

Richard Adam FC
Group Finance Director
27 February 2013




Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Carilion plc

We have audited the financial statements of Carllion plc far the year
ended 31 December 2012, which comprises the Group Consolidated
Income Statement, the Group Consoldated and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Group Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Group Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Group Consohidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the EU The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s repert and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Direciors’ Responsibilities
set out on page 62, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the finanoial statements and for being satisfied that they give a

true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an gpsnion
on, the finanaal statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply wath the Auditing Practices Board'’s (APB's) Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements
1s provided on the Financial Reporting Counal’s website at
www frc org uk/suditscopeukpnvate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

> The financal statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as
at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

> The Group financial statements have been properly prepared
n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

> The Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,

> The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Comparies Act 2006, and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulatron

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

> The part of the Remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Campanies Act 2006,

> The information given in the Report of the Directors for the
finanaial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent wath the financial statements, and

> The information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set
out in Corporate Governance report with respect to internal
control and nsk management systems in relation to finanaial
reporting processes and about share capital structures is
onsistent with the finanoal statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fellowing

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
it 1n our opinion

> Adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been recewed from branches not visited by us, or

> The Parent Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited are not
1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speafied by
law are not made, or

> We have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

> The Directors’ statement, set out an page 35, in relation to
gotng concern,

> The part of the Corporate Governance Statement set out in
the Corporate Governance report, relating to the Company's
comphance with the nine provisiens of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review, and

> Certain elements of the report to shareholders by the
Board on Directors’ remuneration

Darren Turner
Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Cne Snawhill

Snow Hill Queensway

Birmingham

B4 6GH

27 February 2013
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Consolidated iIncome statement
For ihe year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011w
Note fm fm

Total revenue 4,402 8 5,051 2
Less Share of jointly controlled entimes’ revenue {736 6) 898 1)
Group revenue 2 3,666 2 4,153 2
Cost of sales (3,2794) (37618
Gross profit 386 8 3914
Administrative expenses (235 9) (298 0)
Profit on disposal of Public Private Partnership equity investments 132 115
Group operating profit 3 1641 104G
Analysed between
Group operating profit before intangible amortisation and non-recurring operating items 198 1 1787
Intangible amorusation® (314) (319)
Non-recurring operating items®™ 4 (26) (42 8)
Share of results of yjointly controlled entities 2 343 487
Analysed between
QOperating profit 520 710
Net financal expense (16 0) (18 8)
Taxation a7) (35)
Profit from operations 198 4 1536
Analysed between
Profit from operations before intangible amortisation and non-recurring operating items 2324 2274
Intangible amortisation®® (314) (310
Non-recurring operating tems® 4 (2 6) 42 8)
Non-operating items 4 12} {69)
Net financial expense | 5 a7n L))
Analysed between |
Financial iIncome 115 3 1320
Financial expense (133 0) (135 9)
Profit before taxation 1795 142 8
Anatysed between
Profit before taxation, intangible amortisation, non-recurnng cperating stems and nen-operating items 2147 2235
Intangible amortisation® 314) (310
Non-recurring operating items™ 4 (2 6) (42 8)
Non-aperating items 4 12) 69)
Taxation 7 (13 3) (48
Profit for the year 166 2 1380
Profit attnbutable to
Equity halders of the parent 160 1 1346
Non-controlling interests 61 34
Profit for the year 166 2 1380
Earmings per share 8
Basic 372p 320p
Diluted 370p 318p

(1) Restated following the change in presentation of profits on the disposal of Public Private Partnership equity investments from non operating 1ems to operaung items (amounting to

£13 2 millionin 2032 and £11 5 million in 2011)
(2} Ansing from business combinations
{3} This includes integration and rationalisation costs and Eaga Partnership Trusts refated charges {see note 4}




For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2012 201
£m fm £m fm
Profit for the year 166 2 1380
Net gain on hedge of net investment in foreign operations 15 01
Currency translation differences on foreign operations (8 8) 19
Movement in far value of cash flow hedging denvativas (71) -
Reclassification of effective portion of cash flow hedging dernivatives 1o profit 21 -
Increase n fair value of available for sale assets 49 50
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes (73 4) (96 6)
(80 8) (89 6)
Taxaton in respect of the above 14 200
Share of recycled cash flow hedges wathin jointly controlled entities (net of taxatton) 104 134
Share of change in farr value of effective cash flow hedges within jointly controlied entities
(net of taxation} (3 2) (13 3)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (62 2) (69 5)
Total comprehensive income for the year 104 0 685
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 979 651
Non-controlling interests 61 34
104 0 68 5
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Share Share Translaton  Hedging  Farvalue Merger  Retained sharehf):‘;;g' :onb'ohl‘lf:g Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings funds interests equity
£m £m fm £m fm im m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2012 2151 212 (16 1) 237) 109 464 6 3009 9729 96 982 5
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1601 1601 61 166 2
Other comprehensive Income
Net gain on hedge of net investment
in fareign operations - - 15 - - - - 15 - 15
Currency translation differences on foreign
operations - - (8 8) - - - - (8 8) - (88)
Movement in farr value of cash flow
hedging denvatives - - - {71) - - - 71 - (71)
Reclassification of effective portion of cash
flow hedging denvatives to profit - - - 21 - - - 21 - 21
Increase in fair value of available for
sale assets - - - - 49 - - 49 - 49
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - - (73 4) {73 4) - (73 4)
Taxation - - (0 4) - - - 118 14 - 14
Share of recycled cash flow hedges within
jointly controlled entities (net of taxation) - - - 104 - - - 104 - 104
Share of change in farr value of effective
cash flow hedges within jointly controlled
entties (net of taxation) - - - (32) - - - (32) - (32
Transfer between reserves (see note 24) - - - - - (314) 314 - - -
Total comprehensive income/{expense) - - (77) 22 49 (314) 1299 979 61 1040
Transactions with owners
Contributions by and distributions
to owners I
Acquisition of own shares - - - - - - (30) 30 - (30)
Equity settled transactions (net of taxation) - - - - - - 23 23 - 23
Cash settlemeant of vested equity settled
transactions - - - - - - {0 8) (0 8) - (0 8)
Dwvidends paid - - - - - - (70 4) {70 4) (82) (786)
Non-controlling interests acquired - - - - - - - - 31 31
Total transactions with owners - - - - - - (719 (719) {51) (770)
At 31 December 2012 2151 212 (23 8) (21 5) 158 433 2 358 9 598 9 106 10095
At 1 lanuary 2011 1998 212 (181) (23 8) 59 3931 2775 8556 96 8652
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - i346 134 6 34 1380
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on hedge of net nvestment in
foreugn operations - - 01 - - - - 01 - 01
Currency translation differences on
foreign operations - - 19 - - - - 19 - 19
Increase in fair value of avallable for
sale assets - - - - 50 - - 50 - 50
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension
schemes - - - - - - {96 6} 96 6) - (96 6)
Taxation - - - - - - 200 200 - 200
Share of recycled cash flow hedges within
jointly controlted entities (net of taxation) - - - 134 - - - 134 - 134
Share of change In fair value of effective
cash flow hedges within jointly controlled
entities (net of taxation) - - - (133 - - - (133 - (133
Trans{er between reserves - - - - - (309) 308 - - -
Total comprehensive income/{expense) — - 20 01 50 (309) 889 651 34 68 5
Transactions with owners
Contrnibutions by and distributions
to owners
Share capital 1ssued on acquisition of
Eaga plc 153 - - - - 1024 - ni7 - n77
Acquisiion of own shares - - - - - - €9 (69) - {69}
Equity settied transactions (net of taxation) - - - - - - 60 60 - 60
Dividends paid - - - - - - {64 6) (64 6} (34) (68 Q)
Total transactions with owners 153 - - - - 102 4 {65 5) 522 (3 4) 48 8
At 31 December 2011 2151 212 {16 1) (23 7) 109 464 6 3009 9729 96 9825




Consolidated balance sheet
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2012 20

Note fm £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1271 134 2
Intangible assets 1 1,5401 1,%476
Retirement benefit asset N 07 -
Investments in jointly controlled entities 12 176 4 1596
Qther investments 13 615 513
Deferred tax assets 14 1214 1376
Total non-current assets 2,027 2 2,0303
Current assets
Inventones 15 553 716
Trade and other recevables 17 11087 1,0946
Cash and cash equivalents 18 6571 4507
Denvative financial instruments 27 04 -
Current asset investrments 19 25 43
Income tax recewable 108 77
Total current assets 1,834 8 1,668 9
Total assets 3,862 0 3,6992
Current habilities
Borrowing 20 (35 3) (32 5)
Denvative financial mstruments 27 7N [(632)]
Trade and other payables 21 (1,615 2) (1,773 6)
Provisions 22 (27 0) (45 8)
Income 1ax payable (3 8} #4)
Total current habilities (1,688 4) (1,857 2}
Non-current habilities
Borrowing 20 (777 6} (508 9)
Other payables 21 (9 4) -
Retirement benefit liabilities 3 (3517) (305 8)
Deferred tax habifities 14 {16 2) (255)
Provisions 22 (9 2) (19 3)
Total non-current babihities (1,164 1) (859 5)
Total habilities {2,852 5) (2,716 7)
Net assets 1,009 5 9825
Equity
Share capital 23 2151 2151
Share premium 24 212 212
Translation reserve 24 (23 8) (16 1)
Hedging reserve 24 (215) (237)
Fair value reserve 24 158 109
Merger reserve 24 433 2 464 6
Retamed earnings 24 3589 3009
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 998 9 9729
Non-controlling interests 106 96
Total equity 1,0095 9825

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

7/

Richard Adam FCA
Group Finance Disector
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 20me
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Group operating profit 1641 1049
Depreciation and amoertisation 622 623
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16 06
Profit on disposal of Public Private Fartnership equity investments (13 2} (11 5)
Other nen-cash movements (10 0} 02
Non-recurnng operating items 26 42 8
Operating profit before changes in working capital 207 3 199 3
Decrease In Inventories 152 197
(Increase)/decrease In trade and other receivables (36 6) 533
Decrease in trade and other payables {143 5) (816)
Cash generated from operations before pension defiat recovery payments,
rationalisation costs and Eaga Partnership Trusts related charges 424 1907
Deficit recovery payments to pension schemes (30 2) (36 2)
Rationalisation costs {28 6) (34 4)
Eaga Partnership Trusts related charges - ¢ 6)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (16 4) 195
Financial iIncome receved 158 160
Financial expense paid (27 3) (213)
Acquisition costs (0 6) 72
Taxatign receipts/(payments) 29 {3 8)
Net cash flows from operating activities (25 6) 103 2
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 27 172
Dispasal of jointly controlled entity and other investments 30 459 N4
Dividends I'E';CEIVEd from jointly controlled entities 136 396
Disposal and closure of businesses 30 (38) )]
Decrease in current asset investments 18 37
Acguisitien of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 {49) (1827
Acquisition of intangible assets (37) (2 8)
Acquisition of property, plant and equpment (14 6) (98)
Acquisition of equity in and net loan advances to jointly controlled entities (197) (27 6)
Acquisition of other non-current asset investments 30) (34)
Net cash flows from investing activities 14 3 {136 3)
Cash flows from finanang activities
Draw down of bank and other loans 2772 2230
Payment of finance lease llabilities (16 8) (15 8}
Acquisition of own shares (30} 659
Payment to employees in settlement of share aptions (0 8) (18
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent {70 4) (64 6)
Dadends paid to non-controlling interests (8 2) 34
Net cash flows from financing activities 178 0 130 5
increase in net cash and cash equivalents 1667 974
Net cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4877 3911
Effect of exchange rate fluctuatons on net cash and cash equivalents (22) 08)
Net cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 18 652 2 4877

{1) Restated following the change in presemtation of profits on the dispesal of Pubhc Private Partnership equity investments from non operating items to operating tems (amounting to

£13 2 mullion in 2012 and £11 5 million 1n 2011}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

Carilicn plc (the ‘Company’) 1s a company domaled and incorporated
in the United Kingdom (UK) The consolidated finanaial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 comprise the
Company and its subs:dianies (together referred to as the ‘Group’)
and the Group's interest in jomntly controlled entities

The consohdated financial statements weare authonsed for 1ssuance
on 27 February 2013

Statement of comphance

The Group's financal statements have been prepared and approved
by the Directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU {‘Adopted IFRSs’} The Company has
elected to prepare its financial statements in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice These are presented on
pages 108 to 113

Basis of preparation

The following accounting policies have bean applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
Group's financal statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis based
on the assessment made by the Directors as described in the Operating
and financial review on page 35

The financial statements are presented in pounds stering They

are prepared on the histoncal cost basis except that the foliowing
assets and hahbilities are stated at therr far value denvative financial
instruments, pension scheme assets, cash and cash equivalents and
financial instruments dassified as available-for-sale |

There have been no significant changes in accounting policies or
any maternal impact on the Group arising from the adoption of new
accounting standards and interpretations in 2012

The following standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
and have not been early adepted by the Group will be adapted in
future accounting penods

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 'Financial
instruments’

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 10 *Consclidated
Financial Statements’

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 11 ‘Joint
Arrangements’

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 12 ‘Disclosure
of interests in other entities’

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13 ‘Fair value
measurement’

> Amendment t¢ International Accounting Standard (1AS) 19
‘Employee benefits’

Except for the amendment to IAS 19, none of these standards
or amendments are expacted to impact profit, earnings per share
and net assets n future periods

The amendment to JAS 19 makes significant changes to the recognrtion
and measurement of the defined benefit pension expanse and
termination benefits and disclosures relating to all employee benefits
The amendment 1s effective for accounting penods commencing on

1 January 2013 and 1t 15 anticipated that the total pension cost relating
to defined benefit schemes recognised In the income statement in 2013
will be approximately £28 million on a revised IAS 19 basis In 2013,
comparative infoermaticn for 2012 will be restated on a revised |AS

19 basis, which will lead to an increase of £14 7 milion in the reported
2012 total pension cost to £24 2 milhon

Change in presentation

In 2012, profit from the disposal of equity investments in Public Private
Partnershup projects has been presented within Group operating profit
In the income statement in recogrition of the recurring nature of the
disposals and to align the Group with current practice within the
industry Previously such profits were presented within non-operating
items Comparative informatton has been restated accordingly as
disclosed in note 34

Basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the finanaal
statements of the Company and subsiciaries controlled by the
Company drawn up to 31 December 2012 Control exists when

the Group has direct or indirect power to govern the finanaial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain economic benefits from
Its activities Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
staternents from the date that control transfers to the Group until
the date that control ceases The financial statements of subssdiaries
used In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
prepared for the same reporting year as the Company

The purchase method 15 used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes

(b) foint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
undertakes an economic activity that 1s subject to joint control with
third parties The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for using the equity method Under this method, the
Group's share of the profits less losses of jointly controlled entities

1s included in the conschdated income statement and (s interests in
therr net assets 1s included 1n Investments in the consclidated balance
sheet Where the share of losses exceeds the interests in the entity,
the carrying amount 1s reduced to nil and recogmition of further
losses 1s discontinued The Group’s nterest in the entity 1s the carrying
amount of the investment together with any long-term interest that,
in substance, forms part of the netinvestment in the entity

Financial statements of jointly controlled entities are prepared for
the same reporting periods as the Group except for Modern Housing
Solutions (Prime) Limnited which has a 31 March year end lts results
are included in the Group accounts based on additional financat
statements for the 12 months to 31 December 2012

Where a Group company (s party 10 a jointly controlled operation, that
company accounts for the assets it controls, the habilities and expenses
it Incurs and 1ts share of the iIncome Such arrangements are reported
In the consolidated financial statements on the same basis

Governance Our performance About us
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 Significant accounting pohicies {continued)

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill arising on acquisitions that have occurred since 1 January
2004 represents the difference between the fair value of the cost of
acquisthion and the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilines and
contingent labilities of an acquired enyity For acquisiions completed
before 1 January 2010, attnibutable costs of the acquisition formed
part of goodwill For acquisitions completed after 1 January 2010,
attributable costs of the acquisition are expensed in the income
statement in the period incurred In respect of acquisitions prior to

1 January 2004, goodwill 1s included on the basis of 1ts deemed cost,
which represents the amount recorded under previcus Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice

Positive goodwill 1s recogrised as an asset in the consolidated balance
sheet and Is subject to an annual impawrment review Goodwill arising
on the acquisition of subsidianes 1s recognised separately as an
intangible asset In the consolidated balance sheet Goodwill anising
on the acquisition of jontly controlled entities 1s included withan the
carrying value of the Investment Negative goodwill 1s recognised in
the income statement immediately

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses Amortisation 1s based on the
useful economic lives of the assets concerned, which are principally
as follows

Computer software and licences
> Straight-line over three to five years

Customer contracts and lists
> Mowlem

consumption of economic benefits over 35 years
> Alfred McAlpine

consumption of economic benefits over 12 years
> Vanbots Group

consumption of economic benefits aver five years
> Canllion Energy Services

consumption of economic benefits over four years

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each
of the Group’s cash generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination Cash generating units to which goodwill
has been allacated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impawred
I the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1s less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit An iImpairment toss recogmsed for
goodwill s not reversed 1n a subsequent period

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date Asseis
subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for imparment
whenever events or arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recognised In the
income statement based on the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks speafic to the asset

Other non-current asset investments

Other non-current asset mvestmends are classified as available for sale
financial assets and are recogmised at fair value Changes in farr value
In the year are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive
income Dvidend income from investments is recogrised in the ncome
statement when the nght 1o receive payment is established

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised by reference 10 the
degree of completion of each contract, as measured by the proportion
of total costs at the balance sheet date to the estimated total cost of
the contract

Insurance claims, incentive payments, and vanations arising from
construction contracts are included where they have been agreed
with the clent

when the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue 15 recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred where 1t 1s probable those costs will be recoverable

The principal estmation techmigue used by the Group in attributing
profit on contracts to a particular period 1s the preparation of forecasts
on a contract by contract basis These focus on revenues and costs to
complete and enable an assessment to be made of the final cut-turn
of each contract Consistent contract review procedures are n place in
respect of contract forecasting

When 1t 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised immedtately Contract costs
are rsicogmsed as expenses in the penod in which they are incurred

Where costs incurred plus recogrised profits less recogrused fosses
exceed progress billings, the balance s shown as due from customers
on construction contracts within trade and other receivables Where
progress bilings exceed costs incurred plus recogrsed profits less
recognised losses, the balance 1s shown as due to customers on
construction centracts within trade and other payables

Pre-contract costs

Pre-coniract costs are expensed as incurred until the Group 15
appainted preferred idder or formal notification of the intention

to appoint is recerved Provided the contract 1s expected to generate
sufficient net cash inflows to enable recovery and the award of the
contract 15 prebable, pre-contract costs incurred post the appointment
as preferred bidder are included in amounts owed by customers on
construction contracts

Where pre-contract bid costs are retmbursed at financial close, the
proceeds are nitially applied against the asset included in amounts
owed by customers on construction contracts Any excess recoveries
are carned forward as deferred income and released to profit over
the period of the contract




1 Sigmificant accounting policies (continued)}

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable excluding
value added tax, for services supphed to external customers [t also
includes the Group’s proportion of work carried out under jomtly
controlled operations during the year Revenue from the Group s
principal business streams 1s recogrised on the following basts

> Revenue from service contracts is recognised by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage of total services to
be performed

> Revenue from construction contracts is recogrised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy on construction contracis

> Revenue from the delivery of carbon saving measures to utility
companies and other related activities s recognised at the date
of sale, except if services are 10 be provided over future penads,
where the income 15 deferred and recogrised over the relevant
service period

> Revenue from the installation of energy efficiency measures
such as central heating and other renewable technologies s
recognised by reference to the number of energy efficiency
measures nstalled

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation 1s based on historical cost less the estimated residual
value, and the estimated economic life of the assets concerned
Freehold land 1s not depreciated Property, plant and equipment Is
depreciated in equal annual instalments over the period of ther
estimated ecanomic ives, which are principally as follows

Freehold bulldings
Leasehold buldings and improvements
Plant, machinery and vehicles

40-50 years
Peniod of lease
Three-ten years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the term of the lease or the expected useful Iife of the assets

Leasing
Operating lease rental charges are charged to the income statement
on a straight-hne basis over the Iife of each lease

Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and
equipment at the lower of fair value at the date of acquisition or
present value of the minimum lease payments The capital element of
outstanding finance leases is included in financial habibities The finance
cost efement of rentals 1s charged 1o the income statement at a
constant peniodic rate of charge on the outstanding obhgations

Inventories

Inventories comprise land for develogment raw materials and where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred In bringing the inventories to their lecation and condition
at the balance sheet date Inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value Cost s calculated using either the weighted
average method or the first-in first out method

Carbon credits, which are included withuin finished goods, are
charged at the cost of delivering carbon savings and are recorded
as Inventory, at the lower of cost and net realisable value and on a
first-in, first out basis

Provision 15 made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items
where appropnate

Fal
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Current asset investments
Current asset investments include cash balances held on deposit for
penods greater than three months and certain resincted cash balances

These balances have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents m
the Group’s balance sheet and cash flow statement

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax Income tax I1s
recogrised in the income statement except to the extent that it
refates to items recognisad directly In equity, in which case it 1s
recogrised in equity

Current tax s the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date, and any adjustment to tax payabte in respect of previous years

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method,
providing for temparary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habihivies for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes The amount of deferred tax provided 1s
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and hiabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmised only to the extent that it 1s probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utihsed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1sno
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Foreign currencies i

In nchvicdual entities, transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into 1ts functional currency and recorded using the
exchange rate prevathng at the date of the transaction

On consolidation, the balance sheets of overseas entities are translated
nto sterling at the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date Income
staternents and cash flows of overseas entities are translated into
sterling at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates at the
date of the transaction Gains or losses arising from the consolidation
of overseas entities are recognised in the translation reserve

Net investment hedging of overseas operations 15 achieved through
borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies Gains and
losses anising from the effective portion of the hedges are recognised
wn equity and ineffective portions are recogmised immediately in the
ncome statement

Employee benefits

{a) Retirement benefit obligations

For defined contribution pension schemes operated by the Group,
amounts payable are charged to the iIncome statement as they fall due

For defined benefit pension schemes, the IAS 19 cost of providing
benefits s calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method or the attained age method for ongoing
schemes The charge to the income statement reflects the current
service cost of such obligations, and where applicable, past service costs

The expected return on plan assets and the interest cost of scheme
ltabihities are mncluded within financial income and expenses tn the
income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 Significant accounting peliaes {continued)

The retrement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet
represents the excess of the present value of schemne hiabilitres over
the fair value of scheme assets When the calculabion results in an
asset to the Group, the amount recognised 1s imited on certain
schemes where the Group does not have an unconditional night

to refund of any surplus which may exist

D:fferences between the actual and expected returns on assets and
experience gains and losses arising on schemne liabilities during the
year, together with differences arsing from changes in assumptions
and movements in minimum funding requirements, are recognsed
in the statement of comprehensive income

The Group's contributions to the scheme are paid in accordance with
the scheme rules and the recommendations of the actuary

(b} Other post-retirement benefit obligations

Certain Group companies provide post-retirement healthcare benefits
10 their employees The expected costs of providing these benefits
are accrued over the period of employment and are calculated by
independent actuanes based on the present value of the

expected lhabihty

(c) Share-based payments

Members of the Group’s senior management team are entitled

to participate In the Leadership Equity Award Plan (LEAP) and UK
employees are able to participate in the Sharesave scheme Under
the terms of the Group's bonus arrangements, Executive Directors
and certain senior employees recewe a proportion of ther bonus in
shares, which are deferred for a period of up to three years

The fair value of the LEAP, Sharesave and deferred bonus arrangements
at the date of grant are estimated using the Black-Scholes pricing model
The fair value determined at grant date Is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting penod, based on an estimate of the number of
shares that will eventually vest and taking into account service and
non-market conditions

The Group also operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) under which
qualfying Canllion Energy Services partners may receve free shares
The fair value of the free shares are recognised as an expense In the
income statement over the vesting penod of the sharas

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised where the Group constructs qualifying
assets All other borrowing costs are wniten off to the income
statement as incurred

Barrowing costs Incurred by entities relating to the construction of
assets in Public Private Partnership projects are capitalised until the
relevant assets are brought into aperational use

Borrowing costs are charged to the income statement using the
effective interest method

Share capital
The ordinary share capital of the Company s recorded at the proceeds
recewved, net of directly attributable incremental 155ue costs

Consideration paid for shares in the Company held by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan (ESCP) Trust are deducted from the retained
earnings reserve Where such shares subsequently vestin the employees
under the terms of the Group's share option schemes or are sold, any
constderation recerved 1s included n the retained earmings reserve

Provisions

A prowision 1s recogrised in the balance sheet when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and where 1t s probable that an outflow will be required to settle
the obligation

Prowisions for restructuning are recognised when the Group has an
approved resiructuning plan that has either commenced or been
announced publicly Future operating costs are not provided for

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument The prinaipal financiat
assets and habilities of the Group are as follows

{a) Other non-current investments

Other nan-current investments relate to unquoted equity Interests
that are not designated on iniial recognition as at fair value through
the income statement Instead, they are recogrused at fair value with
movements in fair value recogrised in the fair value reserve

(b) Trade receivables
Trade recewvables are iniually recogmised at fair value and then are
stated at amortised cost

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried 1n the balance sheet at
amortised cost For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equialents comprise cash at bank and in hand, including
bank deposits with oniginal maturities of three months or less Bank
overdrafts are also included as they are an integral part of the Group’s
cash management

{d) Current asset investments
Current asset investments are carned in the balance sheet at
amortised cost

(e) Trade payables
Trade payables are inrually recogrised at fair value and then are stated
at amartised cost

(f) Bank and other borrowings

Interest beanng bank foans and overdrafts and other loans are
recognised tially at amortised cost less attnbutable transaction
costs All borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
the difference between initial net proceeds and redemption value
recogrised in the Income statement over the period to redemption

(g) Derwvative finanaal instruments

Dervatves are initially recognised at fair value on the date the contract
15 entered into and subsequently remeasured in future periods at therr
fair value The method of recognising the resulting change n fair

value 15 dependent on whether the dervative 1s designated as a
hedging nstrument

A number of the Group's PPP jointly controlled entities have entered
Into interest rate derivatives as a means of hedging interest rate nisk
The effective part of the change in fair value of these denvatives s
recogrused directly in equity Any ineffective portion 1s recagrused
immediately in the income statement Amounis accumulated in equity
are recycled 1o the income statement in the penods when the hedged
items wall affect profit or loss The fair value of interest rate swaps (s
the estimated amouwnt that the Group would receive or pay to
terminate the swap at the balance sheet date

The Group also enters into forward contracts in order o hedge
against transactional foreign currency exposures In cases where these
dernvative instruments are significant, hedge accounting 1s appled as
described above Where hedge accounting 1s not apphed, movements
in fair value are recognised in the income statement Fair values are
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date

Net borrowing
Net borrowing comprises cash and cash equivalents together with
bank overdrafts and loans, finance leases and other loans
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2 Segmental reporting

Segment information 1s presented in respect of the Group's strategic operating segments The operating segment reportung format retlects the
differing econemic characteristics and nature of the services prowided by the Group and 15 the basis on which strategic operating decisions are
made by the Group Chief Executive, who 1s the Group’s chief operatuing decsion maker

Inter-segment priang Is determined on an arm’s length basis Segment results include 1tems directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis, except finance items and income tax

Operating segments
The Group i1s comprised of the following matn operating segments

Support services
In this segment we report the results of our faclities management, faclities services, energy services, road mantenance, rail services, utibities
services and consultancy businesses

Public Private Partnership projects
In this segment we report the equity returns on our investing activities in Public Private Partnership projects for Government buldings and
infrastructure, mamly in the defence, health, education, transport and secure accommedation sectors

Middle East construction services
In this segment we report the results of our bullding and cvil engineering activities in the Middle East and North Africa

Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
In this segment we report the results of our UX building, cwvil engineening and developments businesses and our construction actvities in Canada

Segmental revenue and profit

2012 2011
Operating Qperating
profit before profit before
intangible intangible
amortisation and amortisation and
non-recurnng non recurring
Revenue uperarlng ltems Revenue operating items
£m £fm £m fm
Support services
Group 2114 1018 2,198 1057
Share of jointly controlled entities 228 3 209 2254 151
2,3597 1227 2,345 2 1208
Inter-segment 873 - 7572 -
Total 2,447 0 1227 2,420 4 120 8
Public Private Partnership projects
Group 13 173 12 142
Share of jointly controlled entities 286 4 165 308 6 172
2877 338 3098 314
Inter-segment - - - -
Total 2877 338 309 8 314
Middle East construction services
Group 2614 138 218 9 139
Share of jointly controlled entities 2122 152 3300 352
473 6 280 5489 491
Inter-segment - - - n
Total 473 6 290 548 ¢ 491
Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
Group 1,2721 730 1,813 3 544
Share of jointly controlled entities 97 {0 6) 340 35
1,2818 724 1,847 3 579
Inter-segment 32 - 04 -
Total 1,2850 724 1,8477 579
Group eliminations and unaltocated items (90 5) {7 8) (75 6) (95}
Consclidated
Group 3,666 2 198 1 4,153 2 1787
Share of jointly controlled entities 736 6 520 898 O 710
Total 4,402 8 2501 5,0512 2497

{1) Restated following the change In presentation of profits on the disposal of Public Private Fartnership equity Investments from non-operating nems ta operating 1terms {amounting to
£13 2 million 1n 2012 and £11 5 million 1in 2011)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

2 Segmental reporting {continued)
Segmental revenue and profit (continued)

Reconaliation of operating segment results to reported results

2012 201
£m £m
Group and share of jointly controlled entities’ operating profit before intangible amortisation
and non-recurring operating items 2501 2497
Net financial expense
—Group {17 7) (39
—Share of jointly controlled entities (16 0) (18 8)
Share of jointly controlled entities' taxation (17) (3 5)
Underlying profit before taxation 2147 2235
Intangible amortisation'? 314 (310)
Non-recurring operating items® (26) (42 8)
Non-operating items® (12) 69
Profit before taxation 1795 1428
Taxation {13 3) 48)
Profit for the year 166 2 138 0
{13 Restated following the change 1n presentation of profits on the disposal of Public Private Partnership eguity vestments from nen operaung items to aperating items {amounting 10
£13 2 millon n 2012 and £11 5 milkon 0 2011)
(2} Intangible amortisation non recurnng operating items and non operating items anse in the following segments
2012 20110
NOI’I-I’ECUI’HNE Non recurnng
Intangible operating Nan operating Intangible operating  Non-operating
amortisation ttems ems amortisation 1tems nems
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Support services (28 4) (26) 12 (26 1) (40 6) 4 3)
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) | {3 0) - - {49) 22 | (2 6)
Total ' (314) (2 6) 12 (310) @28 ' (69
(1) Restated following the change in presentation of profits on the disposal of Public Private Partnership equity invesiments from nan operating items to operating tems @mounting to
£13 2 millonin 2012 and £11 5 milbon in 2011}
Depreciation amortisation and capital expenditure anse in the following segments 2012 o
Depredation and Capital Depreciation and Capital
amortsation expenditure amortisation expenditure
£m £m fm fm
Support services (a0 7) (13 6) (40 3) (G}
Middle East construction services {20) (11 20 an
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) (40) (0 S} €4 0 4)
Unallocated Group items {15 5) (121) (135) (7 8)
Total (62 2) (27 3) (62 3) (13 4)
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Segmental net assets
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2012 2011
Net operating Net operating
Operating Operating assets/ Qperating Operating assets/
assets habilities {llabilities) assets rabihues {habilives)
£m £m £m £m fm fm
Support services
Intangible assets® 1,2613 - 12613 12689 - 1,2689
Operating assets 6267 - 6267 6100 - 6100
Investments 98 - 98 16 - 16
Total operating assets 1,897 8 - 1,897 8 1,880 5 - 1,890 5
Total operating habilities - (5870) (587 0) - (622 1) 622 1)
Net operating assets/{liabilities) 1,897 8 (587 0) 1,310 8 1,890 5 (622 1) 1,.2684
Public Prrvate Partnership projects
Operating assets 68 - 68 79 - 79
Investments 1121 - 1121 93 2 — 932
Total operating assets 118 9 - 1189 1011 - 1011
Total operating habilities - (17 8) (178) - {9 6) 96)
Net operating assets/(khabilities) 118 9 (17 8) 1011 011 {9 6) 915
Middle East construction services
Operating assets 2634 - 263 4 2265 - 2265
Investments 730 - 730 573 - 573
Total operating assets 3364 - 336 4 2838 ~ 2838
Total operating lrabilives - (260 6) {260 6) - (224 8) (224 8)
Net operating assets/{liabilities) 3364 {260 6) 758 2838 (224 8) 590
Constructuorl\ services (excluding the Middle East)
Intangible assets® 261 2 - 2612 2645 - 2645
Qperating assets 3635 - 3635 4254 - 425 4
Investments 430 - 430 48 8 = 488
Total operating assets 6677 - 6677 7387 - 7387
Total operating habilities - {798 2) (798 2) - 928 2) (928 2)
Net operating assets/(habilities) 667 7 {798 2} {130 5) 7387 (928 2) (189 5)
Consolidated before Group items
Intangible assets® 1,522 5 - 15225 15334 - 1,533 4
Operating assets 1,260 4 - 1,260 4 1,269 8 - 1,2688
Investments 2379 - 2379 2109 - 2109
Total operating assets 30208 - 30208 3,0141 - 3,0141
Total operating habilities - (1.663 6) {1,663 6) - (1,784 7) {1,784 7)
Net operating assets/(liabilities) before Group items 3,020 8 {1,663 6) 13572 3,0141 (1,784 7) 1,2294
Group items
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1214 {16 2) 105 2 1376 (25 5) 121
Net cash/borrowing) 6571 (812 9) (155 8) 4807 (541 4) (507)
Retirement benefits {gross of taxation) 07 3517) (351 0) - (305 8) (305 8)
Income tax 08 (38) 70 77 4 4) 33
Other 512 {4 3) 45 9 491 (54 9) {58)
Net assets/(habilities) 3,862 0 {2,852 5) 1,009 5 3,699 2 (2,716 7) 9825

(1) Ansing from business combinations

Governance QOurperformance About us

Financial statements




76
Cartllion plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

2 Segmental reporting {continued}

Geographic information - by origin

2012 2011
£m £tm
United Kingdom
Total revenue from external customers 3,247 9 3,664 0
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (394 6) (386 7)
Group revenue from external customers 2,853 3 3,2773
Non-current assets 1,586 7 1,628 8
Middle East and North Africa
Total revenue from external customers 4871 5613
Less share of jointly controlled entities” revenue (225 7) (342 4)
Group revenue from external customers 2614 2189
Non-current assets 781 6b 7
Canada
Total revenue from external customers 6509 7823
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (116 3) (147 4)
Group revenue from external customers 5346 634 9
Non-current assets 178 8 1459
Rest of the World
Total revenue from external customers 169 436
Less share of jointly controlied entities’ revenue - (21 5)
Group revenue from external customérs | 169 2721
Non-current assets - —
Consohdated
Total revenue from external customers 4,402 8 5,051 2
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (736 6} (898 0
Group revenue from external customers 3,666 2 4,153 2
Non-current assets
Total of geographic analysis above 1,843 6 1,841 4
Retirement benefit assets 07 -
Other investments 615 513
Deferred tax assets 1214 1376
Total non-current assets 2,027 2 2,0303
Revenues from the Group’s major customer, are shown below
Publhic Private Construction services
Support services Partnership projects {excluding the Middle East) Total
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
fm £m £m tm fm £m £m £m
UK Gavernment 9241 920 4 1754 188 3 9901 1,499 7 2,089 6 2,608 4
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2012 2011
fm fm

Group operating profit has been arnved at after charging/(crediting}
Depreaauon of property plant and equipment 271 217
Amortisation of intangible assets 351 346
Impairment of trade recevables 13 11
Impairment on re-measurement to fair value of aga plc shares at acquisiion - s
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 16 06
Operating lease charges M2 518
forergn exchange losses/{gams} 06 07)
{Gamn)/loss on dernvative financial assets and habilities held for trading {13) 15
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for
— the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 03 03
- the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 09 08
Total audit fees 12 i1
- audit-related assurance services 01 g1
- taxation comphance services 03 04
— gther assurance services 01 04
Total non-audit fees 05 09

Cardlion's share of the fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and 1ts associates by Group jointly controlled entities in respect of audit services amounted to

£0 2 muilion (2011 £0 2 million}

4 Non-recurrlng operating 1tems and non-operating items

Tlon-recurrlng operating items 2012 201
fm fm
Integration and rationalisation casts - 400
Eaga Partnership Trusts related charges {2 6) 28
(2 6} (42 8}

The Group operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) under which qualifying Carllion Energy Services partners may recewve free shares The Eaga
Partnership Trusts (EPT) waved part of its entitlement to the 2011 final dividend and all of its entitiement to the 2012 interim dividend paid dunng
the year amounting to £2 6 milion Thes £2 & midlion has been used to satisfy UK SIP awards which vest immediately These awards give nise to

a charge under International Financial Reporting Standard 2 'Share-based payment’ of £2 6 million The Group 1s not committed to make any
awards under the SIP in excess of those funded by the EPT Where the award of shares under the SIP 15 fully funded by the waiver of dividends

by the EPT, there 1s no material net impact on the net debt or net assets of the Group over the contractual Iife of the plan compared toif the

EPT had not waived 1ts dividends As this charge has ansen from the decision by the EPT to waive its entitiement te dividends and 1s cutside of
the control of the normal operating parameters of the Graup, the charge 1s classified as a non-recurnng operating item Further details on the

SIP are given in the Remuneration report on page 51

Integration and rationalisation costs of £40 0 milion in 2011 primarnily relates to redundancy and property exit costs ansing from a review of
the Group's requirements following the acquisition of Canllion Energy Services including refatively modest costs associated with focusing the
Canadian construction services business on the growing Public Private Partnership market in the region

An income tax credit of £0 6 milllion (2013 £11 3 million) relating to the ahove has been included within taxaticn in the Income statement

Non-operating items 2012 2011

£m £m

Profit on disposal of jointly controlled enuty - 38
Acquisition costs 0 9) (75)
Closure and dispasal of non-core businesses (0 3) (32
(12} (69

(1) Rastated following the change in presentation af profits on the disposal of Public Private Partnership equity investments from non operating 1iéms o operating iems ameounting 1o
£13 2 malhon 1 2012 and £41 5 million in 2011)

In 2011, the Group disposed of a small jointly contralied enuity in the Netherlands The disposal generated a cash consideration of £6 9 rmilion
(before disposal costs of £0 7 millon) and a non-operating profit of £3 8 million There 15 no INcome tax assoaated with this profit

Acquisition costs n 2012 of £0 9 million relate to adviser costs incurred 1 refation to the Bouchier Group acquisition contract and due diigence
procedures Acquisition costs in 2011 of £7 5 milion relate to adwiser costs incurred in relation to the Canllion Energy Services acquisition
contracts and due diligence procedures An ncome tax credit of nif (2011 £0 6 mullton) has been included in the income statement in respect
of these costs

In 2012 costs of £0 3 mithon have ansen on the disposal and closure of 3 number of non-core businesses In 2011, a number of small non-core
businesses were also closed at a cost of £3 2 millon An income tax credit of £0 3 milhon (2011 £0 & mullion) has been included in the income
statement in respect of these costs
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continued

5 Finanaal ncome and expense

2012 2011
£m fm
Financial income
Bank interest recenvable 04 16
QOther interest receivable 149 144
Expected return on retirement plan assets 1000 116 0
1153 1320
Financial expense
Interest payable on bank leans and overdrafts (115) (96)
Other interast payable and similar charges (179) (13 5)
Interest cost on retirement plan obligations {103 6) {112 8)
{133 0} {135 9)
Net financial expense (177) (39

Other interest payable and similar charges includes finance lease charges of £2 0 million {2011 £2 7 miiion) and the discount unwind associated
with onerous lease provisions of £2 1 milion (2011 £1 8 million)

Mo borrowing costs have been capitalised in either 2012 or 2011 as they are not materal

6 Payroll costs and employee numbers

2012 201

fm £m

Wages and salares 6708 7447
Social secunty costs 615 670
Pension costs 259 293
Equity settled transactions {Group funded charges} (0 3) 25
Equity settled transactions (Eaga Partnership Trusts related charges) | 26 28
! ! 7605 846 3

Pension costs represent amounts in respect of the Group’s UK and overseas schemes as descnbed in note 31 and includes a charge of
£20 0 million (2011 £22 7 milkon) in respect of defined contnbution schemes

Detalled information concerning Directors’ remuneration, including their pensien benefits and long-term incentive arrangements, (s set out in the
Remuneration Report on pages 53 to &1

The average number of employees during each year, including Directors, was

2012 2011

Number Number

Support services 17,028 18,132
Public Private Partnership projects 26 32
Middle East construction services 6,551 7,405
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) 3,193 3,989
Corporate centre 628 434
27,426 29,992

UK 17,616 19,797
Overseas 9,810 10,195
27,426 29,992

In addition to the above there are 14,007 staff (2011 15,350) employed within the Group's Jointly controlied entities located in the Middle East




7 Income tax
Recagrused in the income statement
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2012

£m fm
Current tax {credit)expense
Current year
- UK (34 33
- Overseas 16 3Q
Adjustments for prior years
- UK 43) 28
— Overseas {0 8) 08
Total current tax {39 33
Deferred tax expense/{credit)
Onigination and reversal of temporary differences 127 96
Change of rate 15 06
Adjustments for prior years 30 87)
Total deferred tax 172 15
Total income tax expense in the iIncome statement 13 3 48
Reconchation of effective tax rate
2012 2011
im £m
Profit before tax 1795 1428
Tax of jointly controlled entities 17 35
1812 146 3
Income tax at UK standard corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 44 4 388
Permanent differences 06 15
Unrelieved trade losses 05 82
Capital items not taxable/not deductible (32 (47
Effect of utilsation of brought forward tax losses (9 6) (109)
Effect of tax rates in foreign junsdictions (a4 6) (96}
Change In rate 15 06
Qver provided in prior years (4 6) (74)
Recogmition of deferred 1ax on prior year losses (10 0) B2)
Tota) tax (including tax of jointly controlled entities) 150 83
Tax of jontly controlled entities (17) 35
Group Income tax expense 133 48

Reducttons in the UK corporation tax rate 16 24% (effective from 1 Apnl 2012) and 23% {effective fram 1 Apnl 2013) were substantively enacted
on 26 March 2012 and 3 July 2012 respectively Within the above deferred tax charge of £17 2 million ¢s a charge of £1 5m with respect to these
changes in rate

Following the mtroduction of the foreign profits exemption in 2009, the profits earned in low tax junsdictions no longer require a provision for a
taxable temporary difference, the impact of which 15 included within *Effect of tax rates in foreign junsdictions’

The release of the over-provision relating to prior years of £4 6 million (2011 £7 4 milion) includes an amount of £3 2 millon which 1s attributable
to the agreement of certain 1ssues with the tax authorities Tax of jointly controlled entities of £1 7 milkon in 2012 includes a £2 § milon credit
ansing from a review of the nature of tax issues In certain entities

Tax {asset)/lilability recognised either in the statement of other comprehensive income or directly in equity

2012 20

fm £m

Deferred tax on actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes (118) (200)

Current tax on foreign exchange translation adjustments 04 -

Tax recognised in statement of comprehensive income (114) (200)
Tax directly recognised In equity

- Current tax on equity settled transactions o (06}

- Deferred tax on equity settled transactions 01 on

Total tax recogmised in equity {11 4) (207)

Deferred tax on actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes of £11 8 millien 1n 2012 includes a £6 6 million charge in respect of the
change i tax rate to 23 per cent as substantively enacted on 3 July 2012
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8 Earnings per share
{a) Basic earmings per share

The calculation of earrungs per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 15 based on the profit attrbuiable to equity holders of the parent

of £160 1 mihon (2011 £134 6 million) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue of 430 1 million (201t 420 9 milion),

calculated as follows

In millions of shares 2012 2011
Issued ordinary shares at 1 lanuary 4303 3997
Effect of shares 1ssued In the year - 4
Effect of own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan and Qualfying Employee Share Ownership Trust {0 2) 02)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 4301 4209

{b) Underlying performance

A reconciliation of profit before taxation and basic earnings per share, as reported in the ncome statement, to underlying pr

ofit before taxation

and earnings per share is set out below The adjustments made in arriving at the underlyng performance measures are made to lllustrate the
impact of the amortisation of intangible assets arising from business combinations non recurnng operating 1items and non-operating items

2012 201
Profit before tax Tax Prolit before tax Tax
£m £m £m £m
Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation as reported in the income statement 1795 133 1428 48
Amortsation of intangible assets ansing from business combinations 314 93 310 99
Non-recurring operating items 26 06 42 8 1n9
Non-operating 1tems 12 03 69 12
Underlying profit before taxation 2147 235 2235 278
Underlying taxation (235) (27 8)
Underlying profit attnbutable 10 non-controlhing interests 61) 34
Underlying profit attnbutable to shareholders 1851 192 3
2012 201™
Pence Pence
per share per share
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 372 320
Amortisation of intangible assets ansing from business combinations 51 50
Non-recurring operating items 0S 73
Non-operating 1items 02 14
Underlying basic earnings per share 430 457
Underlying diluted earnings per share (post-tax basis} 42 8 45 4
(1) Restated foliowing the change in presentation of profits on the disposat of Public Private Partnership equity investments from non-aperabing items to operating itemns amounting 1o
£13 2 millionin 2012 and £11 5 million in 2011)
(c) Diluted earnings per share
The calcuiation of diluted earnings per share 15 based on profit as shown in note 8(a) and (b} and a weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding calculated as follows
In mullions of shares 2012 2014
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 4301 4209
Effect of share options in 1ssue 21 25
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {diluted} at 31 December 4322 423 4
9 Dividends
The following dwvidends were paid by the Company
2012 201
Pence Pence
fm per share £m per share
Previous year final dwvidend 48 5 116 430 107
Current year interim dividend 219 54 216 53
704 170 646 16 0
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9 Dividends (continued}

The following dividends were proposed by the Company
2012

2011

Pence Pence

im per share £m per share

Interm 219 540 216 53
Final 510 11 85 499 116
729 17 25 715 169

The final dividend for 2012 of 11 85 pence per share was approved by the Board on 27 February 2013 and, subject to approval by shareholders

at the Annual General Meeting, will be pard on 14 June 2013 to shareholders on the register on 17 May 2013

10 Property, plant and equipment

Plans,
Land and equipment
bulldings and vehides Total
£m fm im
Cost
At 1 January 2012 374 1227 1601
Acquisition of the Bouchier Group 13 79 92
Additions 21 179 200
Disposals 23 {30 4) (327)
Disposals anising from the sale of businesses {05) (4 4) 49
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates (12 (27) (39
At 31 December 2012 368 1110 1478
Depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2012 41 218 259
Depreaation charge for the year 37 234 271
Disposals (2 2) (26 3) (28 5)
Drsposals ansing from the sate of businesses - {186} (16)
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange rates (05) (17) (22)
At 31 December 2012 51 156 207
Met book value
At 1 January 2012 333 1009 134 2
At 31 December 2012 317 95 4 1271
Included in the net book value of plant equipment and vehicles s £38 4 million (2011 £35 1 mullion) in respect of assets held under finance
leases and hire purchase contracts The leased equipment secures lease obligations as disclosed in note 20 st
Land and equipment
buitdings and vehicles Total
£m £m fm
At 1 January 2011 322 148 3 1805
Acguisition of Carillion Energy Services (see note 30) 56 69 125
Additions 10 96 106
Disposals 22) 40 3) {425)
Reclassification {from intangible assets) - 04 04
Reclassification 11 an -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates ©3 an (]
At 31 December 2011 374 1227 1601
Depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2011 17 216 233
Depreciation charge for the year 42 235 277
Disposals 20) 227) (247)
Reclassification {from intangible assets) - 01 01
Reclassification 02 02 -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates - 05) CE)]
At 31 December 2611 41 218 259
Net book value
Al January 201 305 126 7 157 2
At 31 Decernber 201 333 1009 i34 2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

11 Intangible assets

Customer Total arising Computer
contracts  from business  software and
Goodwil and sts  comblinations Iicences Total
im £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 1,4313 2705 1,701 8 285 1,730 3
Acquisition of the Bouchier Group 208 - 208 - 208
Additions - - - 73 73
Disposals - - - 12 (12)
Effect of movements in fareign exchange rates ©4 (01 {0 5) (02) 07
At 31 December 2012 1,4517 270 4 17221 344 1,756 5
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2012 - 168 4 168 4 143 1827
Amortisation for the year - 314 314 37 351
Disposals - - - {a1n (11)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates - 02) (02) [(R)] (0 3)
At 31 December 2012 - 199 6 199 6 16 8 216 4
Net book value
At 1 January 2012 1,4313 1021 1,533 4 14 2 1,547 6
At 31 December 2012 1,4517 708 1,522 5 176 1,540 1

The provisional goodwill recognised an the acquisition of the Bouchier Group of £20 8 millon represents the present value of future income

streams expected from the business Due to the proximity of this acquisitian to the year end, 1t has not been possible to identify the amount of
goodwill attributable to other intangible assets Following the expected finahsation of the completion accounts process in the first half of 2013,
quantification of goodwill and other intangible assets ansing from this acquisiion will be completed

Inc}uded in the net baok value of computer software and licences 1s £3 S mullion {2011 £nil} in respect of assets held under finance leases
ThF leased assets secure lease obligations as disclosed in note 20

Customer Total arising Computer
contracts from business software and
Goodwll and bsts combinations licences Total
im fm £m £m fm
Cost
At 1 January 2011 1,1022 2411 1,343 3 270 13703
Acquisiion of Canthion Energy Services {see note 30) 3291 254 3585 - 3585
Additions - - - 28 28
Disposals - - - @9 09
Redlassification (to property, plant and equipment) - - — (04} {0 4)
At 31 December 2011 1,4313 2705 1,701 8 285 17303
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2011 - 1374 1374 1n7 1491
Amortsation for the year - 310 310 36 346
Disposals - - - 09 (X))
Reclassification {to property, plant and eguipment) - - - 01 Q1)
At 31 December 2011 - 1684 168 4 14 3 1827
Net book value
At 1 January 2011 1,1022 1037 1,205 9 153 1,221 2
At 31 December 2011 14313 102 1 1,633 4 14 2 1,547 6
The goodwill recogrised on the acquisition of Canllion Energy Services represents the present value of future income streams expected to be
generated from margin growth in the business acquired together with dentifiable cost savings within the enlarged Group
Impairment tests for cash-generating units contaiming goodwill
The following units have significant amounts of goodwill
2012 2013
£m fm
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) segment
UK construction 2330 2330
Canada construction 10 14
24490 244 4
Support services segment
Business servicas 11348 1,134 8
Infrastructure services 521 521
Canada services 208 -
1,2077 11869
Total Goodwill 1,4517 1,4313
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11 Intangtble assets (continued)

Each year, and whenever events or a change in the econormic environment indicates a nsk of iImpairment, the Group reviews the value of
goodwill balances aliocated to its cash generating units In the absence of any dentified impairment risks, tests are perfarmed based on
internal vaiuations of each cash generating unit {CGU)

Management consider Suppart services, Public Private Partnership projects, Middle East construction services and Construction services
{excluding the Middle East) as distinct reporting segments Goodwill has been allocated to the applicable CGUs within the Construction
services (excluding the Middle East) and Support services reporting segments detailed above The CGUs have been identfied within the
feporting segments as those businesses that generate cash inflows largely independently of other businesses within the Group, and which
are subject to independent management

The acquisition of the Bouchier Group was a small acquisition which enables the Group to enhance its support services capabilities 1n Canada
The entwre prowisional goodwill ansing on this acqussition has been alfocated to the Canada services CGU

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The value n use in 2012 was determined on a similar
basis to 2011 The key assumptions for the vaiue in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to revenue and direct costs durning the penod These assumptions were reviewed in 2012 1in the light of the continuing challenging economic
enviranment The impact of this on the finanaial stability of our customers partners and suppliers will be mitgated by continuing to apply
rnigorous selectivity cntena in relation to therr financial stability, the secunty of project funding and contractual terms and condiions

Discount rates have been estimated based on pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks
specific to the CGUs Whilst the Group has five CGUs, the nsks and rewards associated with Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
are consistent and therefore one discount rate has been applied to each CGU Similarly the nisks and rewards encountered in the Support
services CGUs are consistent and therefore one discount rate has been applied {0 each CGU In determining the pre-tax discount rate
management have derived a Weighted Average Cost of Caprtal (WACC) using the capital asset pricing model to determine the cost of equrty
and then weighting the overall cost of capital for the Group by equity and debt The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows for the CGUs
in the Construction services (excluding the Middle East} was 11 7 per cent (2011 12 0 per cent) and for the CGUs in the Support services
segment was 9 9 per cent (2011 10 0 per cent)

The cash flows used to determine the value in use calculations are based upon the latest three year forecasts approved by management which
are based upon secured and probable ordq'rs and the Group's overall strategic direction The cash fiows are extrapolated from year four, with a
termnal value using a growth rate of 2 5 per cent This growth rate does not exceed the long-term industry average and reflects the synergies
from recent acquisitions

Sensitvity analysis on the discount rate shows that the discount rate would have to increase to a minimum of 19 2 per cent for Construction
services {excluding the Middle East) and to a mimmum of 13 0 per cent for Support services befare an Impairment was tnggered in any CGU

As at 31 December 2012, based on internal valuations, Canllion plc management have concluded that the recoverable value of the Group's
cash generating units exceeded therr carrying amount

Amortisation charge

The amortisation charge of £35 1 million {2011 £34 6 mithon) 1s recognised 1n administrative expenses in the Income statement Amortisation
of the intangible assets of £119 0 million arising on the acquismon of Mowlem 1n 2006 will be 79 per cent complete by 2016 The remaining
amortisation charge 15 incurred over the following 25 years Amortisation of the intangible assets of £125 4 mifion ansing on the acquisition
of Alfred McAlpine in 2008 will be 84 per cent complete by 2013 with the remaining amortisation charge continuing unil 2019 Amortisation
of the intangible asset of £29 4 milhon ansing on the acquisition of Carilhon Energy Services will be completed by 2014

12 Investments in jointly controlled entities

Equity Loan Teral
investments advances investments Goodwll Total
fm im im £fm £m

Cost
At 1 January 2012 777 639 1416 21 1437
Equity investments 87 - 87 - 87
Disposals (36) (23 5) (27 1) - (271)
Net loans advanced - 110 110 - 110
Effect of movemnents in foreign exchange rates (0 6) {0 4) {10) - {10)
At 31 December 2012 822 510 133 2 21 1353
Share of post acquisition results
At 1 January 2012 159 - 59 - 159
Share of results for the year after taxaticn 343 - 343 - 343
Share of change in farr value of cash flow hedges {net of taxation) (32 - (32) - G2
Disposals 10 - 110 - 1o
Distnbutions receved (13 6) - (13 6) - {13 6)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates {3 3) - 33) - (23)
At 31 December 2012 411 - 4113 - 411
Net book value
At 1 January 2012 936 639 1575 21 1596

At 31 December 2012 123 3 510 174 3 21 176 4
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12 Investments in Jointly controlled entities {(continued)

Equity investments of £8 7 million includes £¢ 7 million relating to the acquisition in cash of interests in a number of land development jointly
controlled entiues in Canada and £8 0 million relating to the acquisition in ¢ash of interests 1IN a number of PPP jointly controlled entities
Durning the year, the Group disposed of equity investments i land development jointly controlled entities in Canada and seven PPP jointly
controlled entities as disclosed in note 30

Equity Loan Total
nvestments advances investments Goodwaill Total
im fm fm £m fm

Cost
At 1 january 2011 690 550 1240 21 1261
Equity investrments " - 11 - 1"
Disposals (36) (o7 (13 3) - (13 3}
Net loans advanced - 289 289 - 289
Reclassification 102 (10 2) - - -
Reclassificavion {from trade and other recevables) 13 - 13 - 13
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates (03) {01 (0 4) - 04
At 31 December 2011 771 639 1416 21 1437
Share of post acquisition results
At 1 January 2011 87 - 87 - 87
Share of results for the year after taxauon 487 - 487 - 487
Share of change in fair value of cash flow hedges (net of tax) {133 - (133 - {13 3}
Disposals 84 - 84 - 84
Distributions received (373) - (37 3) - 373)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 07 - 07 - 07
At 31 December 2011 159 - 159 — 159
Net book value
At 1 January 2011 777 550 1327 21 134 8
At 31 December 2011 936 639 157 5 21 159 6

Equity investments of £1 1 million relate to the acquisiticn in cash of interests in a number of land development jointly controlled entities in
Canada During 2011, the Group disposed of its equity Investments in the three Pubfic Pavate Partnership projects and a small jontly controlled
entity In the Netherlands The £1 3 million reclassification from trade and other recevables relates to an item previously Included within
amounts owed by jointly controlled entities

As disclosed 1n note 35, the Group has equity Interests in a number of jointly controlled entities that are in excess of 50 per cent of the 1ssued
share capital of the entities concerned The Group accounts for these interests using the equity method as the power to govern the financial
and operating polhicies of the entities (s shared under the terms of shareholder agreements

The Group's aggregate share of the net assets of jointly controlled entities 1s analysed below Borrowing within jointly controlled entities
amounting to £886 8 million (2011 £1,104 9 million) are without recourse 1o the Carnllion Group

2012 2011

PPP PPP
projects Other Total projects Other Total
£m im fm £m £m £m
Non-current assets 9527 1033 1,056 0 1,105 1 1255 1,230 6
Cash 65 2 490 114 2 870 490 1360
Other current assets 105 2 21919 3251 1477 3351 482 8
Share of gross assets 11231 3722 1,495 3 1,339 8 5096 1,849 4
Current borrowing (10 @) 92 (10 2) (29 8) af (315)
Current habilities {63 3) (172 8) (236 1) (56 3) (328 8) (385 1}
Non-current barrowing 86 (350) {876 6) (1,034 9) (38 5) (1,073 4)
Non-current habilities (175 5) (49 4) (224 9) (204 5) (313) (235 8)
Provisions (3 8) - (3 8) (2 4) — (24)
Share of gross liabilities (1,094 2) (257 4) (1,351 6) {1,327 9) 400 3) (1,728 2)
Share of net assets excluding derivatives 289 114 8 1437 119 1093 1212
Financial instrument derivatives (18 3) - {18 3) {25 5) - (25 5)
Share of net assets/(hhabillities) 106 1148 1254 {13 6) 1093 957
Loan advances 440 70 510 569 70 639
Total investment in Jointly controlled entities 546 1213 176 4 433 116 3 159 6

Financial Instrument dervatives within PPP projects relate to Interest rate swaps enteredinto by the jomntly controlled entities concerned as

a means of hedging interest rate nisk and are stated net of deferred tax In accordance with Internaticnal Accounting Standard 39 'Financial
instrurments Recognition and measurement’, these dervatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges with the effective portion of movements
in fair value each year recognised (n the hedging reserve
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13 Other mvestments

tm
Farr value
At 1 January 2012 651
Acguisition of the Bouchier Group 07
Additions 30
Disposals (14)
Fair value of equity Interests retamed on parval disposals 30
Increase in fair value through the farr value reserve 49
At 31 December 2012 753
Impairment losses )
At 1 anuary and 31 December 2012 138
Net book value
At 1 January 2012 513
At 31 December 2012 615

Additions in 2012 of £3 0 million relates to cash paid in respect of subordinated debt invested in Aspire Defence Holdings Limited, a Pubiic
Private Partnership (PPP) unguoted entity in which the Group holds 12 5 per cent of the issued share capital Disposals of £1 4 milhon relate to
the sale of the Greup's entire interest in HomeSun Holdings Limited for a cash consideration of £1 4 million The fair value of equity Interests
retained on partial dispasals arises an the parual disposal of equity interests in five PPP projects which were previously accounted for as
investments in jointly controlled entities The equity interests retained at the date of disposal have been recognised at fair value

fm
Fair value
At 1 January 2011 557
Addittons 34
Acquisition of Carilhion Energy Services (see note 30) 10
Increase i faw value through the fair value reserve | 50
At 31 December 2011 I I 651
impairment losses
At 1 January and 31 December 2011 138
Net book value
At 1 January 2011 419
At 31 December 2011 513

Additions in 2011 include £3 0 miflion paid In cash relatng to subordinated debt invested in Aspire Defence Holdings Lumited, a Public Private
Partnership unquoted entity in which the Group holds 12 5 per cent of the issued share capital

On the acqusition of Carillran Energy Services the Group acquired a £1 0 million investment in HomeSun Holdings Limited, a group involved in
the sale of solar photovoltaic panels, and 19 9 per cent of the issued share capital of Solar Clean Energy Holdings Limited, a privately financed
speaal purpose entity engaged in providing solar photovoltatc panels to residential dwellings tn the UK A further investment in HomeSun
Holdings Limited in cash of £0 4 milhon was made in 2011 following acquisstion and at 31 December 2011, the total investment of £1 4 mitlion
reprasents 9 1 per cent of HomeSun Holdings Limited's 1ssued share capital

14 Deferred tax assets and llabilittes
Recognised deferred tax assets and habilities
Deferred tax assets and habiliues are attnibutable to temporary differences relating to the following

Assets Liabilities Net

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201

£m £m £m fm £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 129 169 - - 129 169
Intangible assets - - {16 2) (25 9) {16 2) {255)

Liability for National Insurance on future Eaga Partnership

Trusts distributians 42 43 - - 42 43
Employee benefits 813 765 (0 2) - 811 765
Working capital 11 134 - - 11 134
Equity-settled transactions - 07 - - - a7
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 221 258 - - 221 258
Tax assets/(habiities} 1216 1376 {16 4) (25 5) 1052 121
Set off of tax {0 2) - 02 — - -
Net tax assets/(habilities) 1214 1376 {16 2) (25 95) 105 2 121
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14 Deferred tax assets and habilitres {continued)

Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items

2012 201
£m fm
Tax lasses 359 60 5

The tax losses do not expire under current 1ax legistation Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to the
lack of certainty concerning the quantum and timing of future years taxable profits of the companies concerned

Included in the tax value of carry forward losses recognised are losses acquired for which no value was recognised at the paint of acquisittion
Since acquisition, the recognition of value relating to the losses is attributable to the fact that the company now foresees taxable profits ansing
in the relevant legal entities over a period In line with its tax 10ss recogmtion policy The assets further recognised in 2012 are £0 3 milon and
£5 4 million in relation to the Carillion Energy Services and Mowlem acquisitions respectively These assets existed but were not recogmsed

at the time of these acquisitions

Following the mtroduction of the foreign profits exemption with effect from 1 July 2009, no deferred tax lability 1 required ta be recognised
in relation to taxable temporary differences ansing on unrermitted earnings from overseas businesses

Movements in temporary differences duning the year are as follows

At On acquisition At

1January of the Bouchier Racognised Recogmised 31 December

212 Group in Income n equity 012

fm £m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 169 ©7 (3 3) - 129
Intangible assets {25 5) - 93 - (16 2)

Liabitity for National Insurance on future Eaga Partnership

Trusts distributions 43 - {01) - 42
Employee benefits 765 - (72) 18 811
Working capnal 134 07) {11 6) - 1
Equity settled transactions 07 - (0 6) {01 -
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 258 - (37 - 221
1121 (14) (17 2) 17 105 2

At Onacguisition Al

1 January of Carillion Recognised Recognised 31 December

2011 Energy Services In income in equrty 20m

£m £m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 105 20 44 - 169
Intangible assets (278) {76) 99 - (25 5)

Liability for National Insurance on future Eaga Partnership

Trusts distnbutions - 48 {05) - 43
Employee benefits 673 02 (11 0) 200 765
Working capial 48 91 (05) - 134
Equity settled transactions - - 06 01 07
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 189 13 4 4) - 258
737 198 (15) 201 1121

The Autumn Statement on 5 December 2012 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 21% by 2014 A reduction in the

rate from 26% to 25% (effective from 1 Apnl 2012) was substantively enacted on 5 July 2611, and further reductions to 24% (effective from

1 Apnl 2012) and 23% {effective from 1 Apnil 2013) were substantively enacted on 26 March 2012 and 3 July 2012 respectively This will reduce
the company's future current tax charge accordingly The deferred tax asset at 31 December 2012 has been calculated based on the rate of
23% substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

It has not yet been possible to quanbfy the full antapated effect of the announced further 2% rate reduction, although this will further reduce
the company's future current tax charge and reduce the company's deferred 1ax asset accordingly

15 Inventories

2012 20m

im fm

Raw matenals and consumables 227 a2
Work In progress 272 260
Fimished goods 54 A4
553 716

Development work in pragress of £20 8 million {2011 £15 2 millian}is expected to be recovered after more than 12 months




16 Construction contracts
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date
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2012 201

fm £m

Due from customers for contract work 3436 3215
Due to customers for contract work {169 2) (207 2)

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits {less recognised losses} for all contracts in progress at the balance sheet date
was £4,078 4 milkon (2011 £3 890 6 million) Advances recerved from customers relating to contracts in pregress amounted to £110 6 million

(2011 £128 1 mullion)

The amount of construction contract revenue recogrised as revenue 1n the year amounted to £1,533 5 millon {2011 £2,032 2 million)

17 Trade and other receivables

2012 2011
im £m
Trade recevables 2361 2827
Amounts owed by customers on construction contracts 3436 3215
Other receivables and prepayments 4124 3505
Amounts owed by jointly controlled entities 1077 1285
Amounts owed under jointly controlled operations 89 114
1,108 7 1,094 6
At 31 December 2012, retentions of £53 8 million {2011 £29 0 million) relating to construction contracts and other amounts recoverable
after more than one year of £43 8 million (2011 £45 1 million) are included above as they are recoverable within the normal operating cycle
of the Group
18 Cash and caLh equivalents and net borrowing
Cash and cash equivalents and net borrowing comprise
2012 2011
fm £m
Cash and cash equivalents 6571 4507
Bank overdrafts a9 (30)
Net cash and cash equivalents 652 2 4877
Bank loans (466 2) (3997)
Finance lease obligations (34 5) (384)
Other loans (307 3) (100 3)
Net borrowing (155 8) (507)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movernent in net borrowing
2092 2011
im fm
Increase in net cash and cash equivalents 166 7 974
Net cash and cash equivalents in subsidianes acquired - 15
Draw down of bank and other loans (277 2) {223 0)
Payment of finance lease habilities 16 8 158
Change 1n net borrowing resulting from cash flows (937) (108 3)
Net borrowing in subsicharies acquired @6) (615)
Finance lease additions 90) 08
Currency translation differences 22 0 3)
Change in net borrowing (105 1) {t70 9)
Net (borrowing)/cash at 1 January (507) 1202
Net borrowing at 31 December (155 8) (507)
19 Current asset investments
012 201
[1,:3 fm
Current asset investments 25 43

Current asset nvestments include cash balances held on deposit for peniods greater than three months and certain restnicted cash balances,

which are held at floating interest rates inked to the UK Bank Base Rate
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20 Borrowing

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings Fer more informatien about

the Group’s exposure 1o interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 27

2012 201
£m £m
Current habilities
Bank overdrafts 49 30
Bank loans 75 82
Finance lease obligations 225 213
Qther loans 04 -
353 325
Non-current habilittes
Bank loans 458 7 3915
Finance lease obligations 120 171
Other loans 3069 100 3
7776 508 9
Total borrowing 8129 5414
Non-current other loans ncludes £306 8 million of private placement financing, of which £35 0 million was drawn in August 2012, £171 8
million 1n November 2012 and £100 0 mithon in Septembper 2011 A summary of the private placement financing, which 1s at fixed rates of
interest, I1s shown below
Currency Currency Amount Sterling Amount £m Interest Rate % Matunty date
uss 250 153 385 November 2017
£ Sterling 499 499 438 Septernber 2018
£ Sterling 175 1795 362 August 2019
uss 800 491 429 November 2019
£ Sterhing 510 510 510 September 2021
f Sterling 175 175 419 August 2022
uss 1400 859 4 86 November 2022
uss$ 350 215 50 November 2024
306 8
In relation to the US dollar denominated private placement financing, the Group has entered inta cross-currency dernvative Instruments that
correspond to the profile of the principal and interest repayments
Bank loans and overdrafts are largely unsecured and bear interest at floating rates knked to London Interbank Offered Rate Within non-current
bank loans of £458 7 million (2011 £391 5 million) are loans amounting to £2 6 million {2011 £3 0 million) which are secured on the assets to
which they relate Finance lease obligations are secured on the assets to which they relate
Finance lease habilities
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows
Minimum Mimmum
tease lease
payments Interest Pnnapal payments Interest Principal
2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2011
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Less than one year 246 @21 225 229 (16) 213
Between one and five years 91 ()] 34 178 o7 171
More than five years 40 {04} 36 - - -
377 (32 345 a07 (2 3) 384
Under the terms of the lease agreements, no contingent rents are payabie
21 Trade and other payables
2012 20m
Current habihities £m £m
Trade payables 643 3 7416
Amounts owed 10 customers on construction contracts 169 2 2072
Other tax and social security costs 367 436
Amounts owed to jointly controlled entities 553 155
Amaounts owed under jointly controlled operations 94 -
Other creditors 2631 2745
Accruals and deferred iIncome 4287 4912
Deferred consideration payable 95 -
1,615 2 17736
Within trade and other payables are £15 5 million 2011 £18 2 mullion) of liabikties due m mare than one year but are payable within the
normal operating cycle of the Group All other trade and other payables are due within one year
2012 2011
Non-current habihities £m im
Deferred consideration payable 94 -

The deferred consideration payable of £9 4 million refates to the acquisition of the Bouchier Group and 1s payable in January 2014
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22 Provisions

onerous EPT
Rationahsation leases NI Total
£m £m m £m
At 1 January 2012 191 276 184 651
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 01 - - (e 1)
Unused provisions - (37 - (37)
Discount unwind - 21 - 21
Provisions utilised {17 8} (94) - (27 2)
At 31 December 2012 12 16 6 18 4 36 2
Disclosed within
Current kabilities 12 74 184 270
Nan-current habiities - 92 - 92
12 16 6 18 4 362

The rationalisation provision at 1 January 2012 pnmarily relates to redundancy and other associated costs ansing from a review of the Group's
requirements following the acquisition of Carillion Energy Services (CES) in 2011 The provision remaining at 31 December 2012 of £1 2 million

1s expected to be fully utihsed in the next 12 months

The onerous lease provision at 1 January 2012 relates to a number of onerous leases acquired within Mawlem i 2006, Alfred McAlpine in

2008 and CES in 2011 and provisions created for property interests retained on the dispesal of Canllion IT Services Limited and Enviros Group

Limited in 2009 The provision 1s expected to be uthised over a penad of four years

The EPT NI provision was recognised on the acquisstion of CES and relates to future distnibutions to employees from the Eaga Partnership Trusts
(EPT) which crystallises a National Insurance cost to the Company as disclosed in note 30 Further details on the EPT are given in the

Remuneration report on page 61

Oneraus EPT
Raticnahsation leases NI Total
£m £m fm £m
At 1|January 2011 49 143 - 192
Provisions created 378 47 - 425
Provisions acquired with Canlhion Energy Services (see note 30) 63 137 190 390
Discount unwind - 18 - 18
Provisions utilised (299) {69) {086) (374)
At 31 December 2011 191 276 184 651
Disclosed within
Current habilities 191 83 184 45 8
Non-current hahilities - 193 - 193
191 276 184 651
23 Share capstal
2012 201
Number Number
million £m million £m
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 430 3 2151 3997 1998
New share capital 1ssued - - 306 153
At 31 December 430 3 2151 4303 2151

The Company has one ctass of ordinary share which carnes no right to fixed income

24 Reserves
Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the transtation of the financal statements of fareign operations
as well as from the translation of labilities that hedge the Group’s net investment in foreign operations  The translation reserve alse includes

any related current taxation

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change In farr value of cash flow hedging instruments related to

hedged transactions that have not yet occurred, together with any related deferred taxation

Fair value reserve

The farr value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until the investment 15 derecagnised,

together with any related deferred taxatron
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24 Reserves (continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve imtially arose on the demerger from Tarmac plc on 29 July 1999 The reserve increased on the acquisitron of Mowlem on
23 February 2006, Alfred McAlpine on 12 February 2008 and Canllion Energy Services on 21 Apnil 2011, whereby the consideration included
the 1ssue of Canllion plc shares The premium on the shares issued in relation to these acquisitions has been credited to the merger reserve
rather than the share prermium account In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 The £31 4 million transter to the retained earnings
reserve during the year represents the amortisation of Intangible assets recognised on the Mowlern, Alfred McAlpine and Canllion Energy
Services acquisitions

Retained earnings

Retained earnings nclude the reserve for the Company's own shares which compnses of the cost of the Company s shares held by the Canllion
Employee Share Ownership Pian (ESOP) The shares held by the ESOP may subsequently be awarded to employees under the Group's share
incentive schemes The movements in the reserve for own shares ncluded within retained earnings are as follows

2012 2011

£m £fm
At 1 January 02 [(¥R)]
Share options exercised {transfer to retained earmings} 14 473
Acquistion of own shares 12 (4 4}
At 31 December - (02}

At 31 December 2012, the ESOP held 250 (2011 74,290) of the Company's shares and had a market value of £793 (2011 £0 2 mulion) During
the year the Company acquired 433,105 of 1ts own shares for £1 2 millon to meet the plan's commitments The ESOP has elected to warve all
dividends except for a total payment of 1 pence at the time each dwvidend 1s pad

In addition to the ESOP, the Company has also established a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (QUEST') At 31 December 2012 the
total number of shares held by the QUEST amounted to 129,979 {2011 129,979) and had a market value of £0 4 milhon (2011 £0 4 milhon)
The QUEST has elected to waive all dividends in excess of 0 01 pence per share

During the year the Company also acquired 696,601 of its own shares for £1 8 mifiton to facihitate an award under the Carllion Energy Services
Share Incentive Plan (SIP) for UK |partners as disclosed in note 4 In addition cash payments totalling £0 8 million V\:rere made to good leavers
who were entitled 1o recewve shares under the terms of the SIP Awards under the SIP vest mmedately in relation to UK partners and therefore
the cost of these shares of £2 6 million has been charged directly to the retaned earnings reserve The £1 8 milllon payment to acquire
Canllion plc shares 1s included within acquesition of own shares in the cash flow statement and the £0 8 million paid to good leavers

s included within payment to employees in settlement of share options in the cash flow statement

25 Share-based payments

The Group has established a share option programme that entitles key management personnel and senior employees to shares in the Company
Full detasls of the share option schemes can be found in the Remuneration report an pages 53 to 61 In addition, under the terms of the Group's
bonus arrangements, senor employees and Executive Directors recewe a propartion of ther bonus in shares, which vest a year after the award
in respect of senior employees and three years after the award in respect of Executive Directors

The recogrition and measurement principles in International Financial Reporting Standard 2 *Share-based payment’ (IFRS 2) have not been apphied
to grants of options before 7 November 2002 in accordance with the transitional provisions in International Finanoal Reporung Standard 1 *First-ime
adoption of International Financal Reporting Standards’ and IFRS 2

The terms and conditions of option schemes within the scope of IFRS 2 are as follows, whereby all options are setiled by physical delivery of shares

Number of Contractual life Exercise
Grant date instruments Vesting conditions of options price
LEAP option grant at 17 March 2010 772,517 Three years of service and mcrease 3 years rul

in EPS of RPI plus a rmimimum of 3%
over a rolling three year period
LEAP option grant at 8 April 2011 699,270 Three years of service and increase 3 years nil
in EPS of RPI plus a mimimum of 3%
over a rolling three year penod

LEAP option grant at 11 April 2012 979,832 Three years of service, increase in 3 years ol
EPS of a mimmum of 6% and operating
cash conversion of & mimmum of 95%
over a rolling three year penod

Deferred bonus scheme 603,917 Three years of service for Executive 1-3 years nil
Directors and one year's service for
senior employees

Subtotal 3,055,536
Other schemes 84,278
Total share options 3,139,814

Other schemes include the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) and the Canllion Energy Services’ Share Incentive Pian {SIP) International




25 Share-based payments (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of all of the Group's share options 1s as follows

N
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Welghted waighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise piice of options

2012 2012 2011 201

At 1 January 33p 3,858,975 42p 3,079,300
Farfeited dunng the year - {1,203,998) - (575,728)
Exercised dunng the year - (1,216,570) - (1,211,308)
Granted durng the year - 1,701,407 - 2,566,710
At 31 December 41p 3.139.814 33p 3,858,975
Exercisable at the end of the year 227 3p 56,401 227 3p 56,401

The range of option prices for those options exerasable at the end of the year 1s 163 4 pence — 242 75 pence and the weighted average
remaining contractual term for those options exercisable 1s two years The weighted average share price during the year was 289 3 pence

The farr value of services received in return for share aptions granted 1s measured based on a Black-Scholes model using the

following assumptions

2012 2012 20m 2011 2011
SIP Internatfonal LEAP Deferred bonus  SIP International LEAP

Fair value of share options and assumptions
Fair value at grant date 214 0p 246 7p 284 8p 322 4p 3379p
Share price at grant date 252 9p 284 6p 31 6p 366 8p 384 4p
Exercise price il nil nil nit nil
Expected volatiity 11 59% 1184% 1397% 16 80% 15 85%
Option life 3 years 3years 1o0r2years 3 years 3 years
Expected dwidend yield 557% 4 76% 4 50% 4 30% 4 30%

Risk-free interest rate

{based on national government bonds) | 019% 027% 0 45% 114% 110%

The expected volatility s based on the historic volatlity (calculated based on the weighted average rematning life of the share options),

adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information

Employee expenses

2012 201
fm fm

Equity settled share options and deferred bonus shares granted in
2008 - 04
2009 - 05
2010 - (02)
20N (03) 18
2012 - -
Total {income)/expense recognised as employee costs (0 3) 25

In addition to the above, a share option charge of £2 6 million has ansen for shares awarded under the Carllion Energy Services Share Incentive
Pian (SIP), which are wholly funded by the Eaga Partnership Trusts waived dividends and included in nen-recurnng operating items (see note 4)
Shares awarded under the SIP to UK partners vest immediately and therefore the share-based payment charge I1s recogrised in full at the date
of award Shares awarded under the SIP to international partners have a three year vesting penod and the share-based payment charge 1s

recognised aver the vesting period

The expected ife of the options 15 taken 10 be the full vesting penod, as historical exercise patterns have shown this to be approprate The
estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest ignores the possibility that market condittons will or will not be achieved given that

these market conditions are already included i1n the farr value of the options
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26 Guarantees and contingent habilities

2012 2011

£m £m
Guarantees i respect of interest payments In Construction services (excluding the Middle East) jointly controlled entities 02 02
Guarantees In relation ta deferred equity payments in PPP special purpose entities 882 1009
Guarantees in respect of letters of credn issued by banks in relaton to performance on contracts for PPP customers 89 2 917

Guarantees and counter indemrities have, in the normal course of business, been given to financial insututions In respect of the prowsion of
performance and other contract related bonds and to certain defined benefit pension schemes In respect of deficit recovery payments The
Group considers such guarantees and counter indemnities o be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such The Group treats
guarantees and counter indermnities of this natura as contingent habilibes until such time as it becomes probable that the Group will be
required to make a payment under the terms of the arrangement

Claims under contracts and other agreements, including joint arrangements, are cutstanding 1 the normal course of business

The Group, n the normal course of 1ts activities, 15 the subject of certain legal proceedings The resolution of these proceedings Is regarded
as unhkely to succeed or 10 have a matenal effect on the Group’s finanaiat position

There are no liabilities of jointly controlled entities for which the Group 1s contingently lable

27 Finanaal instruments
Categories of financial instruments

Finandial
Loans and Financial assets/
receivables 31 liabilities at Availlable (liabllities) held
amortised cost amortised cost for sale for trading Total
31 December 2012 m £m £m £m fm
Financial assets
Other non-current investments - - 615 - 615
Cash and cash eguivalents 6571 - - - 6571
Current asset investments 25 - - - 25
Trade recevables 2361 - - - 2361
Dernivative financial instruments - - - 04 04
Total 8957 - 615 04 9576
Financial habilities
Bank overdrafts - 49 - - 49)
Bank loans - (466 2) - - (466 2)
Finance lease obligations - (34 5) - - (305
Other loans - (307 3) - - (307 3)
Trade payables - (643 3) - - (643 3)
Deferred consideration - (18 9) - - (18 9)
Derwative financial instruments - - - {71} {71)
Total - (1,4751) - (71 (1,482 2)
Leans and Financial finanoal
receivables at habilities at Avaitable liabihties held
amortised cost  amortised cost for sale {or trading Total
31 December 2011 fm £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Other non-current investments - - 513 - 513
Cash and cash eguivalents 4907 - - - 4907
Current asset investments 43 - - - 43
Trade recevables 2827 - - - 2827
Total 777 - 513 - 8290
Financial habilities
Bank overdrafts - (30) - - (30)
Bank loans - (3997) - - (399 7)
Fuinance lease cbligat:ons - (38 4) - - (38 4)
Other loans - (100 3) - - (100 3)
Trade payables - (741 6) - - (741 6}
Derwvatwe financial instruments - - - 09 09
Total - (1,283 ) — 09 {1,283 9)

Financal risk management

Financial nsk management 15 an integral part of the way the Group 1s manage

d In the course of its business, the Group 1s exposed primarily

to foreign exchange nsk, interest rate nsk, hquidity risk and credit nsk The overall aim of the Group s financial nsk management policies are
to minimsse potential adverse effects on financial performance and net assets

The Group's treasury department manages the principal finanaal nsks within policies and operating parameters approved by the Board of
Directors Treasury 1$ not a profit centre and does not enter Into speculative transactions
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27 Financial instruments (continued)

Fareign currency nsk

The Group operates in a number of overseas regions pnimarnly the Middle East and Canada In erder to protact the Group's balance sheet
from the impact of foreign exchange rate volatility foreign currency denominated net assets that exceed £10 million equivalent are hedged,
as a mimimum, to at least 60 per cent of the net asset value Net investment hedging of overseas operations is achieved through borrowing
denominated in the relevant foreign currenaes, or where this 1s not practicable, In a currency which the relevant currency closely follows

In November 2012, the Group secured US$280 million of private placement finance at fixed interest rates from a number of United States
based investors in order to provide greater flexibility in relation to the matunity profile of Group borrowing The Group has entered into a
number of financal derivative contracts to hedge the exposure to foraign exchange rate volatiity in relation to the associated capital and
interest payments

Group policy 1s to recogrise gains and losses from the effective portions of hedges in equity and to recognise ineffective portions immediately
In the income statement

Profits ansing within overseas operations are not hedged unless tt 1s planned to make a distnbution Such distributions are then treated as
currency transactions and hedged accordingly

The Group has relatively small and infrequent transactional foreign currency exposures Any individual exposures that are sigmificant are
hedged using farward contracts or other appropnate nisk management techniques

Further details concerming the risks associated with the overseas regions in which the Group operates can be found in the Operating and
financial review on page 34

Foreign currency exposure
The carrying amount of the Group’s barrowing denominated in foreign currency Is as follows

2012 201

£m im

Umited States of America Dollar (188 6) (16 3)
Canadian Doliar (90 7) (94 8)
United Arab Ermurates Dirham (7 5) 79
Other (30) (19)
(289 8) {120 9}

Of the total foreign currency borrowing of £289 8 mdlion {2011 £120 9 million), the amount of borrowing used for hedging overseas currency
net asset amounts to £83 7 million (2011 £86 4 milion) The foreign exchange gain of £1 5 milion (2011 £0 1 mihon gain} on translation of
the borrowing into sterling has been recognised In the translation reserve as these hedging loans are effective hedges

The Group does not have a significant amount of foreign currency exposure In respect of financial assets

Each movemnent of five per cent in exchange rates against sterling would have changed reported profit before tax and equity as follows

Five per cent incease Five per cent decrease

Profit Equity Profit Equity

£m fm £m £m
Urited States of Amertca Dollar - 07 - (03)
Canadian Dollar (02) 31 03 (32)
Euro 01) 10 01 (11)
United Arab Emirates Dirham 07 (36) 08 40
Oman Rials 04) (21} gs 23
Danish Kroner - 11 - 12)
Other (02) {10) 02 11

Interest rate nisk

The Group's Interest beanng debt 1s predominantly drawn from committed bank facilities ta fund acquisitions and ongoing working capital
reguirements In addition, foreign currency denominated borrowings have been drawn under the facilities to hedge net assets of overseas
operations Such borrowing (s subject to floating rates of interest linked to London Interbank Offered Rate During 2012, the Group secured
additional finance of £210 0 milion from a private placement at fixed rates of interest, as disclosed in note 20 The principal purpose of raising
this finance at fixed interest rates was to ensure that a proportion of the Group’s borrowing was not subject to floating rates of interest which
may increase No interast rate hedging s currently undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries However, a number of Group’s Pubhic Private
Partnership jointly controlled entities have entered into interest rate swaps

A one percentage point rise In interest rates in respect of US dollar denommnated horrowings would increase the annual net interest charge
by approximately £0 2 million, in respect of Canadian dollar denominated borrowings an increase of £0 4 millon, in respect of sterling
denominated borrowings an increase of £3 9 milken, and in respect of United Arab Emirates Dirham denorminated borrowings an increase
of £01 mullion

Liquidity nsk

The Group's policy on hquidity risk 1s to ensure that sufficient barrowing facilities are available to fund ongoing operations without the need to
carry sigmificant net debt over the medium term The Group’s principal borrowing facilities are provided by a group of core relationship banks
n the form of a syndicated loan, a bilateral faciity, private placement financing and short-term overdraft facives The quantum of commutted
borrowing faciliies available to the Group 1s reviewed regularly and 1s designed to exceed forecast peak gross debt levels The average net
borrowing during 2012 was £344 1 million {2011 £149 4 million)

Governance Qur performance About us

Financial statements
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27 Finanaal instruments (continued)

Maturity of financial liabihities
The remaining contractual matunty profile of the Group's non-dernvative financial habilities, which includes estimated future interest payments,

1s as follows

Trade Deferred Bank Bank Other Finance

payables  tonsideration overdrafts loans loans leases Total

31 December 2012 £m £m m £m £m £m £m
Less than one year (643 3) 95) 49 {171} (14 4) (24 6) (713 8)
Between one and two years - 94) - (95} (14 1) {57) (387)
Between two and three years - - - (12 1) 14 1) {1 4) (27 6)
Between three and four years - - - (458 5) a1 (12) (473 8)
Between four and five years - - - - (29 3) {0 8) (301)
More than five years - - - - {339 4) (4 0) (343 3)
(643 3) {(189) {49) (497 2) {425 4) 317) (1,627 4)

Trade Bank Bank Other finance

payables overdrafts loans loans leases Jotal

31 December 2011 £m im fm im £m £m
Less than one year (741 6) 30 (171) a7 (22 9) (7892 3)
Between one and two years - - 89 @7 {15 1) {287
Between two and three years - - {89) @7 ZM (15 6}
Between three and four years - - (8 8) 47 03) {13 8)
Between four and five years - - (393 7) @7 04 (398 8)
More than five years - - - (116 1) - (116 1)
(741 6) (30) (437 4) (139 6) 40 7} {1,362 3)

The remaining contractual matunity profile of the Group‘s derivative financial iabilitses is shown below The Group’s denivative financial liabilities
relate to cross-currency derivatives that were entered into in 2012 to hedge pnncipal and interest repayments associated with US dollar private

placement financing The matunty profile 1s based on the undiscounted gross payable ayd receivable amounts under the contracts

Payable Recelvable Net payable

£m im £fm

Less than one year (8 3) 80 (0 3)
Between one and two years (8 3) 80 (0 3}
Between two and three years (8 3) 80 (0 3)
Between three and four years 83} 80 (0 3)
Between four and five years (23 9) 233 (0 6)
More than five years {193 5) 1890 a5
{250 6) 244 3 (6 3)

Borrowing faalities

The Group has the following undrawn committed barrowing facilities available at the year end in respect of which ail conditions precedent had

been met
2012 2011
£m £m
Expining within one year 74 71
Expiring between two and five years 2812 3490
288 6 356 1
Credit nisk
Credit nsk anses on financial mstruments such as trade recevables, short-term bank deposits and foreign currency hedging contracts Policies
and procedures exist to ensure that customers have an appropnate credit hustory Short-term bank deposits and foreign currency hedging
transactions are executed only with hughly credit-rated authorised counterparties based on ratings 1ssued by the major rating agencies
Counterparty exposure positions are monitored regularly so that credit exposures to any one counterparty are approved at main 8oard level
or within predetermined fimits The maximum exposure to credit sk 1s represented by the carrying value of each financial asset
The maximum exposure to credit nsk for recevables at the 31 December by geographic region was 012 2011
£&m £m
United Kingdom 1798 1712
Middle East 96 342
Canada 458 756
Rest of the World 09 17
2361 2827
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27 Financal instruments (centinued)

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for receivables at the 31 December by segment was 2012 2011

m fm

Support services 1491 1625
Public Private Partnership projects 05 01
Middle East construction services 96 342
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 76 9 859
2361 2827

The Group’s most significant debtor, Scottish Power, accounts for £10 5 million of the recevables carrying amount at 31 December 2012
{2011 UK Government £41 3 millign)

Trade receivables included tn the balance sheet are net of an impairment provision which has been estmated by management following a review
of indwidual recevable accounts and is based on prior experience and known factors at the balance sheet date Recewvables are written off against
the impairment prowsion when management considers that the debt is no longer recoverable The ageing of trade recevables s as follows

2012 2011
Net trade Net trade

receivables Imparrment receivables Impairment

£m £m £m fm

Not past due 103 4 - 166 3 -
Past due less than three months 932 07 853 12
Past due between three and six months 160 04 17 10
Past due between six and 12 months 92 12 97 24
Past due more than 12 months 143 80 97 57
2361 103 2827 103

The movement in the iImpairment prowsion 1s as follows 2012 2011
| (Em fm

At1 January ] 103 78
Prowision acquired with Canlflion Energy Services - 26
Provision created 13 11
Prowiston utiised (13) ©8)
Provision released - (04)
At 31 December 10 3 103

Whilst uncertainty surrounding counterparty risk has increased due to the prevaling economic climate, on balance the Group believes that
debtars will meet their payment obligatiens in respect of the amount of trade recevables recogrised in the balance sheet that are past due
and unprovided as at 31 December 2012

Overall, the Group considers that 1t 1s not exposed to a significant amount of credit risk

Denvative financtal instruments

2012 2011
Assets Uabdities Assets Liabilities
im £m £fm fm
Forward foreign currency contracts and options — at fair value through
the income statement 04 - - 09
Cross-currency denvatives - cash flow hedging instruments - (71) - -
04 (71) - {09)

A £1 3 million gain has been recogrised in administrative expenses in the income statement in respect of the mavement in the fair value
of forward foreign currency contracts and optians and a £7 1 million loss has been recognised in the hedging reserve in refation to the
cross-currency derivatives which are effective hedges in respect of currency movements on US dollar denominated private placement financing

In addition to the abave, a number of the Group’s Public Private Partnarship (PPP) jointly controlled entittes have entered into interest rate
derivatives as a means of hedging interest rate nsk Interest bearing debts and the associated interest rate denvatives within these PPP jointly
controlled entities are withous recourse to the Group The life of these hedge arrangements track PPP contract terms and hedge future
movements across a range up until February 2040 The {an value of these derivatives 15 based on quoted paces in active markets, with the
movement in fair value each year recognised in the share of change in fair value of effective cash flow hedges within jointly controlled entities
in the statement of comprehensive ncome At 31 December 2012 the Group's share of the total net fair value hability of interest rate dervatives
in PPP jaintly controlled entstres amounted to £99 2 milhen (2011 £161 3 milion) of which £23 8 million (2011 £34 0 milhon) {and the related
deferred tax asset of £5 5 million (2011 £8 5 million)) has been recognised in the hedging reserve
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27 Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values

Financial instruments carnied at fair value in the balance sheet are non-current asset (nvestments and denvative financial instruments The fair
value of non-current asset investments (s determined based on a level 3 valuation method, using valuation techmgues that include inputs that
are not based on market data Fair value ts calculated by discounting expected future cash flows using asset specific discount rates, with the
movement in fair value each year recogrused in the fair value movement on available for sale assets in the statement of comprehensive income

The movement in the farr value of non-current asset investments derived using a evel 3 valuation method is shown below

. £m
At 1 January 2012 499
Additions 30
Fair value of equity interests retained on partia! disposal 30
Recognised In the statement of comprehensive income 49
At 31 December 2012 608

The fair value of non-current asset Investments Is most sensitive to movements in the discount rate used A one percentage point increase in
the discount rate would reduce the fair value by £5 5 million

The fair value of denvative financial instruments 1s based on a level 2 valuation method, using inputs from quoted prices in active markets

Where there are differences between the amortised cost carrying value and fair value of the Group’s principal finanaial instruments at
31 December these are shown below

2012 2011
Carrying Carrying

value Falr value value Fair value

fm £m £m £m

Trade recewvables 2361 2355 2827 2822

Trade payables (643 3) (643 3) (741 6) (741 6)

Deferred consideration (18 9) (18 9) - -

Cash and cash equivalents 6571 6571 4907 4907

Current asset investments 25 25 43 43

Bank overdrafts 49 (4 9) (30) (30)

Bank loans (466 2) (466 2) (399 7) (3997)

Finance lease obligations (345) (33 8) (38 4) (37 4)

Other loans (307 3) (305 7) (100 3) (99 2)

Fair value 15 calculated by discounting future cash flows using appropriate interest rates Finance lease obligations are valued by calculating the
present value of the future minimum lease payments

Capital sk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard 1ts ability to continue as a gaing concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and for other stakehclders and to maintamn an optimal debt and equity structure

In order to mamntamn or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of the dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt Where the Group makes significant acquisitions, these are financed with a
combination of debt and equity n order to maintain a balanced capital structure In order to have greater flexibility over the maturity profile
of debt, the Group has secured around £310 milhon of private placement financing during the course of 2011 and 2012 with matunity dates
hetween 2017 and 2024 The Group has a policy of progressively increasing dimdends pad to shareholders broadly in line with earmngs per
share growth, after taking account of the investment needs of the business No changeswere made in the objectives policies or process
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011

2012 2011
£m £fm
Total borrowings 8080 5384
Less net cash and cash equivalents (note 18) (652 2) (4877)
Net borrowing 1558 507
Total equity 1,0095 9825
Total capital 1,165 3 10332
28 Financal and capital commitments
2012 201
£m £m
Commitments for equity and subordinated debt investments in PPP special purpose entities 856 1249
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
2012 2011
Property Other Fropenty Other
£m £m fm £m
Within one year 138 196 174 251
Between one and five years 342 281 500 301
Qver five years 221 17 311 04
701 494 98 5 556

The Group leases properties and vehicles for operational purposes Property leases vary considerably in length up to a maximum period of
99 years Vehicle leases typically run for a period of four years None of the leases includes contingent rentals
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The Group has related party relationships wath 1ts key management personnet and jointly controlled entities

Transactions with key management personnel

The Group's key management personne! are the Executive and Non-Executive Directors as identified in the Remuneration Report on page 60

In additton to their salanes, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to Executive Directors, and contributes to a post-employment defined

benefit plan or a defined contribution plan on therr behalf Executive Durectors also participate in the Group’s share eption programme
Non-Executive Directors recewve a fee for their services to the Candlion plc Board

The total compensation paid to key management persennel 1s analysed below

2012 2011
m im
Short-term employee benefits 18 38
Post-employment benefits 01 04
Share-based payments {0 2) 07
17 49

The number of key management persannel included in the above analysis is sevan (201t 10}

Transactions with jointly controlled entities

The table below summarises the principal recewable and payable balances, together with sales to the Group's jotntly controlled entities, which are

in the normal course of business and on cormmercial terms

2012 2011
Sales Recervables Payables Sales Recervables Payables
£m £m £m £m im £m
PPP jointly controlled entities
C55 {FSCC) Partnership (Canada) 1777 228 - 658 157 -
The Hospital Company (Southmeaq'i) Ltd 1324 98 - 9% 3 54 -
COE (CAMH) Limited Partnership {Canada) 1136 1 - 653 131 -
Inspiredspaces Wolverhampton Ltd 711 15 - 550 83 -
Holdfast Training Services Ltd 494 - {6 4) 861 35 -
Inspiredspaces Durham Ltd 407 66 - 209 61 -
Inspiredspaces Rochdale Ltd 368 01 1) 293 54 -
Insptredspaces Nottingham Ltd 270 - (30) 384 19 -
The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of
Canada (WCOHC) Inc (Canada) 260 28 - 262 25 -
Inspiredspaces STAG Ltd 247 - (0 4) 454 43 -
Eastbury Park 245 12 - 264 21 -
Inspiredspaces Wolverhampton (Projecicot) Ltd 146 10 - 189 07 -
inspiredspaces Tameside Ltd 125 - {16) 183 13 -
Inspiredspaces Rochdale (Projectco2) Ltd 1n3 - - - - -
Chrnicenta {Hertfordshire) Ltd 77 22 - 138 0} -
The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of Canada (ROH) Inc 60 03 - 59 03 -
Inspiredspaces Nottingham (Projectco2) Ltd 52 - - - - -
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Projectco?) Lid 38 - - 279 - -
LCED (Sault) Limited Partnership (Canada) 35 - - 30 03 -
integrated Accommodation Services Ltd 25 159 - 17 1o -
Inspiredspaces Tameside {Projectcoi) Lid 17 13 - 31 i5 -
Insptredspaces Rochdale (Projectcot) Ltd 1 - - 104 - -
Inspiredspaces STAG (Projectco?) Ltd 09 - (0 2) 87 03 -
Inspiredspaces Durham {Projectcol) Lid 04 - - g8 - -
Other 62 08 - 143 10
8013 674 (137) 6919 855 -
Other jontly controlled entities
Vanmed Construction Company {Canada} ms 161 - 389 174 -
CarnllionEnterprise Lid 167 21 - 143 39 -
Modern Housing Solutions (Prime) Lid 138 - - 122 - -
Carthon Richardson Worcester 23 04 - 1t 05 -
Al Futtaim Canllion LLC {UAE) 90 05 (336) 46 26 (75)
Carillon Richardson Partnership - 154 - - 120 -
Qthers 38 58 (8 0} 31 66 (8 0)
988 4 1077 (55 3) 7761 128 5 (15 5)
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30 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions in 2012

On 11 December 2012, the Group acquired a 49% equity shareholding in the Bouctuer Group for a cash consideration of £23 8 million

The consideration 1s payable in instalments, with £4 9 million paid in December 2012 which 1s includad in the cash flow statement within
acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired The remaning instalments of £9°5 millon payable in early 2013 and £9 4 million payable in
January 2014 have been induded as deferred consideration payable within liabihties n the balance sheet The Group has options ta acquire the
remaining 51% of the equity over the next 10 years for a consideration capped at £43 1 milhon The Bouchier Group i being consolidated as

a subsidiary on the basis of the terms of these options and the powers granted as a shareholder which enable Carillion management to exert
control A provisional assessment has been made of the fair value of the net assets acqured of £3 0 millon On the basis of this assessment the
provisional goodwill arising on the acquisition amounts to £20 8 millon Due 1o the proxmity of this acquisition to the year end, 1t has not
been possible to identify the amount of goodwill attributable to other intangible assets Fallowing the expected finalisation of the completion
accounts process in the first half of 2013 quanufication of goodwaill and other intangible assets ansing from this acquisitton will be completed
The Bouchier Group, which is based in Alberta, Canada, provides a range of services, induding road maintemance, infrastructure services and
faciliies management The acquisiion compliments the Group’s existing support services activities in Canada and provides access to substantial
new growth markets Due to the immatenial nature of this acquisition, the full disclosures required under International Financial Reporting
Standard 3 ‘Business combinations’ have not been presented

Acquisitions in 2011

On 14 February 2011, Canlon plc purchased 41,580,041 Eaga plc shares in the market, representing 16 5 per cent of the issued share capiial,
at a cash cost of £499 million On 21 April 2011, the Group obiained control of the remaiming 1ssued share capital of Eaga plc, which when
combined with the cost of acquiring shares on 14 February 2011, resulted n a total consideration of £298 4 million The total consideration was
satisfied by the 1ssue of 30 6 millon Carfllion plc shares valued at the quoted mid-market price at the close of business on the day preceding the
effective date of acquisiton of 384 36 pence and £181 2 million in cash

On acquisition, Eaga plc was rebranded Carilhon Energy Serwices (CES) CES 15 a leading provider of energy efficency solutions The Group
believes that the acquisition represents a strategic move that will provide the Group with a strong position in a number of new and attractive
markets and enhance Its abllity to provide existing and new customers with integrated support services solutions The Group believes 1t can
achieve synergies in the enlarged Group of £25 million per annum by the end of 2013 with one-off costs of delivering those savings in the
region of £40 million

The acquisitton had the following effect on the Group's assets and habihities

Acquiree’s net assets/(liabilities) at the acquisition date

Farr value Farr value Accounting Acquired
Carrying adjustments adjustments policy intangible Recognised
amaounts - goodwil - other adjustment assels values
£rm im £m £m £m fm

Property plant and equipment 125 - - - - 125
Intangible assets 611 611) - - 294 294
Non-current asset investments 10 - - - - 10
Deferred tax assets 209 - 48 17 - 274
Inventones 540 - - - - 540
Trade and other receivables 1037 - - (6 6) - 971
Income tax 32 - - - - 32
Dernvative assets 17 - - - - 17
Current assets (nvestments 80 - - - - 80
Net cash and cash equivalents (15) - - - - {15)
Borrowing (60 0) - - - - {60 0)
Trade and other payables (156 W) - - - - (156 1)
Retirement benefit habiities {0 8) - - - - 0 8)
Deferred tax hatnlites - - - - (76) {76)
Provisions (20 0) - (130) - - {39.0)
Net identifiable assets and labilities 277 (611) (14 2) (4 9) 218 {30 7)
Goodwill recognised on acquisiion 3291
Total consideration 298 4

Based on the assessment of the recogrised values of asseis and habilities, goodwill ansiag on the acquisition amounted to £323 1 milhon
The goodwill recognised represents the benefits of cost savings arising from the eliminaton of duplicaton and the potental for significant
cross-selling opportunities within the enlarged Group, together with prowiding the enlarged Group with access to energy efficiency markets
that have substantial growth prospects

The principal fair value adjustment relates to £61 1 milion of goodwill on the CES balance sheet at the date of acquisition which 1s reclassified

at the same value as goodwill on Carillion’s balance sheet under the requirements of Internatienal Financial Reporting Standards A contingent
hability of £14 2 mithon has been recognised for the future distributions to employees frem the Eaga Partnership Trusts (EPT) which crystallises a
National Insurance cost to the Company A full provision has been recogmsed at the current employer National Insurance rate of 13 8 per cent on
the total assets currently held by the EPT which are available for distnibution The timing and quantum of future distributions are determined by
the EPT The £4 9 million accounting policy adjustment results from apphying Carilion’s policy in respect of expensing rather than capitalising
certain costs associated with the secunng of new contracts The £21 8 milion of acquired intangible assets relates to the value ascribed to
acquired customer lists and contracts, net of attnbutable deferred tax
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30 Acquisitions and disposals (continued)

In addition to the adjustments noted above, following a dialogue between CES and Carill:on’s managerment teams during the course of the

due dihgence peniod granted to Carillion by CES, the £27 7 million carrying amount of net assets acquired at 21 April 2012 incorporates a
number of adustments made 10 CES's initial carrying amounts and followed a review of all balance sheet categones These adjustments include
a reduction in the valuation of inventories of £14 0 million, following a review of inventory held and its recoverability taking Into account changes
In contracts, technofogical advancement and product sales in the pre-acquisition pened, a £24 3 miflion reductian i the carrying value of trade
and other recewables, largely the result of the reassessment of aged debt, aged accrued income, supplier rebates and contract receivables in
hight of contract performance and certain contractual changes during the pre-acquisition peniod, an adjustment to trade and ather payables

of £46 9 millon to reflect contract related habiliiies and other identfied obligations, and other adjustments of £0 3 millon

Total consideration for the acquisstion compnses the following

£m
Cash paid to acquire shares in the market 499
Cash paid to acquire control 1313
Total cash pad 1812
Loss on re-measurement to fair value of shares acquired in the market 05)
Element of consideration relating to cash 1807
Equity shares 1ssued 1?7
Total consideration 298 4

The value of the equrty shares 1ssued 1s based on the mid-market price of Carllion plc shares at the close of business on 20 April 2011 of
384 36 pence and the total number of shares 1ssued of 30,613,192

At the point of obtaining control of Eaga plc on 21 Apnl 2011, the shares purchased on 14 February 2011 had a fair value of £49 4 million as a
result of the shares becoming ex-dividend As a result of re-measuring these shares to fair value an acquwisition, a loss of £0 5 milien has been
recognised within administrative expenses in the income statement This has been offset by the Eaga plc 2011 interim dividend which was paid
to Canllion ple in respect of the Eaga plc shares held

Cash flows associated with the acquisition are mcluded in the cash flow statement as follows

| im
Totat cash paid f f (1812)
Net cash and cash equivalents acquired (15)
Net cash outflow on acquisition (182 7}

Acquisition costs of £7 5 million were incurred in refation to the acquisition contracts and due difigence procedures These costs have been
inctuded as a non-operating item N the income statement (see note 4)

In the period from acquisition to 31 Decernber 2011, Canllion Energy Services contributed revenue of £379 8 million and a reported |oss after
tax of £27 3 mullion {after rationalisation costs and intangible amortisation) to conschdated profit for the penod If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2011, total revenue would have been £5,293 0 million and profit after tax would have been £36 8 million (after non-recurring
post-taxatian costs of £84 8 millhion) for the year ended 31 December 2011

Disposals in 2012

In 2012, the Group disposed of equity nterests in seven Public Private Partnership projects The disposals generated a cash consideration of
£34 8 million which 15 included in the cash flow statement within disposal of jointly controlled entity and other investments, and a profit of
£13 2 millon which 15 included in Group operating profit within the Public Private Partnership projects segment

In addition, on 29 June 2012 the Group received cash proceeds of £7 1 milhon on exchange of contracts for the sale of an equity interest in
a Public Private Partnership project At 31 Decernber 2012, all the conditions precedent had not been met in relation to the sale contract and
therefore the disposal of this equity interest has not been recognised The proceeds receved of £7 1 million have been recogmsed within
disposal of jointly controlled entity and other investments in the cash flow statement Legal completion of the sale occurred in fanuary 2013

Praceeds of £2 & millon from the disposal of equity interests in land development jointly controlled entities in Canada and £1 4 million
from the disposal of the Group‘s mvestment in HomeSun Heldings Limited are included in the cash flow statement within disposal of jaintly
controlled entity and other investments

The Group disposed of its equity interests in two small wholly ewned subsidiaries during the year for a total cash consideration of £1 @ million
(net of expenses paid of £0 2 million) The net cash consideration recewved of £0 1 million {net of £0 9 multion of cash in the subsidiaries sold)
15 Included in the cash flow statement within disposal and closure of businesses, together with cash payments of £3 @ nullion in refation to
business closures made in 2012 and 2011

Disposals in 2011

During 2011, the Group disposed of its equity investments in three Public Private Partnership projects and a small Jointly controlled entity in the
Netherlands The disposals generated a cash consideration of £31 4 mithon (net of expenses pad of £0 9 mullion) which 1s included in the cash
flow statement within disposal of jointly controlled entity and other investments

A cash flow of £1 9 millon is shown in the cash flow statement within dispesal and closure of businesses and compnses of the payment of
costs in relation to disposals made in 2009 of £1 6 millign and £0 3 million m relation to non-core business closures as disclosed N note 4
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continued

31 Retirement benefit obligations
Canlhon operates a number of pension schemes for eligible employees as disclosed below

Principal defined benefit schemes

Canlhon Statf and 'B’ Pension Schemes

Both schemes are defined benefit schemes and were dosed to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2003 Existing members no longer accrue benelits
for future service with effect fram S April 2009 but instead are eligible to participate in the Canilhen 2009 Pension Plan, which 1s a defined
contritbution scheme

An actuanal valuation of the Staff and ‘B’ schemes was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 31 December 2008 using the defined accrued
benefits method The market value of the schemes’ assets at that date were £507 0 million and £98 2 million respectively which represented
approximately 97 per cent and 76 per cent of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after allowing for
future Increases in salanes The next actuanal valuation of the schemes by the Trustees' ndependent actuaries as at 31 December 2011 15
currently being undertaken

Regular angoing contributions are no longer payable following the closure of the Staffand B schemes to future accrual on 5 Aprl 2009

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees of the Staif and ‘B’ schemes, payments were made to the schemes during 2012
of £0 3 mullion and £1 4 million respectively (2011 £0 6 million and £2 6 mittion respeciively) Recovery payments of £2 0 mullion and £2 1 million
to the Staff and 'B’ schemes respectively are scheduled to be made in 2013

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 15 payable in addition to the above The PPF levies for the year ended 31 March 2013 were £0 6 milbon
(year ended 31 March 2012 £0 2 million) for the Staff scheme and £7,779 (year ended 31 March 2012 £17,000) for the '8 scheme

Mowlem Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme
The Mawlern Staff Pension and Life Assurance scheme was part of Mowlem, which was acquired on 23 February 2006

The majonity of employees who participate in the scheme are in defined benefit arrangements The defined benefit section of the Mowlem Staff
Pension and Life Assurance scheme closed to new entrants on 1 January 2003 Existing members no longer accrue benefits for future service with
effect from 5 April 2009 but instead are ehigible to parucipate in the Canllion 2009 Pension plan, which 1s a defined contnbution scheme

An actuanial valuation of the Mowlem Staff schefne was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 31 Decernber 2008 using the defined
accrued benefits method The market value of the scheme's assets at that date were £38i 7 million, representing approximately 73 per cent
of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after allowing for future increases in salaries The next aciuanal
valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent actuaries as at 31 December 2011 1s currently being undertaken

Regular ongoing contributions are no longer payable following the closure of the scheme to future accrual on 5 April 2009

As part of the defiait recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made to the Mowlem Staff scheme in the year of £7 6 million (2011
£12 2 million) Recovery payments of £1¢ 1 million are scheduled to be made in 2013

The Pension Protection Fund {PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £0 5 million
(year ended 31 March 2012 £0 2 million)

Canllion Public Sector Pension Scheme
The scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme and remains apen to eligible employees transfernng from the public sector as part of the commergial
oblgations under PRl PPP and Best Value contracts with public sector employers

An acluanal valuation of the scheme was undertaken by independent actuares as at 31 Decemnber 2010 using the attained age method
The market value of the schemes' assets at that date was £131 8 million, which represented approximately 82 per cent of the benefits that
had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing bass, after allowing for future increases 1n salaries The next actuanal valuation of the
scheme by the Trustees’ independent actuaries i1s due as a1 31 December 2013

The regular ongeing employer contributions paid during the year were £3 0 million (2011 £3 4 million) The Group expects to pay regular
contributions amaunting to £3 2 million representing 33 8 per cent of pensienable salanes during 2013 If any employees are admitied into
the Scheme through PFi, PPP or Best Value contracts duning 2013 the level of contributions will increase

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments of £2 3 millon were made during 2072 (2011 £2 3 milhon) Recovery
payments of £2 7 million are scheduled to be made in 2013

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy is payable in addition 1o the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £0 3 mifion
(year ended 31 March 2012 £0 4 million}

Shared Cost Sections of the Railways Pension Scheme (RPS)

Employees of GTRM and Centrac, and former employees of British Rail transferred to these businesses, have pension provision via Shared Cost

Sections of the Railways Pension Scheme Both the GTRM and Centrac Sections are closed to new entrants Shared cost arrangements are such
that the employer and members share the cost of future service liabilities on a 60/40 splt respectvely and any surpfus or deficit emerging over

time is dealt with on a similar basis

Independent actuanes appointed by the Railways Pension Trustee Company Limited camed out a formal valuation of the Railways Pension
Scheme at 31 December 2010 using the attained age method The market values of the scherme assets of the GTRM Section and Centrac
Section at 31 December 2007 were £220 6 million end £22 1 million respectively, which represented approximately 979 per cent and 103 per
cent of benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after taking account of future increases (n safaries, contributions
payable and reserves The next actuanal valuation of the schemes by the Trustees' independent actuares is due as at 31 December 2013
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31 Retirement benefit obligations {continued}

The regular ongoing contributions paid by the employer during the year were £1 1 milion (2011 £1 2 million} The Group expects to pay regular
ongoing contnbutions in 2013 amounting to £1 0 million and £0 1 million for both sections representing 22 0 and 19 4 per cent of pensicnable
salanes for the GTRM and Centrac sections respectively

As part of the defiat recovery plan agreed with Trustees, no payments were made in 2012 (2011 £1 2 million} Recovery payments of £0 6 million
are scheduled to be made in 2013

The Penston Protectron Fund (PPF) levy is paid by the scheme as part of the funding arrangement

Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan

The Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan was part of Alfred McAlpine, which was acquired on 12 February 2008 The pension plan is a defined benefit
arrangement which was closed to future service accrual on 31 July 2003 During 2009, 1t was agreed that the benefits for members will no longer
be linked to final salary with effect from 31 December 2009

An actuanal valuation of the pension plan was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 31 December 2008 ustng the defined accrued benefit
method The rnarket value of the plan assets at that date were £233 4 mullion, which represented approximately 65 per cent of the benefits that
had accrued to members at that date The next actuanal valuation of the schemes by the Trustees’ independent actuaries as at 31 December
2011 15 currently being undertaken

Regular ongoing employer cantributions are no longer payable following the closure of the scheme to future accrual

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made in 2012 of £8 4 milion (2011 £10 8 milhion) Recovery
payments of £10 0 million are scheduled to be made in 2013

The Pensian Protection Fund (PPF} levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £0 3 million
(year ended 31 March 2012 £0 1 million)

Other defined benefit schemes

The PME Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme

The PMIE Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme is a defined benefit scheme and 1s closed to new entrants Existing members no longer
accrue benefits for future service with effect from 5 April 2009 but instead are eligible to participate in the Canlian 2009 Pension Plan,
whiuch 15 a defined contnbution scheme

The defiat in the scheme at 31 December 2012 in accordance with 1AS 19, 1s £9 9 million (2011 £6 7 million)

An actuarial valuation of the scheme was undertaken by independent actuanes as at 31 December 2008 using the attained age method
The market value of the scheme's assets at that date was £46 0 milhon, which represented approximately 78 per cent of the benefits that
had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after allowing for future increases in salanes The next actuanal valuation of the
schemes by the Trustees” independent actuaries as at 31 December 2011 1s currently being undertaken

Regular ongoing contributions are no longer payable following the closure of the scheme to future accrual on S Apnl 2009

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees a payment of £0 6 milhon was made during 2012 (2011 £1 2 millon) Recovery
payments of £0 9 mullion are scheduled to be made In 2013

The Pension Protection Fund {PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan and was £0 1 million for the year ended 31 March 2013
(year ended 31 March 2012 £23,000)

Carilhon Canada Inc

The Carillion Group operates a defined benefit scheme for employees of Canllion Canada Inc managed locally, which was closed te future
accrual with effect from 31 December 2010 In addition certain executives have supplemental arrangements in place, namely the Senior
Executive Retirement Plan and the Post Retirement Benefit Plan The net defiait in total for these three schemes at 3t December 2012,
calculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 15 £11 3 midhon (2011 £10 3 million)

Regular contributions pard during the year were £nl (2011 £nil) in respect of the Canlion Canada Inc defined benefit scheme and £0 4 milion
(2011 £0 4 million) in respect of other post-retrement benefits for serwor Canadian employees Regular contnbutions for 2013 are esumated to
be £0 4 million

Mowlem (1993} Pension Scheme
The Mowiem (1993} Pension scheme was part of Mowlem, which was acquired on 23 February 2006 The scheme 15 a defined benefit arrangement

The surplus in the scheme at 31 December 2012, calculated in accordance with IAS 19,15 £0 7 million (2011 £4 9 mullion dediait)

An actuarial valuation of the Mowlem (1993) scheme was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 31 December 2011 using the attained age
method The market value of the schemes assets at that date were £75 S milhion, representing appraximately 78 per cent of the benefits that had
accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basts, after allowing for future increases in salares The next actuartal valuation of the scheme by
the Trustees' independent actuanes 1s due as at 31 December 2014

The regutar ongoing contributions paid dunng the year were £2 0 million (2011 £2 2 million) The Group expacts 10 pay regular ongoing
contnibutions amounting to £2 6 million, representing 36 1 per cent of pensionable salary, dunng 2013

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made to the scheme during 2012 amounting to £3 & mullion
(2011 £3 0 milllon) Recovery payments of £3 6 million are scheduled to be made in 2013
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31 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy s payable (n addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £0 % million
(year ended 31 March 2012 £0 1 rmullion)

ESPS Scheme
The ESPS scheme was part of Alfred McAlpine, which was acquired on 12 February 2008, and is a defined benefit arrangement

The defiat in the scheme at 31 December 2012, caiculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 1s £25 4 milion {2011 £14 9 million)

An actuanal vaiuation of the scheme was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 31 March 2010 using the projected unit credit method
The market value of the plan assets at that date were £50 3 millian, which represented approximately 66 per cent of the benefits that had
accrued to members at that date The next actuanal valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent actuaries due as at 31 March 2013
1s currently being undertaken

The regular ongaing employer contributions paid during the year were £0 3 milion (2011 £0 4 million} The Group expects to pay regular
ongoing contributions of £0 4 millon in 2013 representing 28 2 per cent of pensicnable salaries

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees payments were made durng 2012 of £5 1 million 2011 £1 1 milhor) Recovery
payments of £2 7 million are scheduled to be made in 2013

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) tevy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PFF levy for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £0 3 million
{year ended 31 March 2012 £0 & million)

Bower Group Retirement Benefit Scheme
The Bower Group Retirement Benefit Scheme was part of Mowlem, which was acquired on 23 February 2006 The scheme 15 a defined benefit
arrangement and 15 closed to future accrual

The deficit in the scheme at 31 December 2012 calculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 15 £1 7 mullion (2011 £1 8 millior)

An actuaral valuatien of the scheme was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 28 February 2010 using the prqgcted unit credit method
The market value of the plan assets Pt that date were £7 0 million, which represented approximately 63 per cent of the benefits that had accrued
to members at that date The next aciuarial valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent actuaries 1s due as at 28 February 2013

Regular ongoing contnbutions are no longer payable as the scheme 1s closed to future accrual

Deficit recovery payments of £0 7 million were made durng 2012 (2011 £0 7 million} Recovery payments of £0 7 million are scheduled to be
made in 2013

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £0 1 million
(year ended 31 March 2012 £5,000)

Alfred McAlpine (Ireland) Pension Plan

The Group has a defined benefit pension scheme for the employees of operations 1n the Republic of Ireland, the Alfred McAlpine (Ireland)
Pension Plan The regular ongoing contrnibutions paid dunng the year were £0 4 million The deficit in the Alfred McAlpine (freland) Penston
Flan in the Group balance sheet at 31 December 2012, calculated in accordance with 1AS 19 1s £0 4 milion 2011 £0 2 million)

Permarock Pension Plan

The Permarack Pension plan was part of Carthon Energy Services, which was acquired on 21 April 2011 This scheme 1s a defined benefit
arrangement which s closed 10 new entrants Existing members no longer accrue benefits for future service The deficit in the scheme in the
Group balance sheet at 31 December 2012, calculated in accordance with 1AS 19,15 £04milhion (2011 £0 7 mithon) Defiat recovery payments
of £0 2 milllon were made during 2012 Recovery payments of £0 1 million are scheduled 1o be made in 2013

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates four principal UK defined contribution schemes, namely the Canllion 2009 Pension Plan, the Carllion Pension Plan, the PME
Defined Contributian Plan and the Carillion Retirement Plan (closed to new entrants since 2001) In addition, the Group operates two Stakehaclder
Plans ('Stakeholder Plus' and the Alfred McAlpine 2003 Pension Plan), and two personal plans (acquired through Carillion Energy Services)

The Canlhion 2009 Pension Pian commenced an & Apnl 2009 for existing employee members of the Canilion Staff, Canillion ‘B’, Mowlem Staff
and PME Staff Pension and Life Assurance Schemes, which closed ta future service accrual on 5 Apnit 2009 Under the plan employees contribute
a mimimum of 5 Q per cent and the employer a mimimum of 10 0 per cent of basic safary In addition to pension benefits, death in service lump
sum benefits are provided The employer meets the cost of administration and management of the Plan Employer contributions dunng the year
were £10 0 milhon (2011 £11 8 milion)

The Canllien Pension Plan commenced on 1 Apnl 2003 The majonty of new employees across the Group are eligible to join this plan Employees
contribute a minimum of 5 0 per cent and the employer a minimum of 7 0 per cent of basic salary Up to 3 0 per cent of any addiiicnal voluntary
contnibutions paid by emplayees is matched by the employer resulting in a maxirmurm employer contribution of 10 0 per cent of basic salary The
employer meets the cost of administration and management of the Plan equivalent to afurther 2 O per cent of basic pay Employer contributions
during the year were £3 9 milion (2011 £3 8 million)

£mployees of Canlhion Services Limited who are not eligible for the Carllion Pension Plan are invited to participate in the Carillion Stakeholder Plus
managed by BlackRock Pensions Limited Employees contribute 5 0 per cent and the employer 6 5 per cent of basic salary Death 1n service lump
sum benefits are provided m addition to pension benefits Employer contributions during the year were £0 7 million (2011 £0 7 rullion)




103
Carnllion plc Annua!l Report and Accounts 2012

31 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The PME Defined Contnbutton Plan commenced in Apnl 1999 All new PME employees are offered membership of the Plan Employees
contribute 4 0 per cent of basic pay and the employer pays 5 0 per cent of basic pay {incluswve of a 1 0 per cent allowance for insurance premmums
and audit fees) Employer contributions during the year were £0  million (2611 £0 5 million)

Employer contributions to the Carillion Retirement Plan during the year were £34,002 (2011 £39,506)

Employees of businesses acquired on the purchase of Alfred McAlpine may be eligible to participate in the Alfred McAlpine 2003 Pension

Plan managed by Zurich Assurance Employees contribute between 3 0 per cent and 9 0 per cent depending upon job grade and the employer
contributes maiching amounts Death in service lump sum benefits are provided in addition to pension benefits Employer contnbutions during
the year were £3 1 million (2011 £3 3 milhon}

Employees of businesses acquired on the purchase of Canllion Energy Services may be eligible to participate in the personal plans managed
by Aegon and Clerical Medical and General Employer contributions 1o these plans duning the year were £1 7 million (2011 £1 9 mullion)

Stakeholder pensions are also provided by B&CE tnsurance and Scottish Widows where required by Working Rule Agreements and defined
contribution pensions provided where required by the Joint Industries Board Working Rules Agreements

Various companies within the Group participate in admission agreemenis with local authonities in order to allow former public sector employees
to continue membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme Contributions duning the year, which have been accounted for on a defined
contribution basis, were £0 5 million 2011 £0 7 mullion}

1AS 19 disclosuras
The weighted average of the principal assumptians used by the independent qualified actuanes in providing the 1AS 19 position were

31 December 2012 31 December 20m1

UK Canada UK Canada

Rate of increase in salaries 340% N/A 350% N/A
Rate of increase in pensions 290% 225% 300% 225%
Inflatton rate — Retall Price Index 290% 225% 300% 225%
Inflation rate — Cansumer Price Index 2 05% N/A 190% N/A
Discount rate 4 55% 435% 4 80% 493%

The market values of the schemes’ assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term, may be subject to sigmificant change before
they are realised The present values of the schemes” habilities are calculated by reference to the investment return on Grade AA corporate
bonds The assumptiens used do not necessarily represent the investment return that may be achieved

The Iife expeclancies at 65 for males aged 45-65 are shown below

Life expectancies Valuation 31 December 2012
Non retired member Retired member

(aged 45 years currently)  (aged 65 years currently) Base table Future iImprovements
Canllon Staff 232 214 SINA CMI2009 1 25%
Public Sector 258 239 STNA CMI 2009 1 25%
Canlhon ‘B 267 248 STNA CMI2009 1 25%
Mowlemn Staff 249 231 SINA CMI 2009 125%
Mowlem 1993 248 226 SINA CMI2009 1 25%
Alfred McAlpine Pensian Plan 249 214 SINA CMI12009 1 25%
PME Staff 249 231 SINA CMI2009 1 25%
ESPS 238 222 SiPA CMI2009 1 25%
Permarock 241 223 S1PA CMI 2009 1 25%
Bower Group Retirement Benefit 253 229 PCA0OB MC 1 25%/1 0% floor males/females
Shared Cost Section of the Railways 248 227 SINA CMI 2008 1 5%

Pension Scheme
Canllian Canada Inc — - 1994  uninsured pensioners projecied to 2020
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31 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Carllian has adopted immediate recognition of any actuanat gains or losses through the Statement of comprehensive Income as permitted

under IAS 19

The IAS 19 position for the schemes s as {ollows

Alfred
" McAlpine
_ totrenm Conlon Mouen Gl Chemlon bl e ome
31 Decemnber 2012 UK  Canada £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 705 785 1752 2977 252 193 3 88 2 641 1275 9712
Government bonds 305 216 1610 26 363 523 248 215 581 3566
Corporate bonds 415 - 2613 164 2 S03 571 344 338 398 640 9
Other 050 198 46 37 16 13 09 248 67 436
Market value of scheme assets 6021 4682 1134 3040 1483 1442 2321 20123
Present value of funded scheme oblgation (6389) (6176) (1276) (3671 (1711 (1601) (2610) (2,343 4)
Present value of unfunded scheme abligation - - - - - - 91 N
Minimum funding requirement - - - - (03) - {10 5) {10 8)
Total defiot (368) (1494) (142) (63 1) (231} (159) (485) (3510)
Related deferred tax asset 811
Net pension hability {269 9)
Alfred
Expected McAlpine
rate of retum % Carlhon  Mowlem Carlhon Pension Public Raillways Gther
e T m Staff Staff B Flan Sector Pension  Schemes Total
31 December 2011 UK Canada £m £m £m £m £m £m £ £m
Equities 695 822 1573 2704 222 1748 774 993 1155 9169
Government bonds 2985 299 165 8 145 380 56 2 250 250 476 3721
Corporate bonds 455 - 2503 148 4 467 53¢ 304 91 44 8 5827
Cther 050 230 32 38 21 213 08 80 60 262
Market value of scherne assets 5766 4371 1090 2863 1336 1914 2139 1,8979
Present value of funded scheme obligation (5999) (5611) (1258) (3534) (1602) (1503) (2446} (21953)
Present value of unfunded scheme obhgation - - - - - - (8 4) (8 4y
Total deficit (233) (1240) (68) 671) (26 6) (89) (331) (3058
Related deferred tax asset 765
Net pension liability (229 3)
(1) All schemes are funded except the Senior Executive Retrement Plan and the Post Retirement Benefit Plan held in Canada
Expense recognised in the income statement
2012 2011
£m £m
Charge to operating profit
Current service cost relating to defined benefit schemes {59) (66)
(Charge)/cradht to other finanaal iIncome and expense
Expected return on retirement plan assets 1000 160
Interest cost on retrement plan obligations {103 6) (128}
Net financial (expense)/income {(36) 32
Total actuanal {losses)/gains recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
Effects of changes i assumptions underlying the present value of scheme labilities {128 7) (373
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets 661 68 7)
Movemnent in minimum funding requirement (10 8) 94
Total actuanal losses recogrused in the Statement of comprehensive income {73 4) (96 b)
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2012 201
fm im
Changes 1n defined benefit oblhigation
Obligation at 1 January (2,203 7) {2,128 6)
Current service cost (5 9) (66)
Acquisition of Canllion Energy Services - (28)
Interest cost {103 6) (112 8)
Contnbutions from scheme members (0 8) (09)
Benefits paid 895 852
Actuanal losses (128 7) {373)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 07 01
Obligation at 31 December {2,352 5) (2,203 7)
2012 200
£m £m
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets
Fair value at 1 January 1,897 9 1,8886
Expected return on scheme assets 1000 1160
Acquisition of Carilhion Energy Services - 20
Contributions from the employer 374 443
Contributions from scheme members 08 09
Benefits pad (89 5) {85 2)
Actuarial gains/{losses) 66 1 08 7)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 0 4} -
Fair value at 31 December 2,012 3 1,8979
The amount included m the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes is as follows 012 0
EmL £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation {2,352 5} (2,2037)
Fair value of scheme assets 2,012 3 1,8979
Mirnmum funding requirerment {10 8) -
{351 0) (305 8)
Schemes in surplus fwithin nan-current assets) 07 -
Schemes in deficit (within nen-current habilities) (351 7) (305 8)
(351 0) (305 8)
The actual return on plan assets was £166 1 millian (2011 £47 3 million)
History of expertence gains and losses
2012 2011 2010 2008 2008
fm £m £m £m fm
Present value of the defined benefit obhgation (2,352 5) (2,203 7) {2128 6) (2,028 5) (1,683 6}
Fair value of scheme assets 2,0123 1,8979 1,888 6 1,741 4 1,5845
Minimum funding requirement {10 8) - G4 &7 {200)
Deficat (351 0) (305 8) (249 4) (293 8) (109 1)
Expenence gains and fosses on scheme obligation {Em} (128 7} (373) (612} (3192 3092
Percentage of defined benefit oblgation (%) (55) a7n 29 {157} 84
Difference between expected and actual returns on scheme assets {Em) 661 B8 7) 758 859 416 6)
Percentage of scheme assets {%) 33 (2 6) 40 49 (26 1)

The cumulative amount of actuarial gans and losses recagrised since 1 January 2004 in the Group statement of comprehensive income Is
£394 6 milion (2011 £321 2 million} The Group 15 unable to determine how much of the pension scheme deficeit recognised on transition to
IFRS of £85 2 million and taken directly to total equity 1s attnbutable to actuanal gains and losses since Incepion of the schemes Therefore,

tha Group 1s unable to deterrmine the amount of actuanal gains and losses that would have been recogrised m the Group statement of

comprehensive income befare 1 January 2004
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements
Management has discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Group's critical accounting policies
and estimates and the apphcation of these polices and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year, are discussed below

Construction contracts

In determining the revenue and costs to be recognised each year for work done on construction contracis, estimates are made n relation

1o final out-turn on each coniract On major construction contracts, it is assessed, based on past experence, that their outcome cannot be
estimated rehably during the early stages of the contract, but that costs incurred will be recoverable Once the outcome can be estimated
reliably the estimates of final out-turn an each contract may Include cost contingencies to take account of the speafic nisks within each
contract that have been identified dunng the early stages of the contract The cost contngencies are reviewed on a regular basss throughout
the contract life and are adjusted where appropnate However, the nature of the risks on contracts are such that they often cannot be resolved
until the end of the project and therefore may not reverse until the end of the project Management continually reviews the estimated final
out-turn on contracts and makes adjustments where necessary

Intangible assets
In determning the fair value of identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilitres of businesses acquired, judgement is required in relation
to final out-turn on construction contracts, discount rates and expected future cash flows and profitability

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the discount rate and future cash flows expected tc anse from
the cash-generating unit to which the intangible assets are attached Note 11 prowdes details of the carrying value of intangible assets

Retirement benefits
In determining the valuation of defined benefit pension scheme assets and liabities, a number of key assumptsons have been made The key
assumptions, which are given below, are largely dependent on factors outside the control of the Group

> Expected return on plan assets
> Inflation rate

> Mortaity

> Discount rate

= Salary and pensions Increases

Detalls of the assumptions used are included 1n nate 31

The valuation of defined benefit pension scheme liabilities in particular, 1 most sensitive to changes in the discount rate and inflation rate
A0 1 per cent raduction in the the discount rate would increase scheme habiliies by approximately £42 mifhion, whilst a 0 1 per cent Increase
in the inflatien rate would increase scheme habilities by approximately £38 mullion

33 Off-balance sheet arrangements
The Group Is party to a number of contractual arrangements for the purposes of the Group's principal activities that are not required to be
ncluded on the Group balance sheet The principal off-balance sheet arrangements that the Group are party to are as follows

> Operating leases (see note 28)

> Pledged assets securing finance jease liabiities (see notes 10 and 1%)

> Contingent habilities in respect of guarantees for deferred equity payments and performance contracts in PPP special purpose entities
(see note 26)

> Capital commitmenits for caprtal expenditure and equity and subordinated debt in PPP special purpase entities (see note 28)

> Qutsourcing contracts

In respect of outsauraing contracts, the Graup has entered INto vanous arrangements 10 outsource the prowision of ceriain back-office
functions with a third party prowider These arrangements are on commercial terms and any penalty or termination clauses associated with
these arrangements will not have matenal impact on the financial positon of the Group

34 Change in presentation

As descnbed in note 1, in 2012 profit from the disposal of equity investments in Public Prvate Partnershup projects has been presented within
Group operating profit in the income statement Previously such profits were presented within non-operating tems Following this change in
presentation, comparative information has been restated accordingly which has had the following smpact on underlying profit before taxation,
non-operating items and underlying earnings per share

Year ended 31 December 2011

As previpusly impact of As

reported change restated

Underlying profit before taxation fm 2120 15 2235
Non-operating 1tems fm 46 (11 5) 69)
Underlying earning per share Pence 430 27 457

There 1s no impact on reparted profit before taxation and basic and diluted earmings per share
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35 Prninaipal subsidiaries, yointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations
A st of significant investments in subsidearies, Jointly controlled entities and jomntly contrelled operations, including the name, country of

Incorporation and proportion of ownership interest is given below

Except where shown, all subsidiary undertakings and jointly controlled entities are incorporated in Great Britain and operate in the UK
All' holdings are of ordinary shares and except where shown, all subsidiary undertakings are 100% owned (with equivalent voting rights)
and jointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations are 50% owned Shares of those undertakings marked with an asterisk are

directly owned by Canllion plc

Principal substdiary undertakings
Canlhon (AMBS) Ltd

Canliron (Aspire Construction) Holdings No 2 Ltd
Carilhon (Aspire Services) Holdings No 2 Ltd
Canllion Alawi LLC (Oman) 49%

Caridlion Canada Inc (Canada)

Canlhion CR Ltd

Carithon Construction Ltd *

Carilhon Energy Services Ltd *

Carillhon Fleet Management Ltd *

Canlhon LGS Ltd *

Canllion Private Finance Lid *

Carillion Services Lid *

Postworth Ltd *

Sovereign Hospital Services Ltd

The Bouchier Group (Canada) 45%

Prinaipal jointly controlled entities

Public Private Partnerships

Accommodation Services (Holdings) Ltd 20%

(5SS (FSCC) Partnership (Canada)

Chmcenta (Hertfordshire} Ltd \

COE (CAMH) Lirmited Partnership (Ca?ada)

Eastbury Park (Holdings) Lid

Holdfast Training Services Lid 26%

HIP {NOH) Limited Partnership (Canada) 40%

Inspiredspaces Notungham (Holdings2) Lid 80%

Inspiredspaces Rochdale (Holdings1) 1td 80%

Inspiredspaces Rochdale (Holdings2) Ltd 80%

LCED (Sautt) Limited Partnership 25% (Canada)

Road Management Services {A13} Holdings Ltd 25%

Yorkshire Transformations Holdings Ltd 33 3%

The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of Canada {(ROH) Inc (Canada)
The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of Canada {WOHC} Inc (Canada)
The Hospital Company {(Southmead) Holdings Ltd

UK Highways AS5 {Holdings) Lid

Other Public Private Partnership Investments
Aspire Defence Holdings Ltd 12 5%

Insprredspaces Durham (Holdings1) Ltd 8%
Inspiredspacas STaG (Holdings1) Lid 4 4%
Inspiredspaces 5TaG (Holdings2) Ltd 4 4%
Inspiredspaces Nottingham (Holdings1} Lid 8%
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Holdings1) Ltd 8%
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Holdings2) Ltd 8%
Inspiredspaces Wolverhampton (Holdings1) Ltd 8%

Others

Al Futtaim Canilion LLC {(UAE) 49%
CarnllonEnterprise Lid 50 1%

Carnllion Richardson Partnership

Emnill Services LLC (UAE)* 33%

Modern Housing Solutions (Prime) Ltd 67%
Servus Ltd {Trirudad & Tobago)

Jointly controlled operations

Nature of business

Faalities management

Military accommadation at Aldershot and Salisbury Plain
Facilies management

Bulding and civil engineering

Construction and infrastructure services

Holding company for property development
Construction and infrastructure services

Renewable energy support services

Supply and maintenance of vehicles

Roads and ground mantenance and repair

Holding company for PPP project companies

Faclities management

Supply of operatives to the construction industry
Faclities management in the healthcare sector

Road maintenance, infrastructure services and faohties management

Associated project

GCHQ, Cheltenham

Farensic Services and Coroners’ Complex, Toronto
The Lister Surgicentre Hertfordshire

Centre for Addiction & Mental Health, Tor$nto
Permanent Joint Headquarters, Northwood
Royal School of Mititary Engeneering, Chatham
New Qakwille Hospital, Halton

Nottingham Schools Phase 2

Rachdale Schools Phase 1

Rochdale Schools Phase 2

Sault Area Hospital, Canada

A13, Thames Gateway

Swarchffe Social Housing, Leeds

Royal Ottawa Hospital, Canada

William Osler Hospital, Canada

Southmead Hospital, Bristol

AS55 North Wales

Military accommodation and faclities management at Aldershot
and Salisbury Plain

Durham Schools

South Tyneside and Gateshead Schools (Jarrow)

South Tyneside and Gateshead Schools (South Shields)
Nottingham Schools Phase 1

Tameside Schools Phase 1

Tameside Schools Phase 2

Wolverhampton Schools

Nature of business

Building and avil engineenng
Mirustry of Defence buldings
Property Development
Faclities management
Ministry of Defence housing
Facilities management

Name, proportion of interest held and address of principal place of business

Carillion Telent Jont Venture 60%
Canllion-URS Joint Venture 70%

Canllion-WSP JV 60%

Hayward Road, Warwick, England

Pytchley Maintenance Compound, Pegasus Court, Kettering South
Bustness Park, Kettering Northamptonshire, England

Bradford, West Yorkshire, England

A complete hist of Group subsidiary undertakings will be attached to the Company’s annual return to the Registrar of Companies
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2012

2012

201

Nate fm £m
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures 3 1,566 1 1,563 6
Current assets
Debtors 4 1,024 0 666 3
Cash at bank and in hand 46 6 102
10706 6765
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5
Borrowing (13 3) Q9
Other creditors (598 1) (548 1)
(611 4} {558 0)
[ Net current assets 459 2 1185 |
Total assets less current habilities 2,025 3 1,682 1
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowing 6 (762 9) 488 8)
Net assets 1,262 4 1,193 3
Financed by
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7 2151 2151
Share premium 8 212 212
Merger reserve 8 618 7 6187
Hedging reserve 8 (50) -
Other reserve 8 92 67
Profit and loss account 8 403 2 3316
Equity shareholders’ funds 9 1,262 4 1,193 3

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directars on 27 February 2013 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

W

Richard Adam FCA
Group Finance Director
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Significant accounting policres

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
Company’s financial statements

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterhng They are
prepared on the histarical cost basrs, except for denvative financial
Instruments which are stated at far value, and in accordance with

applicable UK accounting standards and faw

Taxation

Deferred tax assets or labilities anse from timing differences between
the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their
recognition in the tax computation that have arisen but not reversed
by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19
‘Deferred tax’ Liabilities are calculated on a non-discounted full
provision basis Assets are calculated on the same basis, but are
racognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that they will

be recovered

Fixed asset investments

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary
undertakings and joint ventures are stated at cost, less provision
for any impairment

Leasing

The Company enters into finance lease arrangements on behalf of
subsichary companies As permitted by SSAP 21 'Accounting for leases
and hire purchase contracts’, the assets relating to the finance leases
are mcluded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries concerned
The capital element of outstanding finance leases 1s included within
borrowings The finance charge element of rentals s charged to the
profit and loss account at a constant perrodic rate of charge on the
outstanding obhgations

Owvn shares

Consideration paid for shares in the Company held by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) Trust are deducted from the profit and
loss account reserve Where such shares subsequently vest in the
employees under the terms of the Company’s share option schemes
or are sold, any consideration recewved 15 included in the profit and
loss account reserve

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
sterling and recorded using the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transaction

Finanaal instruments

The Company’s prinapal financial assets and liabilities are cash at bank
and in hand and borrowings Cash at bank and in hand is carried in the
balance sheet at amortised cost Borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs and subsequently at
amorused cost In addition, the Company enters into forward contracts
i order to hedge agamst small and infrequent transactional foreign
currency exposures In cases where these denvative instruments are
significant, hedge accounting 15 apphed Where hedge accounting 1s
not applied, movements in fair value during the year are recognised in
the profit and loss account Fair values are based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date The Company has taken the
exemption within FRS 29 'Financial Instruments Disclosure” and does
not present all of the required disclosures as they are included in the
consolidated financial statements of which the Company 1s the parent

Share-based payments

Members of the Group's sentor management team are entitled

o participate in the Leadership Equity Award Plan (LEAP) and LK
employees are able to participate in the Sharesave scheme Under the
terms of the Group‘s bonus arrangements, Executive Directors and
certan semor employees recerve a proportion of therr bonus in shares,
which are deferred for a period of up to three years

The fair value of the shares for the LEAP, Sharesave and deferred bonus
arrangements at the date of grant are estimated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model The fair vafue determined at grant date 1s expensed on a
straight-line basis over the peniod In which any performance conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date onwhich the relevant employees
become {fully entitled 10 the award {vesting date}

Where the Company granis options over 11s own shares to the
employees of its subsidiaries, 1t recogruses in its ndwidual finangal
statements an increase in the cost of Investment in its subsidiaries
equwvalent to the equity settled share-based payment charge recognised
in its consolidated financial statements with the corresponding credit
being recognised directly In equity Amounts recharged to the subsidiary
are recognised as a reduction in the cost of the investment in the
subsichary If the amount recharged exceeds the increase In the cost of
Investment the excess I1s recognised as a dividend to the extent that it
reflects post-acquisttion profits af the subsidiary

The Company also operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP} under which
qualiying Canllion Energy Serwvices partners may receive free shares The
fair value of the free shares are recognised as a dividend to the extent
that 1t reflects post-acquisition profits of the subsichary

To the extent that share-based payment costs incurred by the Company

are funded by the Eaga Partnership Trusts (EPT) through the waliver of its
entitiement to Canllion plc dividends, the associated charges are treated
In accordance with the Company’s accounting policies

Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts 1o
guarantee the indebtedness of subsidiary comparues, the Company
considers these to be insurancq arrangements and accounts for them
as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as
a contingent liability unti! such time as it becomes probable that the
Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Retirement benefit obligations

Pension costs are recognised In the finanaal statements in accordance
with the requirements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits” Employees of
the Company parucpate in the Canlhion ‘Staff* and ‘B’ schemes which
provide pensions on a defined benefit basis The assets and habilivies of
these schemes relating to the Company cannot be readily ascertained
on a reasonable and consistent basis as the schemes are operated for
the benefit of the Canllion Group as a whole Cansequently, the
Company accounts for these schemes as if they were defined
contribution schemes Details of the Group’s pension schermes

are disclosed m note 31 of the consolidated financial staternents

Cash flow statement
A cash flow statement has not been presented as permitted by FRS 1
{revised) "Cash flow statements’

2 Profit for the year and divadends

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected
not to present its owan proht and loss account for the year Canillien plc
reported a profit for the financia! year ended 31 December 2012 of
£143 4 million (2011 £113 2 millign)

Fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and iis associates for non-audit services
to the Company itself are not disclosed in the indwidual accounts of
Canllion plc because the Company's consolidated accounts are
required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

A final diwidend, declared in the previous year, of 11 6 pence (2011
10 7 pence) per share was paid during the year, amounting to £48 5
mulion {2011 £43 O million)

An interim dimdend of 5 4 pence (2011 5 3 pence) per share was paid
during the year, amounting to £219 milion 2011 £21 6 million)

A final dividend of 11 85 pence (2011 11 6 pence) per share,
amounting to £51 0 milkon (2011 £49 9 million), was approved
by the Board on 27 February 2013 and, subject to approval by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on
14 June 2013 to shareholders on the register on 17 May 2013
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Notes to the Company financial statements

continued

3 Investments

Subsidiary Joint
undertakings ventures Total
fm £m fm
Cost
At 1 January 2012 1,574 0 02 1,574 2
Share options granted to employees 25 - 25
At 31 December 2012 1,576 5 02 1,576 7
Impairment losses
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 106 - 106
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 1,565 9 02 1,566 1
At 31 December 2011 1,563 4 02 1,563 6
The prinapal subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures of the Company are shown on page 107
4 Debtors
2012 2014
£m fm
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1,013 2 6514
Other debtors and prepayments - 17
Amounts owed by joint ventures 07 07
Denvative financial instruments 04 -
Income tax 97 125
Total debtors 1,024 0 666 3
5 Creditors amounts falling due within one year
2012 201
£m £m
Bank overdrafts 56 19
Bank loans 75 79
Qther loans 02 -
Net cbhgations due under finance leases - 01
Borrowing 133 99
Other creditors 46 -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 567 8 5269
Amounts owed to joint ventures 56 180
Amounts owed to JANEs 100 -
Other tax and sooal secunity costs 02 01
Derwvative financial instruments 71 09
Accruals and deferred income 2B 22
Total creditors 6114 558 0

All bank overdrafts and loans are unsecured Net cbligations due under finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relate




11
Carillion ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012

6 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

2012 201

£m £m
Bank loans 456 1 3885
Other loans 306 8 100 3
Total 762 9 488 8

All bank and other loans are unsecured Net abligations due under finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relate

The maturity profile of all borrowings is disclosed in note 13 on page 113

7 Share capital
Issued and fully paid

2012 201
Number Number
milllon £m milion fm
At 1 January 4303 2151 3997 1998
New share capital 1ssued - - 306 153
At 31 December 430 3 2151 430 3 2151
B Reserves
Share Profit
premum Merger Hedging Other and loss
account resarve reserve raserve account Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2012 212 6187 - 67 3316 978 2
Profit for the year - - - - 1434 1434
Fair value movemnent on cash flow hedging denvatives - - 71) - - (71)
Reclassification of effective portion of cash flow hedging
derivatives to profit - - 21 - - 21
Acquisition pf own shares - - - - 12) 12}
Equity settled transactions {net of tax) - - - 25 02) 23
Dividend paid to shareholders - - - - (70 4) (70 4)
At 31 December 2012 212 5187 (50) 92 403 2 1,0473

The profit and loss account reserve includes the reserve for the Company’s own shares which compnises of the cost of the Company’s shares
held by the Canllion Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) The shares held by the ESOP may subsequently be awarded to employges under
the Group’s share incentive schemes The movements In the reserve for own shares included within retained earnings are as foflows

2012 201

£m £m
Al January 02 ©1n
Share options exerased (transfer to retained earnings) 14 43
Acquisttron of own shares 12 44)
At 31 December - 02}

At 31 December 2012, the ESOP held 250 (2011 74,280} of the Company’s shares and had a market value of £793 (2011 £0 2 mullion) Duning
the year the Company acquired 433,105 of its own shares for £1 2 milion to meet the plan s commitments The ESOP has elected to wave all
dividends except for a total payment of 1 pence at the time each dividend Is paid

In addition {o the ESOP, the Company has also established a Quahfying Employee Share Ownership Trust ('Quest’) At 31 Decemnber 2012,

the total number of shares held by the QUEST amounted to 129,979 (2011 129,979} and had a market value of £0 4 million (2011 £0 4 miullion)
The QUEST has elected ta waive all dvidends in excess of 0 01 pence per share

9 Reconcliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

2012 201
£m fm
Profit for the year 143 4 132
New share capital 1ssued - 1177
Equity settled transactions (net of tax) 23 57
Fair value mavement on cash flow hedging dervatives 71 -
Reclassification of effective portion of cash flow hedging derwvatives to profit 21 -
Acquisition of gwn shares (12) 69
Dividends pard to shareholders (70 4) (64 6)
Net addition to shareholiders' funds 691 1651
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 1,193 3 1,028 2

Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 1,262 4 1,1933
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Notes to the Company financial statements

continued

10 Other guarantees and contingent habilities

2012 201

£m £m

Guarantees in respect of borrowings of subsidianas 05 03

Guarantees In respect of interest payments in Construction services (excluding the Middle East) jomntly contralled entities 02 02
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit issued by banks in relation to deferred equity payments in

PPP special purpose entittes 88 2 1009

Guarantees in respect of letters of credit issued by banks in relation to performance contracls for PPP customers 89 2 917

The Company has 1ssued performance guarantees in respect of its subsidianes, joint ventures and joint arrangements in the normal course
of business

Guarantees and counter indemnities have, in the normal course of business, been given to financial institwtions In respect of the prowistans of
performance and other contract related bonds and to certain defined benefit pensions n respect of deficit recovery payments The Company
considers such guarantees and counter indemnities to be insurance arrangements and accounts far them as such The Company treats guarantees
and counter indemnities of this nature as contingent liabiliies until such ume as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required to maka
a payment under the terms of the arrangement

11 Pension arrangements

As the Carlllion Staif and ‘B’ defined benefit schemes are run for the Carillion Group as a whole, the Company 15 unable to wdentify its share
of the schemes’ assets and liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis Hence, as permitted by FRS 17, the schemes are accounted for by
the Company separately as If the schemes were defined contribution schemes Details of the Group's pension schemes are disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements

12 Share-based payments

The Group has established a share option programme that entitles key management personnel and senior employees io shares in the Company
Detatls of the Group s share option programme are disctosed in note 25 to the consohdated financial statements and in the Remuneration report
on pages 53 to 61

13 Finanaal instruments
Details of the Company’s principal finangial instruments are discussed under accounting policies The numernical finanaial instrument disclosures
are set out below

Denvative financal instruments

2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabskues

£m £m £m im
Forward foreign currency contracts and options — at fair value through profit and loss 04 - - 09
Cross-currency derivatives — cash flow hedging nstruments - (71} - -
Foreign currency exposure 04 {(71) - 09)

The cross-currency derivatives hedge the exposure to foreign exchange rate volatiity in relation to the capital and interest payments on United States
of America Dollar denominated private placement and financing

The carrying amount of the Company’s borrowing denorminated in foreign currency 1s as follows

2012 2041
£m fm

United States of Amenca Dollars {188 6) (16 3)
Canadian Dollars (60 7) {62 3}
United Arab Emirates Dirhams (75) {79
Qther (30) (18)
(259 8} (88 3)

Of the total foreign currency borrowing of £259 8 million (2011 £88 3 million) the amount of borrowing used for hedging currency net asset
of overseas operations of the Group amounts of £83 7 millien {2011 £86 4 milion) The foreign exchange gain of £1 5 million (2011 £0 1 mulhon
gain} on translation of the borrowing tnto sterling has been recognised in the hedging reserve as these hedging loans are effective hedges

Farr values
Where there are differences between the carrying and fair values of the Company’s prnapal financial instruments at 31 December 2012 these are
shown below

012 201

Carrying Carrying
value Falr value value Fair value
£m im £m £m

Finance lease obligations - - {0 1) 01




13 Financral instruments (continued)

Matunty of finanaal labilities
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The matunity profile of the carrying amount of the Campany’s non-current borrowing which includes estimated future interest payments, 15

as follows
Bank Bank Other
overdrafts loans loans Total
31 December 2012 £m £m fm £m
Between one and two years - 95 141 236
Between two and three years - 95 141 236
Between three and four years - 458 5 141 4726
Between four and five years - - 293 293
Maore than five years - - 3393 3393
More than ane year ~ 4775 4109 838 4
Less than one year 56 170 143 369
56 434 5 425 2 925 3
Bank Bank Finance Cther
overdrafts loans leases loans Total
31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m im
Between one and two years - g8 - 47 135
Between two and three years - g8 - 47 135
Between three and four years - 88 - 47 135
Between four and five years - 3907 - 47 3954
Mare than five years - - - 160 116 0
More than one year - 4171 - 1348 9519
Less than one year 19 167 01 47 234
19 433 8 01 1395 5753

Borrowing faalities

The Campany had the following undrawn commitied borrowing faality available at the year end in respect of which alt conditions precedent had

been met
2012 2011
£m £m
Expining within one year 74 71
Expinng between two and five years 2812 3490
288 6 3561

14 Related party transactions

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 8 'Related party transactions' the Company has taken the exemption to not disclose transactions

with other wholly owned subsidiaries within the Canllion Group
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Shareholder information

Dividends

Dwidends are normally paid twice a year The proposed final dividend
in respect of the year to 31 December 2012 will be payable on 14 June
2013 to those shareholders on the register cn 17 May 2013

A dividend reinvestment plan {DRIP) will also be offered

For those shareholders who prefer not to participate 1n the DRIP,
arrangements can be made to pay your dividends automatically
Into your bank or buillding society account This service has a
number of benefits

> There 1s no chance of the dvidend cheque going missing in the
post

> The divdend payment is received more quickly as the cash 1s paid
directly into your account on the payment date without the need
to wait for the cheque to clear, and

> You will help Carillion to improve its efficency by reducing
printing and cheque clearing costs

If you wish to register for this service please cal! Equinii on the number
detailled below to request a dividend mandate form

Results
Half year to 30 June 2013 announced August 2013
Full year tc 31 December 2013 announced March 2014

Shareholder Enquines

Equiniti maintain the share register of the Company If you have any
queries concerning your shareheclding, or if any of your details change,
please contact Equiniti

Equiniti
Aspect House
Lancing

West Sussex
BN39 60A

Telephone 0871 384 2522*
Textphone for shareholders with hearning difficulties 0871 384 2255
Non-UK callers should dial +44(0) 121 415 7047

Lines are open 8 00am to 5 30pm, Monday to Friday

* (alis cost eight pence per minute plus network extras

Warning to Shareholders - Boiler Room Scam

Carnillion 1s aware that shareholders have recewed unsolicited telephone
calls frem fraudulent arganisations offenng to buy Canlhon plc shares
at a substantial premium to the prevailing market price These calls

are usually from overseas organisations targeting UK shareholders
These operations are commonly known as ‘boiler room scams' and

the ‘brokers’ who call sharehaolders can be extremely persuasive

and persistent

Boiler reom scams usually come out of the blue, with most fraudsters
cold-calling investors after taking their details from publicly available
sharehotder lists, but the high-pressure sales tactics can also come

by other means such as email or pest The scam 1s designed te sound
attractive, but typically at some point in the process the perpetrator
usually asks for money in advance of concluding the main transaction,
for example by way of a pre-payment or vendor bond The transaction
15 never concluded, and the shareholder loses the money

Share Dealing Service

Carillon offersits UK sharehotders, Shareview Dealing, a telephone
and internet share dealing service operated by Equiriu For telephona
purchases and sales call 0845 603 7037 between 8 00am and 4 30pm,
Monday to Friday, or log on to www shareview co uk/dealing For the
sale of shares, you will need your sharehalder reference number as
shown on your share certificate

Multiple Accounts on the Shareholder Register

If you have received two or more sets of the documents concerning
the Annual General Meeting this means that there 1s more than
one account in your name on the shareholder register, perhaps
because erther your name or your address appear on each account
in a shightly different way For secunity reascns, Eguiniti will not
amalgamate the accounts without your wniten censent, so If you
would like any multiple accounts combined into one account,
please wnite to Equiniti at the address given on this page

Shareview (Electronic Communications)

www shareview ca uk 1s a service offered by Equiniti that enables
you to check your holdings in many UK companies and helps you to
arganise your investments electronically You can also notify Equiruti
of a change of address or a change to dividend mandate instructions
You can register for this portfolio service which 1s easy to use, secure
and free as long as you have access to the internet by logging on to
www shareview co uk and following a simple registration process

Electronic Proxy Appointments

For the Annuat General Meeting to be held on 1 May 2013, you may,
if you wish register the appointment of a proxy electronically by
logging on to the website www sharevote co uk

You will need your voting reference numbers (the three eight-digit
numbers shown on your form of proxy} Afternatively, if you have
registered for a Shareview portfolie, log on to your portfolio at
www shareview co uk and click on the tink *vote” under your
Carilhien plc details, then follow the cn-screen directions

Piease note that any electronic communicaticn that is found to
contain a computer virus will not be accepted

ShareGift

ShareGift Is a chanity share donation scheme for sharehclders
adrministered by The Orr Mackintosh Foundation 1t 1s especially for
those who may wish to dispose of a small parcel of shares whose
value makes it uneconomic to sell on a commission basis Further
information can be obtained at www sharegift org or from Equinitt

If you recewve an unsolicited investment appreach you should

> confirm the correct names of the person calling and the
orgarusation they represent,

> check that they are an authonsed firm with the Financial Services
Authonty (FSAY by caling 0845 606 1234 or by visiting www fsa
gov uk/register/ and contact the firm using the details on the
register,

> report the matter to the FSA by calling 0845 606 1234 or by
visiting www fsa gov uk/Pages/consurmennformation,

> If the calls persist, hang up

Please be aware that fraudsters will often use the name of a tegitmate
organisation or organisations, sometimes sn combinatian with others
so that the organisation may sound familsar to you They may have
also created a scam website, so simply checking that an organisation
appears to have a presence on the web 15 net a guarantee that you are
dealing with 3 legitimate organisation

If you deal with an unauthonsed firm, you will net be elgible to
receive payment under the Financial Services Compensation Scheme
Further infermation on this or similar activity can be found on the
website www moneyadviceservice org uk
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Five year review

2012 2011 20100 2009 2008
Group mncome statement £m im £m £m £m
Total revenue 4,402 & 50512 51390 5,6293 54572
Analysed between
Support services 2,3597 2,345 2 2,108 6 2,3895 24635
Public Private Partnership projects 2877 309 8 319 418 4 4298
Middle East construction services 4736 548 9 4930 5536 464 2
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 1,2818 18473 2,2255 2,2678 2,0997
Underlying Group and Joint Ventures operating profit

before intangible amortisation, impairment of goodwill

and other investments, non-recurring operating items and

jontly controlled entities’ net finanaal {(expense)/income

and taxation 2501 2497 2303 219 2298
Analysed between
Support services 1227 1208 104 177 135
Public Private Partnership projects 338 314 40 2 268 655
Middle East construction services 2910 491 475 470 345
Canstruction services {excluding the Middle East) 724 579 412 309 287
Group eliminaticns and unallocated items {78) (35) [=]4)] (10 5) (12 4)
Share of jointly controlled enuties net financial expense {16 0} (18 8) (139) {21 8) (14 7)
Share of jointly controlled entities taxation an (35) 47) (39) (119
Underlying operating profit before intangible amortisation,

impairment of goodwill and other investments, and

non-recurring operating 1tems 232 4 2274 217 186 2 2032
Group net financial expense {177) 39 6 8) (14 6} {77)
Underlying profit before tax 2147 2235 2049 1me 1955
Intangible ambrusation and impairment of goodwill and other investments (314) 310 (27 6} (30 8) (54 5)
Non-recurring operating tems {26) 428 (9 4) (15 2) (227)
Non-operating items (12) 69 - 103 -
Profit before taxation 1795 142 8 1679 1359 118 3
Taxation {13 3} (4 8) {15 1) {11 5) 41)
Profit for the year 166 2 1380 152 8 124 4 114 2
Group finanaal statistics
Underlying operating profit margin
Suppert services Percentage 52 52 52 49 46
Middle East construction services Percentage 61 89 96 85 74
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) Percentage 56 31 19 14 14
Underlying operating profit margin
Total Group before share of jointly controlled entitias’

net financial expense and taxation Percentage 57 49 45 38 42
Underlying profit from operations margin
Total Group Percentage 53 45 41 33 37
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2012 2011 2010m 2009% 2008

Group balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 1271 134 2 1572 168 2 1672
Intangible assets 1,5401 1,547 6 1,2212 1,241 3 1,276 9
Investments 2379 2109 176 7 1720 242 8

1,9051 1,8927 15551 15815 1,686 9
Inventones, receivables and payables {460 6) {607 4) 613 8) (608 0) (490 4)
Net retirement benefit labiity {(net of deferred tax) (269 9) (2293 (182 1) (211 1) (76 2)
Other net habilities 93) (22 8) (14 2) {15 2) {218
Net operating assets 1,165 3 1,0332 7450 7472 1,098 5
Net {(borrowing)/cash (155 8) (507) 120 2 249 (226 7)
Net assets 1,009 5 8825 865 2 7721 B718
Group cash flow statement
Underlying Group operating profit 1981 1787 165 2 1270 1550
Depreciation and other non-cash items 224 321 320 388 192
Working capital {136 2) 51 162 164 2 590
Dividends received from joint ventures 136 396 481 386 250
Underlying cash flow from operations 979 2555 2615 368 6 2582
Deficit recovery payments to pensicn schemes (30 2) (36 2) (35 2) (290} (50 %)
Rationalisation costs (28 6) {34 4) (15 6) (71 (32 4}
Interest, tax and dividends (87 2) Z71) 65 9) 63 2) 62 2)
Net capital {expenditure)/income (15 6) 46 {15 3) 473) (26 4)
Acquisitions and disposals (32 6) (276 6) (28 6) 42 3 (286 9)
Other (8 8) 67 (56) 27 184
Change in net iquidity (105 1) (170 9) 953 2516 {181 8}
Net (borrowing)/cash at 1 January (507) 120 2 249 (226 7} (44 9)
Net borrowing at 31 December (155 8) (507) 1202 249 (226 7)
Group finanaal statistics
Earmings per share
Underlying earnings per share Pence 430 457 436 363 44 3
Basic earnings per share Pence 372 320 369 3G5 290
Dividends
Proposed full year dvidend per share Pence 1725 169 155 146 130
Underlying proposed dvidend cover Times 25 27 28 25 34
Bastc proposed dividend cover Times 22 19 24 21 22

(%) Pror year income statement and cash flow staterment information has been restatad follewing the change in presentation of profits from the disposal of Public Private Pactnership equity
investments from non operating items to operating items

Prior to the restatement previously reported underlying profit before taxation and underlying earmings per share were as follows

2012 0m 2010 2009 2008
Underlying profit before taxation fm 2147 2120 1881 1755 1606
Underlying earning per share Pence 430 430 394 373 351
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